
City Council

City of Sachse, Texas

Meeting Agenda

Council Chambers7:30 PMMonday, March 7, 2016

The Mayor and Sachse City Council request that all cell phones be turned off or set to vibrate. Members of the 

audience are requested to step outside the Council Chambers to respond or to conduct a phone conversation.

The City Council of the City of Sachse will hold a Regular Meeting on Monday, March 7, 

2016, at 7:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers at Sachse City Hall, 3815 Sachse Road, Building 

B, Sachse, Texas to consider the following items of business:

Invocation and Pledges of Allegiance to U.S. and Texas Flags.

A. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America: I pledge allegiance to the 

flag of the United States of America, and to the Republic for which it stands: one nation under 

God, indivisible, with liberty and justice for all.

B. Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas State Flag: Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to 

thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible.

1.  CONSENT AGENDA.

ALL ITEMS LISTED ON THE CONSENT AGENDA  WILL BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND 

WILL BE ENACTED BY ONE MOTION. THERE WILL BE NO SEPARATE DISCUSSION OF THESE ITEMS 

UNLESS A COUNCIL MEMBER OR CITIZEN SO REQUESTS.

16-3244 Approve the minutes of the February 15, 2016 workshop meeting.

02.15.16 Minutes WorkshopAttachments:

16-3246 Approve the minutes of the February 15, 2016 regular meeting.

02.15.16 MinutesAttachments:

16-3257 Approve the minutes of the February 29, 2016 special joint meeting.

02.29.16 Minutes Special JointAttachments:

16-3248 Consider an ordinance cancelling the May 7, 2016 General Election.

Certificate of Unopposed Candidates

Ordinance Cancelling Election

Attachments:

16-3254 Consider receiving the Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report for the 

period ending January 31, 2016.

Page 1 City of Sachse, Texas Printed on 3/4/2016



March 7, 2016City Council Meeting Agenda

GF 1-31-16

UF 1-31-16

DS 1-31-16

SEDC 1-31-16

Sales Tax Analysis March 2016

Attachments:

16-3258 Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Development 

Agreement with Sachse 95, LTD, a Texas Limited Partnership, for the 

development of Kensington Park.

Development Agreement

Exhibit A - Property Description

Attachments:

2.  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS REGARDING SPECIAL EVENTS, CURRENT 

ACTIVITIES, AND LOCAL ACHIEVEMENTS.

3.  CITIZEN INPUT.

The public is invited at this time to address the Council. The Mayor will ask you to come to the microphone and 

state your name and address for the record. If your remarks pertain to a specific agenda item, please hold them 

until that item, at which time the Mayor may solicit your comments. Time limit is 3 minutes per speaker. The City 

Council is prohibited by state law from discussing any item not posted on the agenda according to the Texas 

Open Meetings Act, but may take them under advisement.

4.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS.

16-3250 Consider receiving the City's Comprehensive Annual Finance Report 

(CAFR) for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2015.

Sachse CAFR Final 2015

Management Rep Letter

Auditors Communication with Governance

Communication of Material Weakness

Attachments:

16-3260 Discuss and receive direction from the City Council regarding retail 

energy supply services for the City of Sachse and move forward with the 

Texas Coalition for Affordable Power, Inc. (TCAP) or negotiating 

services with a retail energy broker.

16-3255 Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Sachse, Texas, 

authorizing the Texas Coalition for Affordable Power, Inc. (TCAP) to 

negotiate an electric supply agreement for five years for deliveries of 

electricity effective January 1, 2018.

ResolutionAttachments:

16-3259 Discuss and consider approval of a contract for Professional Services 

with Gateway Planning Group, Inc. and authorize the City Manager to 

execute for the same.
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Staff Presentation

Scope of Services

Professional Service Agreement

Attachments:

16-3253 Consider an ordinance authorizing certain budget amendments 

pertaining to the fiscal year 2015-2016 budget; and providing an 

effective date.

Ordinance Amending 2015-2016 Budget 030716Attachments:

16-3229 Consider and authorize the City Manager to execute an amendment to 

the lease agreement with the Sachse Chamber of Commerce to lease a 

portion of the former municipal building at 5560 S.H. 78.

Chamber of Commerce Lease - Current

Chamber of Commerce First Amendment to Lease Agreement

Attachments:

16-3247 Consider and act on a Preliminary Plat application for Kensington Park 

from JBI Partners, generally located north of the intersection of Ben 

Road and Pleasant Valley Estates, within city limits.

Staff Presentation

Proposed Plat

Attachments:

16-3241 Discuss sidewalk maintenance policies.

Discuss Sidewalk PolicyAttachments:

5.  EXECUTIVE SESSION.

16-3245 The City Council shall convene into Executive Session pursuant to the 

Texas Government Code, Section §551.074: Personnel regarding the 

six month review of the City Secretary.

Consider any action necessary as a result of Executive Session.

6.  ADJOURNMENT.

Vision Statement: Sachse is a friendly, vibrant community offering a safe and enjoyable quality of life to all who 

call Sachse home.

The City of Sachse reserves the right to reconvene, recess or realign the regular session or 

called Executive Session or order of business at any time prior to adjournment.

As authorized by Section 551.072(2) of the Texas Government Code, this meeting may be 

convened into closed Executive Session at any time during the City Council workshop or 

regular meeting for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on 

any workshop or regluar meeting agenda item listed herein. 

Posted: March 4, 2016; 5:00 p.m. 

____________________________________

Michelle Lewis Sirianni, City Secretary
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If you plan to attend this public meeting and you have a disability that requires special 

arrangements, please contact Michelle Lewis Sirianni, City Secretary, at (972) 495-1212, 48 

business hours prior to the scheduled meeting date.
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Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-3244 Name: February 15, 2016 Council Workshop minutes.

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:2/22/2016 City Council

On agenda: Final action:3/7/2016

Title: Approve the minutes of the February 15, 2016 workshop meeting.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 02.15.16 Minutes Workshop

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Approve the minutes of the February 15, 2016 workshop meeting.

Background
Minutes of the February 15, 2016 workshop meeting.

Policy Considerations
None.

Budgetary Considerations
None.

Staff Recommendations
Approve the minutes of the February 15, 2016 workshop meeting.
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CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SACHSE 

WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES 

FEBRUARY 15, 2016 

 

The City Council of the City of Sachse held a workshop meeting on Monday, February 15, 2016 

at 6:30 p.m. at Sachse City Hall, 3815-B Sachse Road, Sachse, Texas. Those present were Mayor 

Mike Felix, Council Members Charlie Ross, Paul Watkins, Bill Adams, and Cullen King. City 

Manager, Gina Nash; City Secretary, Michelle Lewis Sirianni; Director of Public Works and 

Engineering, Greg Peters; Community Development Director, Dusty McAfee; Chief of Police, 

Bryan Sylvester; Interim Fire Chief, Marty Wade; EDC Director, Leslyn Blake; Finance Director, 

Teresa Savage; Parks and Recreation Director, Lance Whitworth, and Human Resources Director, 

Stacy Buckley. Mayor Pro Tem Brett Franks and Council Member Jeff Bickerstaff were absent. 

 

Mayor Felix called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m.  

 

DISCUSS HIGHEST AND BEST USE STUDY FOR INDUSTRIAL ZONED PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT SH 78 AND RANCH ROAD:  

 

Ms. Blake introduced this item stating that Thomas Hester with Parson Brinkerhoff will be 

presenting findings regarding the development feasibility study for the Ranch Road and SH 78 

corridor. The study was conducted in conjunction with the Sachse EDC and local landowners, 

stakeholders, developers, and private sector interests in order to assess the feasibility of developing 

this area and to determine the highest and best use land use plan. 

Mr. Hester presented council with an overview of the study process. The following criteria was 

used to help determine the highest and best use development: ability to create high quality jobs, 

ability to attract current market demand, ability to produce a comparatively higher overall 

development value and higher net revenue, and the ability to catalyze other desirable development 

surrounding the study. Mr. Hester discussed the site analysis in the context of general conditions 

for development within Sachse and included the opportunities to leverage as well as the challenges 

to address, and the planning and development strategies and scenarios. The outcome of the study 

indicated that a mixed-use professional services center would provide a highest and best use 

scenario by offering the highest comparable development value, built-in market resiliency, and 

provision for needed community services.  

Council discussed the development scenarios, roadway connectivity to the area, and possible 

development(s) including current policies that could be affecting the area and attraction to it.  

No action was taken. 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  At 7:32 p.m. Mayor Felix adjourned the meeting. 

 

 



 

_________________________________ 

MIKE J FELIX, MAYOR   
ATTEST:         

 

______________________________________      

Michelle Lewis Sirianni, City Secretary    



City of Sachse, Texas

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-3246 Name: February 15, 2016 Council minutes.

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:2/22/2016 City Council
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Sponsors:
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Approve the minutes of the February 15, 2016 regular meeting.
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Minutes of the February 15, 2016 regular meeting.

Policy Considerations
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CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SACHSE 

MEETING MINUTES 

FEBRUARY 15, 2016 

 

The City Council of the City of Sachse held a regular meeting on Monday, February 15, 2016 at 

7:30 p.m. at Sachse City Hall, 3815-B Sachse Road, Sachse, Texas. Those present were Mayor 

Mike Felix, Council Members Charlie Ross, Paul Watkins, Bill Adams, and Cullen King; City 

Manager, Gina Nash; City Secretary, Michelle Lewis Sirianni; City Engineer, Greg Peters; 

Community Development Director, Dustin McAfee; Parks and Recreation Director, Lance 

Whitworth; Human Resources Director, Stacy Buckley; Interim Fire Chief, Martin Wade; Police 

Chief, Bryan Sylvester, and Finance Director, Teresa Savage. Mayor Pro Tem Brett Franks and 

Council Member Jeff Bickerstaff were absent. 

 

Mayor Felix opened the meeting at 7:40 p.m. 

 

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO U.S. AND STATE FLAG: The 

invocation was offered by Councilman Ross and the pledges by Councilman Adams. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will 

be acted on by one motion, with no separate discussion of these items unless a Council member or 

citizen so requests. 16-3221 Approve the minutes of the February 1, 2016 workshop meeting. 16-

3222 Approve the minutes of the February 1, 2016 regular meeting. 16-3212 Approve a resolution 

adopting the FEMA approved 2015 Dallas County Hazard Mitigation Action Plan (HazMAP). 16-

3193 Consider acceptance of the Quarterly Budget and Investment Report for the quarter ending 

December 31, 2015. 

Councilman Adams made a motion to approve items 16-3221, 16-3222, 16-3212, and 16-3193 as 

submitted. Councilman Ross seconded that motion and the motion was unanimously approved. 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS REGARDING SPECIAL EVENTS,  

Councilman King thanked the staff at the Animal Shelter for their efforts in remodeling areas at 

the shelter and asked for anyone who may have questions regarding animal traps to contact the 

Animal Control. Councilman King acknowledged the Scouts that were in the audience working on 

their communications badge as well as the home school organization that aids children in learning 

how to debate. 

Councilman Ross stated that on Monday, February 22 at 6:00 p.m., the Library will host a 

chocolate themed party, on Tuesday, February 23 at 6:00 p.m., the Explore Horizons will be 

hosting a "Magic Tree House" Egyptian Extravaganza, and on Tuesday, March 1 at 6:00 p.m. the 
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Library will host a Dr. Seuss birthday party. Councilman Ross added that tax forms are available 

at the Library while supplies last. 

Councilman Watkins stated that the Sachse CERT held their biggest training class to date with 

over 48 people in attendance. Councilman Watkins encouraged everyone to attend to learn the 72 

hour rule and how to be aware and prepared if a disaster should occur. You can find out more 

information at their website: www.cityofsachsecert.org.  

Mayor Felix stated that the City will host its annual citywide trash cleanup and Arbor Day Jubilee 

on April 8 and April 9. 

 

CITIZENS INPUT: 

Ellin Grant, 7302 Vista Ridge Lane, Sachse, stated her concern is with the speed limit change on 

Pleasant Valley Road and how it is causing dangerous passing and clogging up the roads. She 

would like to see the speed limit at 40 mph.  

Emily Duffy, 6714 Eastview Drive, Sachse, stated she is against the speed limit change. Her 

concerns are that the speed limit it too low and unsafe causing people to tailgate and unsafe passing. 

She would like to see the speed limit at 40 mph. 

Martha Lloyd, 6605 Eastview Drive, Sachse, asked Council to raise the speed limit back to 40 mph 

and back on a future council agenda for discussion. 

Olivia Izaguirre, 6404 Ben Road, Sachse, is in favor of the 30 mph speed limit due to the safety of 

the children. Her concerns are the large trucks traveling on Pleasant Valley Road and if the speed 

limit is increased back to 40 mph, than drivers will go 50 mph. 

Sandra Ritzmann, 9509 Wells Road, Wylie, asked Council to reconsider the speed limit on 

Pleasant Valley Road. She urged Council to work with Wylie on finding the right speed limit and 

coordinate efforts. 

Fred Daugherty, 3210 Whiteley Raod, Wylie, asked Council to reconsider and increase the speed 

limit on Pleasant Valley Road back to 40 mph.  

Gary Tambourine, 110 Wagon Wheel Lane, Wylie, stated he drives Pleasant Valley Road several 

times a day and likes making it safer for the children, but is against the 30 mph speed limit. 

Kathy Cobb, 3820 6th Street, Sachse, requested Council to place reflectors and/or signage near 

McCreary Road and Dewitt where the road splits near Canyon Crest to make it safer, thanked 

Council for the street repair on 6th Street by the museum, and mentioned that AARP is at the Senior 

Center on Tuesday’s for tax assistance.  

Scott Phillips, 106 Wagon Wheel Lane, Wylie, stated the 30 mph on Pleasant Valley Road is too 

slow and would like to see it raised back to 40 mph. He requested this item to be placed back on a 

future agenda. 

http://www.cityofsachsecert.org/
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Joseph Sullivan, 138 Wagon Wheel Lane, Wylie, is in opposition to the 30 mph speed limit. He 

stated that it is hard to drive 30 mph on Pleasant Valley Road and to reconsider increasing back to 

40 mph.  

 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

 

16-3227 Receive Sachse Police Department’s 2015 Year in Review.  

Chief Sylvester presented Council with a review of their department for the 2015 year. Chief 

Sylvester provided comparable statistics on crime, arrests, and part II crimes, residential and 

commercial burglaries, vehicles burglaries, and robberies and thefts. Chief Sylvester touched on 

the accomplishments from the department, which included the drug drop box program and the safe 

trade zone. He commended the Animal Shelter for their efforts with increased adoptions, fewer 

euthanizations, expansion of the feline area, and the response to the Rowlett tornado. Chief 

Sylvester stated for the upcoming year they are working on volunteer program development, re-

institute AOR community meetings, a summer children’s program, new crime prevention 

programming, and civilian proposal. 

The Council expressed their thanks on how proud they are of the department and all they do. 

Councilman King noted that AOR 1, 3, and 4 will be meeting Thursday and Councilman Adams 

commented on Sachse making the safest cities list in Texas. Sachse came in twelfth in the 

population over 10,000 category. 

 

16-3228 Conduct a public hearing to consider and act on a request for a Special Use Permit 

(SUP) for Automotive Sales and Major Automotive Repair on approximately 0.459 acres of 

land, generally located at 6404 Industrial Drive, currently zoned Industrial (I-1). 

Mr. McAfee introduced this item by providing the project information and indicating that a SUP 

is required in order for the business to legally operate in the I-1 district. Mr. McAfee stated 173 

property owners within 1,000 square feet were notified regarding this request and no responses 

were received. The Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) within the Comprehensive Plan designates this 

subject area as Industrial, which supports the request.  Mr. McAfee stated the following proposed 

special ordinance provisions have been added to the request: the outside repair of vehicles and 

storage of vehicles under repair shall be prohibited, a Site Plan shall be submitted to Community 

Development depicting a parking layout for approval, no parking or storage of vehicles shall be 

permitted outside of designated parking spaces as shown on the approved Site Plan, and no 

advertising, signage nor business activity oriented towards SH 78 is allowed. At the January 25 

Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, the commission recommended approval with a 6-1 

vote. Staff recommends approval of the proposed SUP with the special ordinance provisions 

discussed herein. 

Mayor Felix opened the public hearing. No comments were made. 



4 

 

Councilman Adams made a motion to close the public hearing. Councilman Ross seconded that 

motion and the motion was unanimously approved. 

Councilman King asked if the business was more sales or repair business. The applicant responded 

that the majority of the business will be done online. Any inventory will be displayed toward the 

industrial area, and the repairs will be done in the back and not in site view.  

Councilman Watkins asked why a 6-1 vote by the Planning and Zoning Commission. Mr. McAfee 

responded that the one opposed thought the proposed use was too intense of a land use for that 

corridor.  

Councilman Adams noted that he would like to see continued Code Enforcement in this area. 

Councilman King made a motion to approve a Special Use Permit (SUP) for Automotive Sales 

and Major Automotive Repair. Councilman Watkins seconded that motion and the motion was 

unanimously approved. 

 

16-3230 Consider a resolution approving purchase orders in the amount not to exceed eighty 

thousand dollars ($80,000) to Reynolds Asphalt and Construction Company, Incorporated 

for asphalt roadway improvement projects. 

Mr. Peters introduced this item by providing an overview of the additional project selection, the 

current 2015-2016 street tax maintenance projects, and the budget for these projects. Mr. Peters 

discussed the cities current project lists for concrete and asphalt streets, and provided some 

additional information on how the department is looking for more cost effective ways to 

rehabilitate and maintain the cities roads. Staff recommends the selection of the following project 

locations based upon the road ratings and available funds: Sachse Street from 5th Street to 6th Street 

and Salmon Street from SH 78 to 3407 Salmon Street. 

Councilman King asked how the projects were selected. Mr. Peters responded that they were 

selected based on budget and lowest road rating score. 

Councilman Ross asked if the lists include all the recommended streets to date. Mr. Peters replied 

that there are additional streets being scored, but none of them are rated a two or three. 

Councilman King made a motion to approve a resolution approving purchase orders in the amount 

not to exceed eighty thousand dollars ($80,000) to Reynolds Asphalt and Construction Company, 

Incorporated for asphalt roadway improvement projects as recommended by staff. Councilman 

Watkins seconded that motion and the motion was unanimously approved. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

At 9:10 p.m. Councilman Adams made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Councilman Ross 

seconded that motion and the motion was unanimously approved.  

Mayor Felix adjourned the meeting.  
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_________________________________ 

               MIKE J. FELIX, MAYOR   

ATTEST:         

 

 

 

______________________________________      

Michelle Lewis Sirianni, City Secretary    
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CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SACHSE 

SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES 

FEBRUARY 29, 2016 

 

The City Council and the Economic Development Corporation of the City of Sachse held a special 

joint meeting on Monday, February 29, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. at the Public Safety Building, 3815-D 

Sachse Road, Sachse, Texas. Those present were Mayor Mike Felix, Council Members Brett 

Franks, Charlie Ross, Paul Watkins, Bill Adams, Cullen King, and Jeff Bickerstaff. EDC Members 

Spencer Hauenstein, Lyndsey Rhode, Marcia Harris-Daniel, Michael VanBuskirk, Niloufer 

Watkins, and Karlos McGhee. City Manager, Gina Nash; City Secretary, Michelle Lewis Sirianni; 

Director of Public Works and Engineering, Greg Peters; Community Development Director, Dusty 

McAfee; Interim Fire Chief, Marty Wade; EDC Director, Leslyn Blake; Finance Director, Teresa 

Savage; and Parks and Recreation Director, Lance Whitworth. 

 

Mayor Felix opened the special joint meeting at 6:03 p.m. with a quorum of City Council present.  

Spencer Hauenstein, EDC President opened the special joint meeting at 6:03 p.m. with a quorum 

of the EDC Board of Directors present. 

The City Council and EDC took a brief recess at 6:04 p.m. At 6:14 p.m. the City Council and EDC 

reconvened back into session. 

 

DISCUSS THE CITY’S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  

 

Mrs. Nash introduced this item stating five firms submitted plans from the RFP; three firms were 

interviewed and one was selected, Gateway Planning and Catalyst Commercial.  

Mr. McAfee provided a project update and stated the proposal will address the areas recommended 

by Council, but also address special area and market based plans and the difference between the 

two. Mr. McAfee addressed the proposal and stated that the Comp Plan still delivers shared 

community vision based on community engagement, declares future land use, parks plan, growth 

management and policy guide items, and other elements. The consultants specialize in a unique, 

niche area that best positions Sachse for meaningful development, which is above and beyond 

traditional Comp Plan deliverables.  

Scott Polikov with Gateway Planning and Jason Claunch with Catalyst Commercial presented the 

Council and EDC with an implementation focused approach. Mr. Polikov stated that they will 

update the typical elements of the Comprehensive Plan, defer fiscal and implementation 

considerations and use an outcome driven approach by taking advantage of a mature community, 

virtuous cycle of reinvestment, and regional differentiation. Examples were given of some 

previous work the companies have done for other cities that focused on special area anchored 

initiatives which focused on corridors and places. Mr. Polikov stated that communities already 

know their existing opportunities and should build upon that. For Sachse, the 190 Corridor and the 

SH 78 Corridor could be two focus areas. They highlighted that their approach would include the 

following: Implementation which can include streets for people, design standards, restaurants as 



entertainment, and return on investments. A focused work plan which involves focused community 

engagement, understanding financial baselines, and defining outcomes based on Council’s 

strategic plan. A return on investment that includes special area plans, scenarios to guide city 

management, and optimizing for the future, while recruiting now, and most importatntly, 

community buy-in which will aid in updating the Comprehensive Plan elements in context of real 

projects such as the Future Land Use Plan (FLUP), prioritizing infrastructure, parks, and trails, 

and honoring the authentic history of Sachse.  

City Council and the EDC Board of Directors discussed their concerns along the SH 78 corridor, 

where do they envision a downtown for Sachse, as well as what would be the next steps if they 

choose Gateway Planning and Catalyst Commercial. Mr. Polikov noted that small group 

interviews would be done before tailoring on specific focus areas. They will build a scenario 

analysis and add the technical value. Workshops would also be done with specific design strategies 

that would be presented with ‘real time’ feedback. The timeframe of completion would be roughly 

nine months. 

The City Council and EDC took a brief recess at 7:54 p.m. At 8:09 p.m. the City Council and EDC 

reconvened back into session. 

The Council and EDC discussed the budgetary components and how payments would be made on 

this project. Mrs. Nash stated that staff would bring back the recommendation at the March 7 

meeting along with the budget amendment. The EDC would also make their recommendation at 

their next meeting, which would then go to council for approval. 

No action was taken. 

 

DISCUSS THE DEVELOPMENT OF GOALS AND OBJECTIVES BETWEEN THE 

EDC AND CITY OF SACHSE: 

 

 

Ms. Blake introduced this item by providing drafted goals based on Council direction that was 

given during the Council’s strategic planning workshop. Ms. Blake stated she has condensed 

them down into four goals that will have tasks, which all will related back to strategic goals set 

forth by Council and the EDC Board. Ms. Blake asked for Council feedback and direction 

regarding the goals and objectives presented.  

 

The Council and EDC discussed how they can work together to ensure they both are working 

towards the same goal(s). Council addressed concerns by the EDC Board with Council 

encouraging EDC to develop relationships and make potential contacts for Ms. Blake to pursue. 

Council and EDC also discussed types of restaurants they would like see within Sachse and 

using City events to help support and draw business to the City.  

 

Ms. Blake stated that she alongside the City Manager, she will work on setting tasks to the goals 

with more specificity that will be in line with the overall strategic plan. 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  At 9:11 p.m. Mayor Felix adjourned the meeting. 

 

 



 

_________________________________ 

MIKE J FELIX, MAYOR   
ATTEST:         

 

______________________________________      

Michelle Lewis Sirianni, City Secretary    



City of Sachse, Texas

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-3248 Name: Canceling May 7, 2016 General City Council
Election.

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:2/23/2016 City Council

On agenda: Final action:3/7/2016

Title: Consider an ordinance cancelling the May 7, 2016 General Election.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Certificate of Unopposed Candidates

Ordinance Cancelling Election

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Consider an order cancelling the May 7, 2016 General Election.

Background
As of the filing deadlines, candidates Cullen King (Place 5), Jeff Bickerstaff (Place 6), and
Mike Felix (Mayor) were unopposed. The Texas Election Code Section 2.053 (a) provides for
the cancelling of the Election and declaring the candidates elected. The Election Code states
that they cannot take the oath of office until after the regular election canvass period, which is
currently scheduled for the May 16 City Council meeting. As in recent years, oaths of office
are administered at the first City Council Meeting in June and candidates will receive their
Certificate of Election.

Policy Considerations
None.

Budgetary Considerations
None.

Staff Recommendations
Approve an ordinance cancelling the May 7, 2016 General Election.
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ORDINANCE NO. _______________ 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SACHSE, 

TEXAS, CANCELING THE ELECTION SCHEDULED TO BE HELD MAY 

07, 2016, FOR THE PURPOSE OF ELECTING THE CITY COUNCIL 

MEMBER(S) FOR PLACE NO. 5, 6, AND MAYOR; DECLARING EACH 

UNOPPOSED CANDIDATE ELECTED TO OFFICE; ORDERING THE 

POSTING OF THIS ORDINANCE AT CITY HALL ON ELECTION DAY; 

PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND DECLARING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 3717, was adopted by the City Council on February 1, 2016, for the 

purpose of electing the City Councilmember for Place No. 5, 6, and Mayor to the Sachse City 

Council; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the election is for officers of the City in which write-in votes may be counted only 

for names appearing on a list of write-in candidates and in which each candidate whose name is 

to appearing on the ballot is unopposed, and no proposition is to appear on the ballot; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the filing deadlines for name placement on the ballot and declaration of write-in 

candidacy have passed; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has received the City Secretary's written certification that each 

candidate is unopposed for the election; and, 

 

WHEREAS, in these circumstances, Section 2.053(a) of the Texas Election Code authorizes the 

governing body to declare each unopposed candidate elected to office and to cancel the election 

thereby avoiding the expenses related to holding an election and saving public funds. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SACHSE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 

SECTION 1. The general election for the purpose of electing the City Councilmember 

Place No. 5, 6, and Mayor previously called for May 07, 2016, is hereby canceled. 

 

SECTION 2. The following candidates, who are unopposed for the May 07, 2016, 

General Election, are hereby declared elected to office and shall be issued a certificate-of-

election: 

 

Councilmember Place No. 5   Cullen King 

Councilmember Place No. 6   Jeff Bickerstaff 

Mayor     Mike Felix 

 

SECTION 3. The City Secretary shall post a copy of this ordinance at City Hall and on 

Election Day shall post a copy of this ordinance at the polling place located at the City Hall 

Municipal Complex, 3815 Sachse Road, Building B, Sachse, Texas. 



SECTION 4. Should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or 

section of this ordinance or of the Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged or held 

to be void or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 

said ordinance or the Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which shall remain in full force 

and effect.. 

 

SECTION 5. This ordinance shall take effect immediately in accordance with the 

provisions of the Charter of the City of Sachse, and it is accordingly so ordained. 

 

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Sachse, Texas on the 7th 

day of March, 2016. 
 

 

APPROVED: 

 

___________________________ 
Mike J. Felix, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Michelle Lewis Sirianni, City Secretary 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Peter G. Smith, City Attorney 



City of Sachse, Texas

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-3254 Name: Monthly revenue and expenditures January 2016

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:3/1/2016 City Council

On agenda: Final action:3/7/2016

Title: Consider receiving the Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report for the period ending January 31,
2016.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: GF 1-31-16

UF 1-31-16

DS 1-31-16

SEDC 1-31-16

Sales Tax Analysis March 2016

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Consider receiving the Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report for the period ending
January 31, 2016.

Background
The Finance Department will prepare a report each month to update the City Council
regarding revenues and expenditures for the City.  The attached reports are for the month
ended January 31, 2016.  Included are unaudited summaries for the General Fund, Utility
Fund, Debt Service Fund, and Sachse Economic Development Corporation.

Policy Considerations
City Charter requires that the City Manager submit a report covering revenues and
expenditures monthly.

Budgetary Considerations
N/A

Staff Recommendations
Receive the Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report for the period ending January 31,
2016.
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33% of Year Completed

 Annual Budget 

 Current Month 

Actual  Actual YTD 

 YTD Actual as a 

Percent of Budget 

 Note 

Reference 

33%

Revenue Summary

Property Tax 9,106,824$          1,694,082$          8,237,649$          90.46% A

Sales Tax 1,244,094             121,868                439,012                35.29%

Franchise Fees 1,590,122             186,848                589,431                37.07%

Licenses and Permits 535,500                41,942                  232,045                43.33%

Service Fees 681,500                55,976                  254,829                37.39%

Fines 275,000                11,271                  69,908                  25.42%

Interest Income 12,000                  (1,133)                   1,067                     8.90% C

Miscellaneous Income 372,360                16,765                  79,360                  21.31%

Intergovernmental Revenue 986,945                82,245                  328,982                33.33%

Total Revenue 14,804,345$            2,209,866$              10,232,283$            69.12%

Expenditure Summary

City Manager 374,652$              31,406$                126,486$              33.76%

City Secretary 157,148                9,268                     41,808                  26.60%

Human Resources 294,803                17,189                  91,044                  30.88%

Finance 608,428                48,583                  222,982                36.65%

Municipal Court 212,197                15,873                  60,098                  28.32%

Parks & Recreation 1,004,375             78,993                  320,724                31.93%

Senior Programs 122,821                12,147                  41,388                  33.70%

Library Services 371,686                29,600                  129,502                34.84%

Community Development 810,899                55,812                  267,872                33.03%

Streets & Drainage 1,259,147             103,299                389,326                30.92%

Facility Maintenance 463,404                33,677                  140,538                30.33%

Police 4,566,001             383,080                1,603,392             35.12%

Animal Control 225,172                37,263                  88,015                  39.09%

Fire/EMS 3,295,682             273,905                1,122,252             34.05%

Combined Services 577,463                35,922                  300,821                52.09% B

City Engineer 299,968                16,761                  91,899                  30.64%

Total Expenditures 14,643,846$            1,182,777$              5,038,146$              34.40%

Total Revenue Over/Under Expenses 160,499$                 1,027,089$              5,194,137$              

lk

Explanation of Major Variances:

A Property Tax receipts peak in December and January

B Total annual property and liability premium paid in October

C Investment expenses posted in January; income will post at end of quarter.

City of Sachse
Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

January 31, 2016
(Unaudited)

GENERAL FUND



33% of Year Completed

 Annual Budget 

 Current Month 

Actual  Actual YTD 

 YTD Actual as a 

Percent of Budget 

 Note 

Reference 

33%

Revenue Summary

Water Revenue 4,839,836$          324,900$             1,855,500$          38.34%

Sewer Revenue 4,132,115            335,058                1,323,431            32.03%

Fees 156,300                17,861                  55,665                  35.61%

Interest Income 2,500                    (1)                          (230)                      -9.20% A

Transfer In-Debt Service 138,194                0.00%

Miscellaneous Income -                             -                             -                             

Total Revenue 9,268,945$              677,819$                 3,234,366$              34.89%

Expenditure Summary

Utility Administration 285,823$             27,797$                95,674$                33.47%

Water Operations 5,034,698            455,829                1,630,740            32.39%

Sewer Operations 3,427,132            456,780                1,109,495            32.37%

Meter Reading 227,045                35,139                  107,201                47.22%

Total Expenditures 8,974,698$              975,544$                 2,943,109$              32.79%

Total Revenue Over/Under Expenses 294,247$                 (297,726)$                291,257$                 

Explanation of Major Variances:

A Investment expenses posted in January; income will post at end of quarter.

City of Sachse
Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

January 31, 2016
(Unaudited)

UTILITY FUND



33% of Year Completed

 Annual Budget 

 Current Month 

Actual  Actual YTD 

 YTD Actual as a 

Percent of Budget 

 Note 

Reference 

33%

Revenue Summary

Property Tax 3,001,087$          547,768$              2,662,630$          88.72%

Interest Income 1,500                     (5)                           11                          0.75% B

Total Revenue 3,002,587$              547,764$                 2,662,642$              88.68%

Expenditure Summary

Fees 1,000$                  -$                           -$                           0.00%

Principal 1,325,000             -                             -                             0.00% A

Interest 1,553,433             0.00% A

Transfer Out-Utility Fund 138,146                

Total Expenditures 3,017,579$              -$                               -$                               0.00%

Total Revenue Over/Under Expenses (14,992)$                  547,764$                 2,662,642$              

A Principal payments are due in February and interest payments in February and August

B Investment expenses posted in January; income will post at end of quarter.

Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

January 31, 2016
(Unaudited)

Debt Service Fund



33% of Year Completed

 Annual Budget 

 Current Month 

Actual  Actual YTD 

 YTD Actual as a 

Percent of Budget 

 Note 

Reference 

33%

Revenue Summary

Sales Tax 609,759$              56,657$                211,885$              34.75%

Other Income -$                           -$                           -$                           

Interest Income 8,000                     (747)                       1,207                     15.09% A

Total Revenue 617,759$                 55,910$                    213,091$                 34.49%

Expenditure Summary

Expenditures 599,811                26,151                  110,817                18.48%

Total Expenditures 599,811$                 26,151$                    110,817$                 18.48%

Total Revenue Over/Under Expenses 17,948$                    29,759$                    102,275$                 

Explanation of Major Variances:

City of Sachse
Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

January 31, 2016
(Unaudited)

SACHSE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION



Total General Fund General Fund YTD Percent Total General Fund General Fund YTD Percent

FY 2015 Sales Tax Sales Tax Year-To-Date of Budget FY 2016 Sales Tax Sales Tax Year-To-Date of Budget

October 149,053 85,169 85,169 7.30% October 156,703 89,540 89,540 7.34%

November 227,089 129,759 214,928 18.43% November 223,828 127,895 217,435 17.83%

December 162,100 92,624 307,552 26.37% December 162,793 93,020 310,455 25.46%

January 158,992 90,848 398,400 34.16% January 198,309 113,314 423,769 34.75%

February 257,209 146,969 545,369 46.75% February 278,265 159,001 582,769 47.79%

March 141,655 80,941 626,311 53.69% March

April 135,136 77,217 703,527 60.31% April

May 226,142 129,217 832,745 71.39% May

June 166,541 95,162 927,907 79.55% June

July 155,796 89,022 1,016,929 87.18% July

August 228,922 130,806 1,147,735 98.40% August

September 165,152 94,368 1,242,103 106.49% September

TOTAL 2,173,787 1,242,103 TOTAL 1,019,898 582,769

BUDGET 1,166,444 BUDGET 1,219,518

CITY OF SACHSE

2015/2016 SALES TAX ANALYSIS



City of Sachse, Texas

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-3258 Name: Development Agreement - Sachse 95, Ltd.

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:3/3/2016 City Council

On agenda: Final action:3/7/2016

Title: Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Development Agreement with Sachse 95, LTD,
a Texas Limited Partnership, for the development of Kensington Park.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Development Agreement

Exhibit A - Property Description

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Development Agreement with Sachse
95, LTD, a Texas Limited Partnership, for the development of Kensington Park.

Background
Sachse 95, LTD is the developer of Kensington Park, a single family planned development on
96.80 acres of land located at the northeast corner of Pleasant Valley Road and Ben Road.
(Exhibit A - Property Description)

The development includes 66 single family residential lots, public water mains, a collector
road, and local streets. The lots are 1+ acres in area, and are planned to have on-site
sewage facilities (septic systems).

The anticipated impact fees from the development include:
- Roadway Impact Fees - $161,700.00
- Water Impact Fees - $166,386.00

The City of Sachse Impact Fee Ordinance states:
(1) Any construction of, contributions to, or dedications of any facility appearing in the

capital improvements plan that is required by the city to be constructed by the owner as
a condition of development shall be credited against the impact fees otherwise due
from the same category (roadway, water or wastewater) of impact fees assessed on
the development.

(2) The amount of each credit for required construction of a facility in the capital
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File #: 16-3258, Version: 1

(2) The amount of each credit for required construction of a facility in the capital
improvements plan shall be calculated by multiplying the value of the facility assessed
for the capital improvements plan by a fraction, the numerator of which is the impact
fee per service unit equivalent due for the new development computed using the
denominator of which is the maximum impact fee per service unit computed using the
capital improvements plan.

The internal collector road (Country Club Drive) is shown on the City of Sachse Capital
Improvement Plan, and is thus required to be constructed by the Developer. Due to the low
density of the development (66 lots), an internal collector road is not required for the traffic
volume generated by the development. Therefore, per the City of Sachse Impact Fee
Ordinance, the developer is authorized to receive the reimbursement of roadway impact fees
for the construction of Country Club Drive.

Policy Considerations
The City Council may choose to enter into agreements with private land developers related to
public improvements in the City.

The proposed development agreement is based upon the City of Sachse Impact Fee
Ordinance as reviewed by the City Attorney.

Budgetary Considerations
The Developer agrees to construct a 12-inch public water main, and the proposed 36-foot
wide concrete collector road in accordance with the City of Sachse Capital Improvement
Plan.

The City agrees to reimburse impact fees for the cost to upsize the water main from an 8-inch
main to a 12-inch main.  (The development only requires an 8-inch main).

The City also agrees to reimburse roadway impact fees for the construction of the collector
road, in accordance with the City of Sachse Impact Fee Ordinance.

Upon City acceptance of each phase of the improvements, the City of Sachse will reimburse
impact fees received from the lots developed in the subdivision:

· Roadway Impact Fee Reimbursement not to exceed $161,700.00

· Water Impact Fee Reimbursement not to exceed $57,243.00

Staff Recommendations
Authorize the City Manager to enter into a Development Agreement with Sachse 95, LTD, a
Texas Limited Partnership, for the development of Kensington Park.
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CITY OF SACHSE/SACHSE 95 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT – PAGE 1 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF DALLAS § 

 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 This Development Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the City of 
Sachse, Texas (“City”), and Sachse 95, a Texas limited partnership (“Developer”) (each a 
“Party” or collectively the “Parties”), acting by and through their duly authorized representatives. 

 
RECITALS: 

WHEREAS,  Developer is the owner of the Property, which is located in Sachse, Texas, 
and which Developer desires to develop the Property in accordance with the Development 
Regulations and other applicable City ordinances, including the construction of Public 
Improvements; and  

 
WHEREAS, Developer intends to develop the Property and to design and construct 

certain Capital Improvement Facilities including Waterline, Hike and bike trail, and Roadway 
Facilities, on and for the benefit of the Property (collectively referred to as the “Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, in association with the construction of the Development, the Parties find it 

to be in their mutual benefit and interest that (i) Developer shall construct or cause to be 
constructed Country Club Road from Pleasant Valley Road to the North line of the Property; (ii)  
Developer shall construct or cause to be constructed 3900 linear feet of a 12-inch water main 
with the costs to be shared between the City and Developer as provided herein; (iii) Developer 
shall dedicate the necessary right-of-way for the future construction of Pleasant Valley Road; 
and (iv) Developer shall construct or cause to be constructed a hike and bike trail on the 
Property; and 

  
WHEREAS, Texas Local Government Code §212.071, as amended, authorizes 

municipalities to participate in a developer’s costs of construction of public improvements 
related to the development of subdivisions within the municipality without compliance with 
Chapter 252 of the Texas Local Government Code, as amended; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants 

contained herein and other valuable consideration the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

 
Article I 

Term 
 
 The term of this Agreement shall commence on the last date of execution hereof by a 
Party (the “Effective Date”) and shall continue until all Parties have fully satisfied all terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, unless sooner terminated as provided herein as evidenced by the 
execution by the City of the Release described in Section 5.1, below. 
 
  



CITY OF SACHSE/SACHSE 95 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT – PAGE 2 

Article II 
Definitions 

 
 Wherever used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this Article II unless the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 
 

“Capital Improvement Facilities” shall mean the Waterline, Roadway Facilities, Hike and 
Bike Trail Facilities and related appurtenances to be constructed by the Developer on the 
Property, as set forth in Exhibits “B” and “C”. 

 
“City” shall mean City of Sachse, Texas. 
 
“City Engineer” shall mean City of Sachse City Engineer, or designee. 
 
“Commencement of Construction” shall mean that: (i) the Construction Documents have 

been prepared and all approvals thereof required by applicable governmental authorities have 
been obtained for construction of the Project; (ii) all necessary permits for the construction of the 
Project, pursuant to the Construction Documents therefore, have been issued by all applicable 
governmental authorities; and (iii) grading of the Property has commenced. 

 
“Completion of Construction” shall mean: (i) the respective Capital Improvement 

Facilities have been substantially completed in accordance with the Construction Documents; 
and (ii) the respective Capital Improvement Facilities have been accepted by the City. 

 
“Construction Documents” shall mean the plans and specifications submitted for the 

design, installation and construction of the respective Capital Improvement Facilities, as 
approved by City Engineer. 

 
“Developer” shall mean Sachse 95, a Texas limited partnership, and any subsequent 

developer of any portion of the Property. 
 
“Effective Date” shall mean the last date of execution of this Agreement. 
 
“Hike and Bike Trail Facilities” shall mean the design and construction of a hike and bike 

trail in accordance with the City of Sachse Standard Construction Details which include a 
minimum 8 foot wide concrete trail constructed of five-inch (5”) thick concrete with a 
compressive strength of at least 3000 psi, containing steel reinforcement #3 rebar placed at 
twenty-four inches (24”) on center each way.  

 
“Property” shall mean the real property described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
“Roadway  Facilities” shall mean the design and construction of Country Club Road in 

accordance with City of Sachse Standard Construction Details which include the full width (36 
feet) from Pleasant Valley Road to the north Property consisting of approximately 1800 linear 
feet concrete collector street constructed of eight-inch (8”) thick concrete with a compressive 
strength of at least 3500 psi, containing steel reinforcement 4 rebar placed at eighteen inches 
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(18”) on center in each direction with a sub-grade consisting of lime treated soils in accordance 
with the current City of Sachse Standard Construction Details and as depicted in Exhibit “B” in 
accordance with the Construction Documents. 

 
“Waterline Facilities” shall mean the design and construction of approximately 3900 

linear feet of a twelve-inch (12”) waterline from the intersection of Ben Road and Pleasant 
Valley Road to the northeast corner of the Property, and as set forth in Exhibit “C” in accordance 
with City of Sachse Standard Construction Details and the Construction Documents.  

 
Article III 

Capital Improvement Facilities 
 
 3.1 Roadway Facilities.  Developer shall at Developer’s sole cost, design and 
construct the Roadway Facilities subject to City reimbursement from the Roadway Impact Fees 
collected from the Property.  Developer may construct the Roadway Facilities in three phases as 
shown on the attached Exhibit “B”. Upon Completion of Construction of the Roadway Facilities 
for that phase, the Developer shall be reimbursed for the actual verified cost of the design and 
construction of that phase of the Roadway Facilities from the Roadway Impact Fees collected by 
the City from the Property. Staff shall continue to reimburse Developer on a quarterly basis as 
Impact Fees are collected from the Property for the cost of construction of that phase of the 
Roadway Facility.   Developer shall be responsible for the actual costs of the design and 
construction of the three phases of the Roadway Facility in excess of the actual amount of 
Roadway Impact Fees collected from the Property and reimbursed to the Developer. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the maximum amount the City is obligated to 
reimburse the Developer from the Roadway Impact Fees collected shall not exceed $161,700.00 
for the total design and construction of the three phases of the Roadway Facilities in the 
aggregate.    
 
 3.2  Waterline Facilities.  Developer agrees to design and install the Waterline 
Facilities in accordance with the applicable standards, ordinances and regulations adopted by the 
City (“City Standards”) and as set forth in Exhibit “C”.  Developer shall submit plans for the 
design and construction of the Waterline Facilities (“Construction Plans”) to the City Engineer 
for review and approval. The plans shall include the estimated cost for the design and 
construction of the Waterline Facilities.  Developer may install the Waterline Facilities with each 
phase of development; however Developer agrees that the City may withhold building permits, 
plat approval, final inspection and certificates of occupancy for any building or structure within 
each phase of the Development until such time as Developer has caused the Completion of 
Construction of the Waterline Facilities for that particular phase of development. Upon 
Completion of Construction, Developer shall provide City with construction pay applications and 
maintenance bonds and such other records as City may reasonably request to document the 
actual costs of the design and construction of the Waterline Facilities. 
 

3.3 Payment of Over-Sizing Costs.  City agrees to pay to Developer, and Developer 
shall be entitled to receive from City, an amount equal to the Over-Sizing Costs associated with 
over-sizing the Waterline from an eight-inch (8.0”) diameter line to a twelve–inch (12.0”) 
diameter line.  City agrees to pay the Over-Sizing Costs to the Developer within thirty (30) days 
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after the Completion of Construction of the Waterline Facilities and the City verification of such 
costs.  Upon Completion of Construction, Developer shall provide City with construction pay 
applications and maintenance bonds and such other records as City may reasonably request to 
document the actual costs of the design and construction of the Waterline Facilities.   

 
3.4 Hike and Bike Trail Facility.  Developer agrees to design and construct, at 

Developer’s sole cost, a Hike and Bike Trail Facility as set forth in Exhibit “B” and in 
accordance with the City’s Standard Construction Details.  Developer shall submit plans for the 
design and construction of the Hike and Bike Trail Facility to the City Engineer for review and 
approval. Developer shall cause the Commencement of Construction of the Hike and Bike Trail 
Facility to occur at the same time as the Commencement of phase two of the Roadway Facility.  
The Completion of Construction of the Hike and Bike trail Facility shall occur at the same time 
as the Completion of phase two of the Roadway Facility.  

 
3.5 Payment Current Funds of City. City shall only be obligated to pay its 

obligations from current funds available to City for such purposes.  City warrants and represents 
that, as of the Effective Date, City has appropriated current funds and allocated those current 
funds to pay the Over-Sizing Costs (“the Project Funds”).  City agrees to separately account for 
the Project Funds on City’s books, but shall not be obligated to establish a separate deposit 
account for the purpose of holding such funds until spent. 
 

3.6  Easements.  Developer shall, without cost to City, dedicate and convey all 
necessary on-site easements of sufficient width across the Property for the construction, 
operation and maintenance of the Capital Improvement Facilities upon recordation of a final plat 
containing the Capital Improvement Facilities. 

 
3.7 Monument Signage. Developer shall build and install a secondary monument 

sign (“Monument Sign”), to be located at Country Club and Pleasant Valley.  The Monument 
Sign shall be installed upon Completion of Construction of Phase two of the Roadway Facility.  

 
3.8 Sanitary Sewer Impact Fees. The City has no obligation to provide sanitary 

sewer service to the Property and therefore pursuant to the City’s Code of Ordinances Section 8-
21 titled “Impact Fees”, the City agrees to waive the collection of sanitary sewer impact fees for 
the Property.  

 
 3.9 Bonds.  Developer shall cause each contractor to provide payment bonds and 
performance bonds for the construction of the Capital Facilities to ensure completion of the 
Capital facilities in accordance with Chapter 2253, Texas Government Code, as amended, in 
forms reasonably satisfactory to City. Developer shall cause each contractor to provide 
maintenance bonds (for a period of two years following completion of the respective phase of the 
Capital Facilities) in favor of City for the Capital Facilities in accordance with City requirements 
and regulations pertaining to maintenance bonds for public improvements. 
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Article IV 
Termination 

 
 This Agreement may be terminated by the mutual written agreement of the Parties.  
Either Party may terminate this Agreement if the other Party breaches any of the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, and such breach is not cured by such Party within sixty (60) days 
after receipt of notice thereof. 
 

Article V 
Miscellaneous 

 
5.1 Release.  Upon the full and final satisfaction by City and Developer of their 

respective obligations contained herein, City and Developer shall execute and record, in the 
Deed Records of Dallas County, a release of City and Developer from their obligations set forth 
herein. 

 
5.2 Books and Records.  Developer and City agree to make their respective books 

and records relating to the construction of the Project available for inspection by the other Party, 
until acceptance of the Project by the City. 

 
5.3 INDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS.  CITY SHALL NOT BE 

LIABLE FOR ANY LOSS, DAMAGE, OR INJURY OF ANY KIND OR CHARACTER 
TO ANY PERSON OR PROPERTY ARISING FROM THE ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF 
DEVELOPER PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT. DEVELOPER HEREBY WAIVES 
ALL CLAIMS AGAINST CITY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES 
(COLLECTIVELY REFERRED TO IN THIS SECTION AS “CITY”) FOR DAMAGE 
TO ANY PROPERTY OR INJURY TO, OR DEATH OF, ANY PERSON ARISING AT 
ANY TIME AND FROM ANY CAUSE OTHER THAN THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OR 
WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OF CITY. DEVELOPER DOES HEREBY INDEMNIFY 
AND SAVE HARMLESS CITY FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, 
DAMAGES, CLAIMS, SUITS, COSTS (INCLUDING COURT COSTS, ATTORNEYS’ 
FEES AND COSTS OF INVESTIGATION) AND ACTIONS OF ANY KIND BY 
REASON OF INJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON OR DAMAGE TO OR LOSS 
OF PROPERTY ARISING FROM DEVELOPER’S BREACH OF ANY OF THE TERMS 
AND CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT, OR BY REASON OF ANY ACT OR 
OMISSION ON THE PART OF DEVELOPER, ITS OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, 
SERVANTS, AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, REPRESENTATIVES, CONTRACTORS, 
SUBCONTRACTORS, LICENSEES, SUCCESSORS OR PERMITTED ASSIGNS IN 
THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT, (EXCEPT WHEN SUCH LIABILITY, 
CLAIMS, SUITS, COSTS, INJURIES, DEATHS OR DAMAGES ARISE FROM OR ARE 
ATTRIBUTED TO THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL ACT OF CITY). IN THE 
EVENT OF JOINT OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF BOTH CITY AND 
DEVELOPER, THE RESPONSIBILITY, IF ANY, SHALL BE APPORTIONED 
COMPARATIVELY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF 
TEXAS, WITHOUT, HOWEVER, WAIVING ANY GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY 
AVAILABLE TO CITY AND WITHOUT WAIVING ANY DEFENSES OF THE 
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PARTIES UNDER TEXAS LAW. IF ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING SHALL BE 
BROUGHT BY OR AGAINST CITY IN CONNECTION WITH ANY SUCH LIABILITY 
OR CLAIM, DEVELOPER SHALL BE REQUIRED, ON NOTICE FROM CITY, TO 
DEFEND SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDINGS AT DEVELOPER’S EXPENSE, BY OR 
THROUGH ATTORNEYS REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO CITY.  THE 
PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION ARE SOLELY FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE 
PARTIES HERETO AND NOT INTENDED TO CREATE OR GRANT ANY RIGHTS, 
CONTRACTUAL OR OTHERWISE, TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY. 

 
5.4 Insurance.  Developer shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect at its 

expense, or shall cause each contractor to obtain and maintain at their expense, the following 
policies of insurance and coverage: 

 
(a) Commercial General Liability Policy covering bodily injury, death and property 

damage, including the property of City, its officers, contractors agents and 
employees (collectively referred to as the “City”) insuring against all claims, 
demands or actions relating to the work and services provided pursuant to this 
Agreement with minimum limits on a per project basis of not less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit and Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000) aggregate, including products and completed operations coverage. 
This policy shall be primary to any policy or policies carried by or available to 
City. 

 
(b) Workers' Compensation/Employer's Liability Insurance Policy in full accordance 

with the statutory requirements of the State of Texas and shall include bodily 
injury, occupational illness or disease coverage with minimum Employer’s 
Liability limits of not less than $500,000/$500,000/$500,000. This section 5.1 (b) 
shall apply to Developer when and if Developer employees perform work with 
respect to the Project or when on site of the Project. 
 

(c) Automobile Liability Insurance Policy covering all operations of Developer 
pursuant to this Agreement involving the use of motor vehicles, including all 
owned, non-owned and hired vehicles with minimum limits of not less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit for bodily injury, death and 
property damage liability. 

 
(d) Excess Liability Insurance Policy with a limit of not less than Ten Million Dollars 

($10,000,000).  Such insurance shall be in excess of the commercial general 
liability insurance, business auto liability insurance and employer’s liability 
insurance.  This insurance will apply as primary insurance with respect to any 
other insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by City and shall be 
provided on a "following form basis".  Continuing commercial umbrella 
coverage, if any, shall include liability coverage for damage to the contractor’s 
completed work, including its sub-contractors, consultants and employees.   
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(e) Property/Builders Risk Insurance Policy with “all-risk” coverage on the entire 
Project construction value with replacement cost basis to include the interest of 
City, Developer, its contractors and sub-contractors in the Project work and 
materials in transit and stored off the Project site destined for incorporation. 
 

(f) Professional Liability Insurance (if applicable) with limit of not less than Two 
Million Dollars ($2,000,000) for all negligent acts, errors, and omissions by the 
contractor, its sub-contractors, consultants and employees, that arise out of the 
performance of this Agreement except as otherwise provided in this Section 5.4 
(f). This section 5.4 (f) shall apply to the engineers, architects and other design 
professionals contracted by Developer to perform work on the Project. contractors 
providing professional landscape services for the Project shall provide professional 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 
per occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate.  
 

(g) Waiver of Subrogation Rights.  The Commercial General Liability, Worker’s 
Compensation, Business Auto and Excess Liability insurance required pursuant to 
this Agreement shall provide for waivers of all rights of subrogation against City. 

 
(h) Additional Insured Status.  With the exception of Worker’s Compensation 

Insurance and any contractor Professional Liability Insurance, all insurance 
required pursuant to this Agreement shall include and name City as additional 
insureds using Additional Insured Endorsements that provide the most 
comprehensive coverage to City under Texas law including products/completed 
operations.   The Additional Insured status for City shall remain in force and 
effect for a minimum of four (4) years following abandonment or completion of 
the work and services provided pursuant to this Agreement and the termination of 
this Agreement. 

 
5.5 Certificates of Insurance.  Certificates of Insurance and policy endorsements in 

a form satisfactory to City shall be delivered to City prior to the commencement of any work or 
services under this Agreement and annually for a minimum of four (4) years following 
termination of this Agreement, abandonment or completion of Project work.  All required 
policies shall be endorsed to provide City with thirty (30) days advance notice of cancellation or 
material change in coverage.  
 

(a) On every date of renewal of the required insurance policies, Developer shall cause 
(and cause its contractors) a Certificate of Insurance and policy endorsements to 
be issued evidencing the required insurance herein and delivered to City.  In 
addition, Developer shall, within ten (10) business days after written request, 
provide City with Certificates of Insurance and policy endorsements for the 
insurance required herein (which request may include copies of such policies). 
The delivery of the Certificates of Insurance and the policy endorsements 
(including copies of such insurance policies) to City is a condition precedent to 
the payment of any amounts due to Developer by City.  The failure to provide 
valid Certificates of Insurance and policy endorsements shall be deemed a breach 



CITY OF SACHSE/SACHSE 95 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT – PAGE 8 

of this Agreement. All policies and endorsements shall remain in effect for not 
less than four (4) years after abandonment of the work or services or the 
substantial completion of the Project work and services provided pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

 
5.6 Carriers.  All policies of insurance required to be obtained by Developer and its 

contractors pursuant to this Agreement shall be maintained with insurance carriers that are 
satisfactory to City and lawfully authorized to issue insurance in the state of Texas for the types 
and amounts of insurance required herein. All insurance companies providing the required 
insurance shall be authorized to transact business in Texas and rated at least “A” by AM Best or 
other equivalent rating service. All policies must be written on a primary basis, non-contributory 
with any other insurance coverage and/or self-insurance maintained by City. All insurance 
coverage required herein shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance and policy 
endorsements submitted by Developer’s and its contractors’ insurer or broker. Certificates of 
insurance and policy endorsements received from any other source will be rejected. 

 
5.7 Project Plans.  Except as otherwise provided herein, prior to Commencement of 

Construction, Developer shall submit all Construction Documents for all Capital Improvement 
Facilities to the City Engineer for review and approval. 

 
5.8 Compliance with Laws.  Except as otherwise provided herein, Developer shall 

fully comply with all local, state and federal laws, including all codes, ordinances and 
regulations applicable to this Agreement and the work to be done hereunder, which exist or 
which may be enacted later by governmental bodies having jurisdiction or authority for such 
enactment. 

 
5.9 Successors and Assigns.  All obligations and covenants of Developer under this 

Agreement shall be binding on Developer, its successors and permitted assigns. Developer may 
not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of City, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

 
5.10 Binding Agreement. The terms and conditions of this Agreement are binding 

upon the successors and assigns of all Parties hereto.   
 
5.11 Limitation on Liability.  It is acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that the 

terms hereof are not intended to and shall not be deemed to create a partnership or joint venture 
among the Parties.  It is understood and agreed between the Parties that Developer, in satisfying 
the conditions of this Agreement, has acted independently, and City assumes no responsibilities 
or liabilities to third-parties in connection with these actions.   

 
5.12 Authorization.  Each Party represents that it has full capacity and authority to 

grant all rights and assume all obligations that are granted and assumed under this Agreement. 
 
5.13 Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder shall be 

deemed received three (3) days after it is sent by United States Mail, postage prepaid, certified 
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mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the Party at the address set forth below or on the day 
actually received when sent by courier or otherwise hand delivered. 

 
 If intended for Developer, to:    

 
Sachse 95, LP 
8214 Westchester Street 
Suite 650 
Dallas Texas 75225 
 
If intended for City, to: With a copy to: 
 
City of Sachse, Texas Peter G. Smith 
Attn:  City Manager Nichols, Jackson, Dillard, Hager & Smith 
3815 Sachse Road 1800 Ross Tower 
Sachse, Texas  75048 500 N. Akard 
 Dallas, Texas 75201 
 
With a copy to Engineer: 
 
City of Sachse, Texas 
City Engineer 
3815 Sachse Road 
Sachse, Texas  75048 
 
5.14 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement embodies the complete agreement of the 

Parties hereto, superseding all oral or written, previous and contemporary, agreements between 
the Parties and relating to the matters in this Agreement. 

 
5.15 Governing Law.  The validity of this Agreement and any of its terms and 

provisions, as well as the rights and duties of the Parties, shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of Texas; and venue for any action concerning this Agreement shall be in State District 
Court of Dallas County, Texas.  The Parties agree to submit to the personal and subject matter 
jurisdiction of said court. 

 
5.16 Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended by the mutual written agreement 

of the Parties. 
 
5.17 Legal Construction.  In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in 

this Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, 
such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect other provisions, and it is the 
intention of the Parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each provision that is found to be illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to this Agreement which is legal, valid and 
enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to the provision found to be illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable. 
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5.18 Recitals.  The recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein and are found to 
be true and correct. 

 
5.19 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original and constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
5.20 Exhibits.  Any exhibits to this Agreement are incorporated herein by reference 

for all purposes wherever reference is made to the same. 
 
5.21  Survival of Covenants. The representations, warranties, covenants, and 

obligations of Developer set forth in this Agreement shall survive termination. 
 

5.22 Recordation of Agreement.  An original of this Agreement shall be recorded in 
the Deed Records of Dallas County, Texas. 

 
5.23 Covenants Run With Property.  The provisions of this Agreement are hereby 

declared covenants running with the Property and are fully binding on Developer and each and 
every subsequent owner of all or any portion of the Property but only during the term of such 
Party’s ownership thereof (except with respect to defaults that occur during the term of such 
person’s ownership) and shall be binding on all successors, heirs, and assigns of Developer 
which acquire any right, title, or interest in or to the Property, or any part thereof.  Any person 
who acquires any right, title, or interest in or to the Property, or any part hereof, thereby agrees 
and covenants to abide by and fully perform the provisions of this Agreement with respect to the 
right, title or interest in such Property. 

 
 

(Signature page to follow) 
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EXECUTED in duplicate originals on the ____ day of _____________, 2016. 
 
      CITY OF SACHSE, TEXAS 

 
 
By:  ____________________________________ 
  Gina Nash, City Manager 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
  Michelle Lewis Sirianni, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By:  ___________________________ 
 Pete G. Smith, City Attorney 
 (02-18-16/70916) 

 
 EXECUTED in duplicate originals on the ____ day of ______________, 2016. 
 
  DEVELOPER: 

 
Sachse 95 
 
 

      By: ____________________________________ 
      Name: ____________________________________ 
      Title: ____________________________________ 
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CITY’S ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF DALLAS  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of 
_____________________, 2016, by Gina Nash, City Manager of City of Sachse, Texas, on 
behalf of said municipality. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My Commission Expires: 
 
      __________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 DEVELOPER’S ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF DALLAS  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of ___________, 2016, by 
____________________________, Sachse 95, a Texas limited partnership, on behalf of said 
partnership. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
       
      My Commission Expires: 
 
      __________________________________________ 
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Title
Consider receiving the City's Comprehensive Annual Finance Report (CAFR) for the fiscal
year ending September 30, 2015.

Executive Summary
BrooksCardiel, PLLC, an independent audit firm, has audited the City's Financial Statements
for the period ending September 30, 2015 and has issued an Unmodified or "clean" opinion
with an emphasis-of-a-matter paragraph to highlight the adoption of new accounting
pronouncements. Anthony Cardiel, CPA will provide highlights and comments on this report
during his presentation.

Background
In accordance with Charter provisions (Section 7.18) an independent auditor has audited the
City's Financial Statements for the period ending September 30, 2015.  The CAFR is
composed of the auditor's opinion, the organization's financial statements, notes to the
financial statements, management's discussion and analysis, and supporting schedules.  It is
the auditor's primary function to express an opinion on the financial statements of the
organization.

While the auditor is responsible for his/her opinion, the organization itself has the primary
responsibility for the remaining information presented (i.e., the financial statements,
supporting, schedules, and notes).  Management is responsible for the information presented
in the financial statements.
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File #: 16-3250, Version: 1

A letter of transmittal is included and is designed to complement the Management's
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).  The MD&A can be found immediately following the
independent auditor's report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of
the financial statements.  The following are a few major highlights from the CAFR:

Cash and investments (city-wide) are $27,215,652.
Increase in total net position (primary government) is $5,260,079.
Governmental fund balances total $18,056,911.
Unassigned General Fund balance is $6,546,528, which is 53% of annual expenditures.
Unrestricted net assets of the Utility Fund are $4,232,573.
City-wide outstanding debt at September 30, 2015 was $36,915,000.
Ratio of debt to assessed value was 2.59%
Debt per capita equals $1,553.

Professional auditing standards require the auditors to communicate directly with the
governing body regarding the City's internal control over financial reporting (Statement of
Auditing Standards 115) and other relevant issues such as accounting policies, accounting
estimates, disclosures, management representations (Statement of Auditing Standards 114).
The relevant letters are included in the supporting documentation for this item.

Policy Considerations
The City's Financial Statements have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental entities.  It is the responsibility of
the Finance Department to present financial information fairly in all material respects, so that
the financial position of the City is not compromised.  The desired result of the independent
audit is to receive an "unmodified opinion."  The current report reflects an unmodified (clean)
opinion, which is the highest opinion available.  An unmodified opinion states that the
financial statements "present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component
unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Sachse, as
of September 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows,
where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Budgetary Considerations
None.

Staff Recommendations
Receive the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2015.
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BrooksCardiel, PLLC
Certified Public Accountants


1095 Evergreen Circle | Suite 200 | The Woodlands, TX 77380 | Tel: 281.907.8788 | Fax: 888.875.0587 | www.BrooksCardiel.com


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT


To the Honorable Mayor and


     Members of the City Council


    City of Sachse, Texas:


Report on the Financial Statements 


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 


business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the 


aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Sachse, Texas (the “City”), as of and for the 


year ended September 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 


collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  


These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management.  Our responsibility 


is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.


Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements


The City’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 


financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 


States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 


relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 


material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.


Auditor’s Responsibility


Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 


conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 


States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 


reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 


An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 


disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 


judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 


statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 


considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 


financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 


circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 


entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
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evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 


accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 


financial statements. 


We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 


basis for our audit opinion.


Opinion


In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 


the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 


discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 


information of the City as of September 30, 2015 and the respective changes in financial position 


and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting 


principles generally accepted in the United States of America.


Emphasis of Matter


As discussed in Note V.E. the City adopted new accounting guidance GASB Statement No. 68, 


Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and the 2014 financial statements have been 


restated to correct a misstatement. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.


Other Matters


Required Supplementary Information


Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 


management’s discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison information, the schedule of 


changes in net pension liability and related ratios, and the schedule of employer contributions 


to pension plan be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 


although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 


Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 


placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 


context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 


in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 


which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 


and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, 


the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 


financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 


because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 


or provide any assurance.
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Other Information


Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 


collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining balance sheet, 


statement of revenues, schedules of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances –


budget and actual for the debt service fund, special revenue fund, and Sachse Economic 


Development Corporation are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 


required part of the basic financial statements. 


The supplementary information noted above is the responsibility of management and was 


derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 


prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 


procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 


procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 


accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 


financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 


standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 


supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 


financial statements as a whole. 


The introductory section and the statistical section has not been subjected to the auditing 


procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and acc ordingly, we do not 


express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.


BrooksCardiel, PLLC


Certified Public Accountants


The Woodlands, Texas


February 16, 2016
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As management of the City of Sachse, Texas (the “City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial 


statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year 


ended September 30, 2015. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in 


conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can 


be found on pages 1-5 of this report.


Financial Highlights


 The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities (net position) at September 30, 2015 by $83,739,159. 


Of this amount, $3,712,821 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the government's 


ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.


 The City's total net position increased by $5,260,079. The majority of the City's net position are 


invested in capital assets and restricted for specific purposes. 


 The City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $18,056,911 at 


September 30, 2015, an increase of $2,353,173 from the prior fiscal year; this includes an increase 


of $45,111 in the debt service fund, a decrease of $333,522 in the capital projects fund, increase of 


$1,662,256 in the impact fee fund, an increase of $19,130 in the street maintenance fund, and an 


increase of $610,570 in the general fund.


 At the end of the fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $6,546,528 or 


53% of total general fund expenditures.


 The City's outstanding bonds payable decreased by $230,000. The total bonds payable at the 


close of the fiscal year was $36,915,000. Self-supporting debt of the proprietary fund was 


$835,000.


Overview of the Financial Statements


The discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic 


financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-


wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) the notes to financial statements. This 


report also includes supplementary information intended to furnish additional detail to support the 


basic financial statements themselves.


Government-Wide Statements


The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 


City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
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The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities.  The difference 


between the two is reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve 


as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.  Other 


non-financial factors, such as the City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s infrastructure, 


need to be considered in order to assess the overall health of the City.


The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the 


most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving 


rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses 


are reported for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected 


taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).


Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally 


supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that 


are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-


type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public 


works, culture and recreation, and community development. The business-type activities of the City 


include water and sewer operations.


The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary 


government), but also the legally separate Sachse Economic Development Corporation for which the 


City is financially accountable. Financial information for this component unit is reported separately 


from the financial information presented for the primary government itself. The George Bush Turnpike 


Reinvestment Zone, although also legally separate, functions for all practical purposes as a department 


of the City, and therefore has been included as an integral part of the primary government.


FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 


segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses 


fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of 


the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and 


fiduciary funds.


Governmental Funds


Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 


activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial 


statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 


resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such 


information may be useful in assessing a government’s near-term financing requirements.
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Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 


statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 


information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By 


doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing 


decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of 


revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 


comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.


The City maintains seven individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 


governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, 


and changes in fund balances for the general fund, debt service fund, capital projects fund, the impact


fee fund, and the street maintenance fund, which are considered to be major funds. The City’s PGBT 


reinvestment zone tax increment fund and special revenue fund are considered nonmajor for reporting 


purposes.


The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund, debt service fund, impact fee fund, 


street maintenance, PGBT reinvestment zone tax increment fund and special revenue fund. A 


budgetary comparison statement has been provided for each fund to demonstrate compliance with the 


budget.


Proprietary Funds


The City maintains two types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same 


functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City 


uses an enterprise fund to account for its water and sewer operations. All activities associated with 


providing such services are accounted for in this fund, including administration, operation, 


maintenance, debt service, capital improvements, meter maintenance, billing and collection. The City's 


intent is that costs of providing the services to the general public on a continuing basis is financed 


through user charges in a manner similar to a private enterprise. Internal service funds are an accounting 


device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions. The City 


uses internal service funds to account for health insurance.


Proprietary financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide 


financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 


information for the water and sewer fund since it is considered a major fund of the City. 


Component Units


The City maintains the accounting and financial statements for two component units. The Sachse 


Economic Development Corporation is reported as a discrete component unit on the government-wide 


financial statements. The George Bush Turnpike Reinvestment Zone is reported as a blended 


component unit and is a nonmajor fund.
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Notes to Financial Statements


The notes provide additional information that is necessary to acquire a full understanding of the data 


provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 


Other Information


In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents required 


supplementary information concerning the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension 


benefits to its employees and budgetary comparison for the general fund. 


GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS


As noted previously, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City’s financial 


position.  For the City of Sachse, assets exceed liabilities by $83,739,159 as of September 30, 2015 in the 


primary government.  


The largest portion of the City’s net position, $68,198,616, reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g.,


land, city hall, police station, streets, and drainage systems, as well as the public works facilities), less 


any debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding.  The City uses these capital assets to 


provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although 


the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 


resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the assets themselves 


cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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Statement of Net Position:


The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position:


Current and


other assets $ 20,187,290 $ 5,547,650 $ 25,734,940 $ 17,790,797  $ 3,561,457     $ 21,352,254


Capital assets, net 81,000,017 19,637,635 100,637,652 80,764,383  19,538,126   100,302,509


Total Assets 101,187,307 25,185,285 126,372,592 98,555,180 23,099,583 121,654,763


Total Deferred


Outflows 2,098,277 51,817         2,150,094 554,525 34,465          588,990


Other liabilities 3,256,143 1,280,841 4,536,984 3,212,831    932,619        4,145,450


Long-term liabilities 39,235,148 915,286 40,150,434 38,607,519  1,011,704     39,619,223


Total Liabilities 42,491,291 2,196,127 44,687,418 41,820,350 1,944,323 43,764,673


Total Deferred


Inflows 90,342 5,767 96,109 -                   -                    -                  


Net Position:


Net investment


in capital assets 49,395,981 18,802,635  68,198,616 48,982,879  18,603,126   67,586,005


Restricted 11,827,722 -                   11,827,722 9,721,020    -                    9,721,020   


Unrestricted (519,752) 4,232,573 3,712,821 (1,414,544)   2,586,599     1,172,055


Total Net Position $ 60,703,951 $ 23,035,208 $ 83,739,159 $ 57,289,355 $ 21,189,725 $ 78,479,080


ActivitiesActivities Activities Activities TotalTotal


Governmental Business-Type


2015 2014


Governmental Business-Type
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Statement of Activities:


The following table provides a summary of the City’s changes in net position:


Revenues


Program revenues:


Charges for services $ 3,902,098 $ 9,137,569 $ 13,039,667 $ 3,480,154    $ 6,866,641   $ 10,346,795


Grants and contributions 2,266,997 1,233,994   3,500,991 5,062,102    2,019,038   7,081,140


General revenues:


Property taxes 10,938,125 -                 10,938,125 9,951,685    -                  9,951,685


Sales taxes 1,582,416 -                 1,582,416 1,296,199    -                  1,296,199


Franchise and local taxes 1,208,204 -                 1,208,204 1,094,025    -                  1,094,025


Investment income 33,900 1,970 35,870 30,724         837             31,561


Other revenues 51,290 -                 51,290 280,569       -                  280,569


Total Revenues 19,983,030 10,373,533 30,356,563 21,195,458 8,886,516 30,081,974


Expenses


General government 2,330,847 -                 2,330,847 2,332,316    -                  2,332,316


Public safety 6,854,653 -                 6,854,653 6,176,967    -                  6,176,967


Public works 4,415,483 -                 4,415,483 3,914,293    -                  3,914,293


Culture  and recreation 1,557,475 -                 1,557,475 1,427,948    -                  1,427,948


Community development 677,184 -                 677,184 616,439       -                  616,439


Interest and fiscal charges 2,022,071 37,238        2,059,309 1,802,117    41,060        1,843,177


Water & Sewer -                  7,201,533   7,201,533 -                   6,549,437   6,549,437


Total Expenses 17,857,713 7,238,771 25,096,484 16,270,080 6,590,497 22,860,577


Change in Net Position


Before Transfers 2,125,317 3,134,762 5,260,079 4,925,378 2,296,019 7,221,397


Transfers 1,289,279 (1,289,279) -                (263,672)      263,672      -                


Total 1,289,279 (1,289,279) -                (263,672) 263,672 -                


Change in Net Position 3,414,596 1,845,483 5,260,079 4,661,706 2,559,691 7,221,397


Beginning Net Position 57,289,355 21,189,725 78,479,080 52,627,649  18,630,034 71,257,683


Ending Net Position $ 60,703,951 $ 23,035,208 $ 83,739,159 $ 57,289,355 $ 21,189,725 $ 78,479,080


Total


Primary


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


Business-Type


Government


For the Year Ended September 30, 2014


Total


Governmental


Activities


Governmental


Activities Activities Government Activities


Business-Type Primary
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Graphic presentations of selected data from the summary tables are displayed below to assist in the 


analysis of the City’s activities.
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Governmental Activities - Revenues


For the year ended September 30, 2015, revenues from governmental activities totaled $19,983,030. 


Property tax, charges for services and contributions are the City’s largest general revenue sources.  


Overall revenue decreased $1,212,428 or 6% due to large amounts of contributed capital that occurred 


in the prior year. Grants and contributions decreased by $2,795,105 related to said contributed capital.


Property tax revenue increased $986,440 due to increase property values and a growing tax base. Sales 


tax increased by $286,217 or 22% due to continued growth within the City. Charges for services 


increased by $421,944, primarily from development and permit fees. All other revenues remained 


relatively stable when compared to the previous year.


This graph shows the governmental function expenses of the City:
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Governmental Activities - Expenses


For the year ended September 30, 2015, expenses for governmental activities totaled $17,857,713.  This 


represents an increase of $1,587,633 or 10% from the prior year.  The City’s largest functional expense is 


public safety of $6,854,653. All expenditures remained relatively consistent with the previous year.   
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Business-type activities are shown comparing operating costs to revenues generated by related 


services.


 -
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Business-Type Activities - Revenues 


and Expenses


Expenses


Charges for


Services


For the year ended September 30, 2015, charges for services by business-type activities totaled 


$9,137,569.  This is an increase of $2,270,928, or 33%, from the previous year. This increase directly 


relates to water usage within the City as in the prior year the City had mandatory water restrictions 


and increased prices in the current year.


Total expenses increased $648,274 to a total of $7,238,771, due primarily to increased purchases from 


the North Texas Municipal Water District, the City’s source of water.


FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS


As noted earlier, fund accounting is used to demonstrate and ensure compliance with finance-related 


legal requirements.


Governmental Funds - The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information of near-


term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing 


the City’s financing requirements.  In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful 


measure of the City’s net resources available for spending at the end of the year.


At September 30, 2015, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $18,056,911, 


an increase of $2,353,173 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 34% of this amount 


($6,073,568) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s 


discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is either nonspendable, assigned, or restricted to indicate 


that it is 1) not in spendable form ($101,621) or 2) restricted for particular purposes ($11,827,722).







City of Sachse, Texas
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)


September 30, 2015


25


As of the end of the year the general fund reflected a total fund balance of $6,702,149.  Of this, $101,621


is considered nonspendable and $6,546,528 is unassigned. This increase in fund balance is attributable 


to increased property and sales taxes and positive budget variances in both revenues and expenditures.


As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare total fund balance to total 


fund expenditures.  The total fund balance of general fund is 54% of total general fund expenditures.  


The unassigned (the amount available for spending) fund balance of the general fund of $6,546,528 is 


53% of total general fund expenditures.


The debt service fund had an ending fund balance of $336,024 at September 30, 2015 compared to the 


previous year’s balance of $290,913.  


The capital projects fund ending fund balance is $5,275,339.  During the year, the City expended


$1,583,111 on various projects, utilizing funds from the 2006 bond package.


The impact fee fund is considered a major fund and is used to ensure impact fees assessed for specific 


capital improvements are properly accounted for. During the year the City did not have any activity 


within this fund.


The street maintenance fund is a nonmajor fund and is used to track sales tax collected for street 


maintenance. During the year the fund spent $292,248 on street maintenance and improvement. The 


fund saw a total increase in fund balance of $19,130.


Proprietary Funds - The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the 


government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Net position in the water and sewer fund


totaled $23,035,208.  Unrestricted net position of the enterprise fund at the close of the fiscal year 


amounted to $4,232,573. Total net position demonstrated an increase of $1,845,483. The fund had a net 


investment in capital assets of $18,802,635. The City operates and maintains a water and sewer 


distribution system with force mains and lift stations.  The City has six water storage facilities with a 


total capacity of approximately 6.9 million gallons.  The following are additional comments regarding 


operations of the enterprise fund:


 The City received capital contributions of $1,233,994 consisting of water and sewer 


infrastructure. 


 Operational expenses excluding depreciation and amortization were $5,797,575. 


 Cash and cash equivalents in the water and sewer fund were $2,767,445 at fiscal year end.


An internal service fund was established in 2014 for the purpose of tracking and allocating expenses for 


employee insurance.  Revenue consists of budgeted allocations transferred from the general and water 


and sewer funds. Expenses consist of premiums paid for health, dental, and life insurance, as well as 


contributions to health savings accounts and deductible reimbursements.  The fund had an ending 


fund balance of $201,803 to be retained for future risk.
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS


Budget amendments approved during the fiscal year increased spending by $82,240.   There was a 


positive variance of $706,512 over budgeted general fund revenues.  The following are additional 


comments regarding appropriations:


 There was a total positive variance of $184,866 in budgeted appropriations.


 $50,086 is the budget surplus of revenues over expenditures before transfers.


 There was an actual net positive change in fund balance of $610,570.


CAPITAL ASSETS


As of the end of the year, the City’s governmental activities funds had invested $81,000,016 in a variety 


of capital assets and infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation. The City’s business-type activities 


funds had invested $19,637,635 in a variety of capital assets and infrastructure, net of accumulated 


depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, vehicles, equipment, park 


improvements, and infrastructure.  The City’s total investment in capital assets increased by $39,663, 


net of depreciation.  


Major capital asset events during the current year include the following:


 Contribution of assets by a developer.


 Acquisition of new library books.


 Construction of road projects.


More detailed information about the City’s capital assets is presented in note IV. C to the financial 


statements.


LONG-TERM DEBT


At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt obligations of $37,750,000. Of this 


amount, $835,000 is self-supporting through revenues collected from the rates of the City's utility fund. 


All of the City's debt is backed by a full-faith credit pledge of property taxes with a limited pledge of 


revenues of the enterprise/utility system. The City monitors its debt obligations and callable bonds for 


refinancing opportunities with market conditions.  


More detailed information about the City’s long-term liabilities is presented in note IV. D to the 


financial statements. 
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET


The 2015-2016 Fiscal Year Budget was approved by City Council on September 14, 2015.  The tax rate 
adopted that same day was $.757279 per $100 assessed value, a 1.76 percent decrease from the previous 
year’s rate of $.770819.  There was an increase in taxable values of $211 million (14.81%) from the 
previous year, resulting in an overall increase in budgeted ad valorem taxes of $1,380,099 to be 
allocated across the General, Debt Service, and PGBT Tax Increment Financing Funds.  Overall, 
budgeted revenue for the General Fund increased by $1,883,820 to a total of $14,804,345.  Budgeted 
expenditures increased by $1,512,428 to a total of $14,743,846 and include funding for full 
implementation of a wage and salary study, continued replacement of old equipment and vehicles, seed 
money for a city-wide Equipment Replacement Fund, and the final funding for a digital radio upgrade 
for Public Safety.


Budgeted revenue in the Utility Fund includes the second year of a five year rate plan approved in 2014,
an increase of $1,250,886 (15.6%) over the previous year.   Budgeted expenses increased by $1,180,575 
to a total of $8,974,698, a percentage increase of 15.1%.  Approved expenditures include a backhoe and 
truck for the Water Department, implementation of the previously mentioned wage and salary study, and 
advance funding for a study to create a Drainage Utility Department.  Also included are significant 
increases in the cost of water purchased from North Texas Municipal Water District, $306,395 or 
10.9%.


The City’s capital budget includes $4,140,255 in new funding for various projects city-wide.  Unlike the 
operating budget, funding for budgeted capital projects does not expire at the end of the fiscal year but 
continues until the project is complete.  By funding source, the amount budgeted includes $200,000 
from the General Fund, $436,634 from the Utility Fund, $590,000 from Water and Sewer Impact Fees, 
$91,839 from RCC special sales tax funds, $314,879 in Street Maintenance Taxes, $138,000 from 
Roadway Impact Fees, $76,173 in Community Development Block Grant funds, $295,000 from general 
unobligated capital project funds, $1,500,000 from the 2006 Transportation Bond program, and 
$498,000 in developer contributions.  


CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT


The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a 


general overview of the City's finances. If you have questions about this report or need any additional 


information, contact the Department of Finance at 3815-B Sachse Rd., Sachse Texas 75048 or call (972) 


495-1212.
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Current assets:


Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,793,015    $ 2,767,445      $ 17,560,460     $ 3,411,627     


Restricted cash -                    220,874         220,874          -                    


Investments 5,019,309      -                     5,019,309       1,003,382     


Receivables, net 746,305         2,070,174      2,816,479       108,718        


Internal balances (472,960)       472,960         -                      -                    


Inventory -                    16,197           16,197            -                    


Prepaids 101,621         -                     101,621          4,155            


Assets held for sale -                    -                     -                      225,999


20,187,290    5,547,650      25,734,940     4,753,881     


Capital assets: 


Non-depreciable 10,341,269    805,008         11,146,277     -                    


Net depreciable capital assets 70,658,748    18,832,627    89,491,375     -                    


81,000,017    19,637,635    100,637,652   -                    


101,187,307  25,185,285    126,372,592   4,753,881     


Deferred Outflows of Resources


Pension contributions 646,017         41,235           687,252          -                    


Pension investment earnings 165,784         10,582           176,366          -                    


Deferred charge on refunding 1,286,476      -                     1,286,476       -                    


2,098,277 51,817 2,150,094 -                    


Liabilities


Current liabilities:


Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,578,037      922,713         2,500,750       558,466


Accrued interest payable 260,953         6,234             267,187          -                    


Customer deposits 500                221,545         222,045          -                    


Long term debt due within one year 1,416,653      130,349         1,547,002       1,094


3,256,143      1,280,841      4,536,984       559,560        


Noncurrent liabilities:


Due in more than one year 36,376,474    732,817         37,109,291     122


Net pension liability 2,858,674      182,469         3,041,143       -                    


42,491,291    2,196,127      44,687,418     559,682        


Deferred Inflows of Resources


Pension losses 90,342           5,767             96,109            -                    


Net investment in capital assets 49,395,981    18,802,635    68,198,616     -                    


Restricted for:


Debt service 336,024         -                     336,024          -                    


Capital improvements 11,181,105    -                     11,181,105     -                    


Municipal court 228,043         -                     228,043          -                    


Street maintenance 82,550           -                     82,550            


Economic development -                    -                     -                      4,194,199     


Unrestricted (519,752)       4,232,573      3,712,821       -                    


$ 60,703,951    $ 23,035,208    $ 83,739,159     $ 4,194,199     


See Notes to Financial Statements.


City of Sachse, Texas
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION


September 30, 2015


Activities Activities


Component


Primary Government


Business-Type


Total Assets


Unit


Total


Governmental Sachse


EDC


Net Position


Total Net Position


Total Liabilities


Assets


Total Current Assets


Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
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Capital 


Grants and


Contributions


Primary Government


Governmental Activities


General government $ 2,330,847     $ 10,750          $ -                    $ -                    


Public safety 6,854,653     871,054        -                    -                    


Public works 4,415,483     1,216,081     -                    1,745,994     


Culture and recreation 1,557,475     -                    34,271          -                    


Community development 677,184        1,804,213     486,732        -                    


Interest and fiscal charges 2,022,071     -                    -                    -                    


17,857,713   3,902,098     521,003        1,745,994     


Business-Type Activities


Water 4,201,954     5,476,932     -                    678,697        


Sewer 3,036,817 3,660,637     -                    555,297        


Total Business-Type Activities 7,238,771     9,137,569     -                    1,233,994     


Total Primary Government $ 25,096,484   $ 13,039,667   $ 521,003        2,979,988     


Component Unit


Sachse Economic


Development Corporation $ 946,051        $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    


General Revenues:


Taxes


Property taxes


Sales taxes


Franchise and local taxes


Investment income


Other revenues


Transfers


Total General Revenues and Transfers


Change in Net Position


Beginning Net Position


Ending Net Position


See Notes to Financial Statements.


Charges for Grants and


City of Sachse, Texas
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES


Operating


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


Program Revenues


Expenses Contributions


Total Governmental Activities


Functions/Programs Services
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Component Unit


Sachse


EDC


$ (2,320,097)     $ -                     $ (2,320,097)     $ -                              


(5,983,599)     -                     (5,983,599)     -                              


(1,453,408)     -                     (1,453,408)     -                              


(1,523,204)     -                     (1,523,204)     -                              


1,613,761      -                     1,613,761      -                              


(2,022,071)     -                     (2,022,071)     -                              


(11,688,618)   -                     (11,688,618)   -                              


-                     1,953,675      1,953,675      -                              


-                     1,179,117      1,179,117      -                              


-                     3,132,792      3,132,792      -                              


(11,688,618)   3,132,792      (8,555,826)     -                              


(946,051)                 


10,938,125    -                     10,938,125    -                              


1,582,416      -                     1,582,416      622,305                  


1,208,204      -                     1,208,204      -                              


33,900           1,970             35,870           8,650                      


51,290           -                     51,290           1,000                      


1,289,279      (1,289,279)     -                     -                              


15,103,214    (1,287,309)     13,815,905    631,955                  


3,414,596      1,845,483      5,260,079      (314,096)                 


57,289,355    21,189,725    78,479,080    4,508,295               


$ 60,703,951    $ 23,035,208    $ 83,739,159    $ 4,194,199               


                                                                                             


Governmental


Total


Business-Type


Activities


Primary Government


Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position


Activities
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Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,835,880     $ 336,182        $ 3,980,591     $ 5,475,707     


Investments 3,006,758     -                    2,012,551     -                    


Receivables, net 657,070        24,064          -                    6,830            


Prepaids 101,621        -                    -                    -                    


$ 7,601,329 $ 360,246 $ 5,993,142 $ 5,482,537


Liabilities


Accounts payable and


accrued liabilities $ 795,155        $ 158               $ 495,353 $ 241,898        


Customer deposits 500               -                    -                    -                    


Advances from other funds -                    -                    -                    -                    


795,655 158               495,353 241,898


Unavailable revenue -


Property taxes 63,711 24,064          -                    -                    


Fines receivable, net 9,261 -                    -                    -                    


Ambulance 28,553 -                    -                    -                    


Railroad Quiet Zone -                    -                    222,450        -                    


Miscellaneous 2,000 -                    -                    -                    


103,525 24,064 222,450 -                    


Nonspendable for:


Prepaids 101,621 -                    -                    -                    


Restricted for:


Debt service -                    336,024        -                    -                    


Capital improvements -                    -                    5,275,339     5,240,639     


Municipal court -                    -                    -                    -                    


Street maintenance -                    -                    -                    -                    


Assigned 54,000 -                    -                    -                    


Unassigned 6,546,528     -                    -                    -                    


6,702,149 336,024 5,275,339 5,240,639


$ 7,601,329 $ 360,246 $ 5,993,142 $ 5,482,537


See Notes to Financial Statements.                                                                     


City of Sachse, Texas
BALANCE SHEET


GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2015


ImpactCapital Debt


Service


Total Liabilities


Assets


Projects


Deferred Inflows of Resources


Total Deferred Inflows


Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows 


of Resources,  and Fund Balances


Total Fund Balances


Fund Balances


Total Assets


FeeGeneral
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$ 28,200          $ 934,627        $ 14,591,187   


-                    -                    5,019,309     


54,378          3,963            746,305        


-                    -                    101,621        


$ 82,578          $ 938,590        $ 20,458,422


$ 28                 $ 45,420          $ 1,578,012     


-                    -                    500               


-                    472,960        472,960        


28 518,380 2,051,472


-                    -                    87,775          


-                    -                    9,261            


-                    -                    28,553          


-                    -                    222,450        


-                    -                    2,000            


-                    -                    350,039


-                    -                    101,621        


-                    -                    336,024        


-                    665,127        11,181,105   


-                    228,043        228,043        


82,550          -                    82,550          


-                    -                    54,000          


-                    (472,960)       6,073,568     


82,550 420,210 18,056,911


$ 82,578          $ 938,590        $ 20,458,422


                                                   


Nonmajor


Street


Total


Governmental


Nonmajor


Maintenance


Governmental


FundsFunds
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Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 18,056,911      


Adjustments for the Statement of Net Position:


Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial


resources and, therefore, not reported in the governmental funds.


Capital assets - non-depreciable 10,341,269


Capital assets - net depreciable 70,658,748


Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period


expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds.


Property tax receivable 87,775


Fines receivable 9,261


EMS and miscellaneous receivables 30,553


Railroad Quiet Zone 222,450


Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies


to a future period(s) and is not recognized as an outflow of resources


(expense/expenditure) until then.


Pension contributions 646,017


Pension investment earnings 165,784


Deferred charge on refunding 1,286,476


Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of insurance to 


individual departments and funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service


funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position. 201,803


Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future


period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.


Pension losses (90,342)


Some liabilities, including bonds payable and deferred charges, 


are not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds.


Accrued interest (260,953)


Bond premium (434,215)


Bond discount 14,354


Non-current liabilities due in one year (1,416,653)


Non-current liabilities due in more than one year (35,956,613)


Net pension liability (2,858,674)


Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 60,703,951


See Notes to Financial Statements.


City of Sachse, Texas
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION


GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2015
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Revenues


Property tax $ 7,787,496     $ 2,999,326       $ -                    $ -                    


Sales tax 1,271,155     -                      -                    -                    


Franchise and local taxes 1,208,204     -                      -                    -                    


License, permits and fees 1,599,504     -                      -                    -                    


Intergovernmental 189,467        -                      486,732        -                    


Grants and donations -                    -                      -                    -                    


Fines and forfeitures 268,459        -                      -                    -                    


Impact and development fees -                    -                      -                    1,655,483     


Investment income 12,269          1,173              12,857 6,773            


Other revenue 51,290          -                      -                    


12,387,844   3,000,499       499,589        1,662,256     


Expenditures


Current:


General government 1,575,622     -                      -                    -                    


Public safety 6,290,725     -                      -                    -                    


Public works 1,781,094     -                      -                    -                    


Culture and recreation 1,269,794     -                      -                    -                    


Community development 673,506        -                      -                    -                    


Nondepartmental 493,412        -                      -                    -                    


Debt Service:


Principal -                    1,195,000       -                    -                    


Interest and fiscal charges -                    1,762,998       -                    -                    


Bond issuance costs -                    177,355          -                    -                    


Capital outlay 232,400        -                      1,583,111 -                    


12,316,553   3,135,353       1,583,111     -                    


71,291          (134,854)         (1,083,522)    1,662,256     


Other Financing Sources (Uses)


Transfers in (out) 539,279        -                      750,000        -                    


Proceeds from bond issuance -                    9,470,000       -                    -                    


Premium on bonds issued -                    458,338          -                    -                    


Payment to escrow agent -                    (9,748,373)      -                    -                    


539,279        179,965          750,000        -                    


610,570 45,111 (333,522) 1,662,256


Beginning fund balances 6,091,579 290,913 5,608,861 3,578,383     


$ 6,702,149     $ 336,024          $ 5,275,339     $ 5,240,639     


See Notes to Financial Statements.                                                                                   


Total Revenues


Ending Fund Balances


Financing Sources (Uses)


Total Expenditures


Over (Under)  Expenditures


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues


Net Change in Fund Balances


Total Other 


Service Projects


City of Sachse, Texas
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE


GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


General


Capital Debt Impact


Fee
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$ -                    $ 141,341 $ 10,928,163   


311,261        -                    1,582,416     


-                    -                    1,208,204     


-                    13,265          1,612,769     


-                    -                    676,199        


-                    34,271          34,271          


-                    190,018        458,477        


-                    2,490            1,657,973     


117 711 33,900          


-                    -                    51,290          


311,378        382,096        18,243,662   


-                    26,368          1,601,990     


-                    6,100            6,296,825     


778               -                    1,781,872     


-                    -                    1,269,794     


-                    -                    673,506        


-                    -                    493,412        


-                    -                    1,195,000     


-                    -                    1,762,998     


-                    -                    177,355        


291,470        -                    2,106,981     


292,248        32,468          17,359,733   


19,130          349,628        883,929        


-                    -                    1,289,279     


-                    -                    9,470,000     


-                    -                    458,338        


-                    -                    (9,748,373)    


-                    -                    1,469,244     


19,130 349,628 2,353,173


63,420          70,582          15,703,738   


$ 82,550          $ 420,210        $ 18,056,911   


                                                            


Nonmajor


Funds Funds


Nonmajor Total


Governmental GovernmentalStreet


Maintenance
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Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are


different because:


Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 2,353,173


Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the


statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated


useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 


Capital outlay 2,092,292


Depreciation expense (3,883,311)


Loss on disposal of asset (12,901)


The effect of capital assets contributed to the City during the current year. 1,745,994


Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial 


resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (6,626)


Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current


financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.


Compensated absences 8,171


Accrued interest (33,261)


Pension expense 49,172


The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases, certificates of obligation)


provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the


repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial 


resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any 


effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance


costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when they are first issued; whereas,


these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.


This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term


debt and related items.


Issuance of debt premium (458,338)


Net change in deferred charges on refunding 1,271,902


Amortization of debt discount (1,109)


Amortization of debt premium 24,123


Net change in bonds payable 130,000


Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of health


insurance to individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities of internal


service funds is reported with governmental activities. 135,315


$ 3,414,596


See Notes to Financial Statements.                     


Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


City of Sachse, Texas
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,


AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE


STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
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Current Assets


Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,767,445 $ 201,828


Restricted cash - customer deposits 220,874 -                    


Receivables, net 2,070,174 -                    


Inventory 16,197 -                    


5,074,690         201,828        


Noncurrent Assets


Advances to other funds 472,960 -                    


Capital assets:


Non-depreciable 805,008 -                    


Net depreciable capital assets 18,832,627 -                    


20,110,595       -                    


25,185,285       201,828        


Deferred Outflows of Resources


Pension contributions 41,235 -                    


Pension investment earnings 10,582 -                    


51,817 -                    


Current Liabilities


Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 922,713 25                 


Accrued interest 6,234 -                    


Customer deposits 221,545 -                    


Compensated absences - current 25,349 -                    


Bonds payable - current 105,000 -                    


1,280,841         25                 


Noncurrent Liabilities


Compensated absences 2,817 -                    


Bonds payable 730,000 -                    


Net pension liability 182,469 -                    


2,196,127         25                 


Deferred Inflows of Resources


Deferred inflows - actual experience vs. assumption 5,767 -                    


Net investment in capital assets 18,802,635       -                    


Unrestricted 4,232,573         201,803        


23,035,208       $ 201,803        


See Notes to Financial Statements.


Total Net Position


Net Position


Total Noncurrent Assets


Total Assets


Liabilities


Total Current Liabilities


Total Liabilities


Total Deferred Outflows


City of Sachse, Texas
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION


PROPRIETARY FUNDS


September 30, 2015


Business-type


Total Current Assets


Water & 


Activities


Governmental


Activities


Internal


Service


FundSewerAssets
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Operating Revenues


Water revenue $ 5,237,988 $ -                      


Sewer revenue 3,660,637 -                      


Connection and tap charges 110,385 -                      


Other revenue 128,559 865,980


9,137,569 865,980          


Operating Expenses


Administration 175,072 -                      


Personnel 463,182 730,831          


Cost of water 2,972,067 -                      


Cost of sewer 2,187,254 -                      


Depreciation 1,403,958 -                      


7,201,533 730,831


1,936,036 135,149


Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)


Investment income 1,970 166                 


Interest expense (37,238)           -                      


(35,268) 166


1,900,768       135,315          


Contributed capital 1,233,994       -                      


Transfers (out) (1,289,279)      -                      


1,845,483 135,315


Beginning net position 21,189,725 66,488            


$ 23,035,208 $ 201,803


See Notes to Financial Statements.


Internal


Business-type


Activities Activities


Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)


Water & 


Sewer


Service


Fund


Ending Net Position


Total Operating Revenues


Total Operating Expenses


Change in Net Position


Operating Income


Income Before Capital Contributions and Transfers


City of Sachse, Texas
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION


PROPRIETARY FUNDS


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


Governmental
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities


Receipts from customers $ 8,332,795          $ 865,980             


Payments to suppliers (4,730,403)         (730,831)            


Payments to employees (640,049)            -                         


2,962,343          135,149             


Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities


Transfers (out) (1,289,279)         -                         


(1,289,279)         -                         


Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities


Capital purchases (269,472)            -                         


Principal paid on debt (100,000)            -                         


Interest paid on debt (37,238)              -                         


(406,710)            -                         


Cash Flows from Investing Activities


Interest on investments 1,970                 166                    


1,970                 166                    


1,268,324          135,315             


Beginning cash and cash equivalents 1,719,995          66,513               


$ 2,988,319          $ 201,828             


Schedule of Non-cash Capital and Related Financing Activities:


Contributions of capital assets $ 1,233,994          $ -                         


See Notes to Financial Statements.


Service


Fund


Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities


Sewer


Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents


Net Cash (Used for) Noncapital Financing Activities


Net Cash (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities


Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents


City of Sachse, Texas
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS


PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Page 1 of 2)


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


 Business-type 


 Activities 


 Governmental 


 Activities 


Water & 


Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities


Internal
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Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)


to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities


Operating Income $ 1,936,036          $ 135,149             


Adjustments to reconcile operating


  income to net cash provided:


Depreciation 1,403,958          -                         


Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:


(Increase) Decrease in:


Accounts receivable (850,123)            -                         


Inventory (9,087)                -                         


Advances 141,341             -                         


Increase (Decrease) in:


Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 296,664             -                         


Compensated absences 1,343                 -                         


Customer deposits 45,349               -                         


Deferred outflows - pension contributions (41,235)              -                         


Deferred outflows - investment earnings (10,582)              -                         


Deferred inflows - pension (gains) losses 5,767                 -                         


Net pension liability 42,912               -                         


$ 2,962,343          $ 135,149             


                                                  


See Notes to Financial Statements.


FundSewer


Water & 


STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS


PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Page 2 of 2)


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015
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Activities


Governmental


City of Sachse, Texas
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I.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES


A. Reporting Entity


The City of Sachse, Texas (the “City”) was incorporated in 1956 under the provisions of 


Chapter 11, Title 28, Texas Revised Civil Statutes of 1925 and has adopted a charter making 


it a home rule city operating under a Council-Manager form of government. The City 


provides such services as are authorized by its charter to advance the welfare, health, 


comfort, safety and convenience of the City and its inhabitants.


The City is an independent political subdivision of the State of Texas governed by an elected 


council and a mayor and is considered a primary government.  As required by generally 


accepted accounting principles, these basic financial statements have been prepared based 


on considerations regarding the potential for inclusion of other entities, organizations, or 


functions as part of the City's financial reporting entity.  The Sachse Economic Development 


Corporation (the “SEDC”) and the PGBT Reinvestment Zone Tax Increment Fund (the 


“TIF”), although legally separate, are considered part of the reporting entity.  No other 


entities have been included in the City's reporting entity.  Additionally, as the City is 


considered a primary government for financial reporting purposes, its activities are not 


considered a part of any other governmental or other type of reporting entity.


Considerations regarding the potential for inclusion of other entities, organizations or 


functions in the City's financial reporting entity are based on criteria prescribed by generally 


accepted accounting principles.  These same criteria are evaluated in considering whether 


the City is a part of any other governmental or other type of reporting entity.  The 


overriding elements associated with prescribed criteria considered in determining that the 


City's financial reporting entity status is that of a primary government are that it has a 


separately elected governing body; it is legally separate; and is fiscally independent of other 


state and local governments.  Additionally prescribed criteria under generally accepted 


accounting principles include considerations pertaining to organizations for which the 


primary government is financially accountable, and considerations pertaining to 


organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary 


government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements 


to be misleading or incomplete.


Blended Component Unit


President George Bush Turnpike (PGBT) Reinvestment Zone Tax Increment Fund


The City created the PGBT Reinvestment Zone Tax Increment Fund (the “TIF”) in 


November 2003 to encourage and accelerate planned development along the George Bush 


Eastern Extension of the Turnpike to the City. The five member Board of Directors are 


appointed by the Sachse City Council and serve for two-year staggered terms. The members 


of the Board are citizens of Sachse. Any future debt obligations issued and backed by the 
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TIF are to be repaid from property tax levies, based on the incremental increase in the real 


property values from the base year 2003.


The TIF Board of Directors acts primarily in an advisory role to the City Council, who 


exercise the ultimate financial control over the recommendations of the TIF board, including 


its budget and expenditures. The financial information of the TIF is blended as a 


governmental fund into the primary government. Separate financial statements are not 


prepared.


Discretely Presented Component Unit


Sachse Economic Development Corporation


The Sachse Economic Development Corporation (the “SEDC”) serves all citizens of the City 


and is governed by a seven member board of directors appointed by the Sachse City 


Council. An Executive Director is appointed by the SEDC seven member board to carry out 


the Board's administrative and policy initiatives. The SEDC is a 4B Corporation and is 


supported by a half-cent sales tax voted by referendum in 1994. The scope of public service 


of the SEDC benefits the government and its citizens and is operated primarily within 


geographic boundaries of the City.


Separate financial statements are not prepared. However, additional financial information 


for the SEDC may be obtained at the entity's administrative offices at the following address: 


Sachse Economic Development Corporation 3815 Sachse Road, Sachse, Texas 75048.


B. Basis of Presentation - Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements


While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are 


interrelated. The governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental 


funds while business-type activities incorporate data from the government’s enterprise 


funds. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and the 


proprietary funds.


As discussed earlier, the government has one discretely presented component unit and is 


shown in separate columns in the government-wide financial statements.


As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-


wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes 


where the amounts are reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided 


and other charges between the government’s water and transit functions and various other 


functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and 


program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.
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The fund financial statements provide information about the government’s funds, including 


its fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund 


category; governmental and proprietary are presented. The emphasis of fund financial 


statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate 


column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as 


nonmajor funds. Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as 


separate columns in the fund financial statements.


The government reports the following governmental funds:


General Fund 


The general fund is used to account for all financial transactions not properly includable 


in other funds.  The principal sources of revenues include local property taxes, sales and 


franchise taxes, licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures, and charges for services.  


Expenditures include general government, public safety, public works, culture and 


recreation, community development, and nondepartmental. This fund is considered to 


be a major fund.


Debt Service Fund 


The debt service fund is used to account for the payment of interest and principal on all 


general obligation bonds and other long-term debt of governmental funds.  The primary 


source of revenue for debt service is local property taxes. This fund is considered to be a 


major fund.


Capital Projects Fund 


The capital projects fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of the 


government’s major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds.


This fund is considered to be a major fund.


Impact Fee Fund 


The impact fee fund accounts for impact fees collected for specific projects related to 


development within the City. This fund is considered to be a major fund.


Street Maintenance Fund


The street maintenance fund is used to account for a sales tax restricted for street 


maintenance. The fund is not considered to be a major fund, however management has 


chosen to present the fund as a major fund.
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Special Revenue Fund


The special revenue fund is used to account for proceeds of specific revenue sources that 


are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. Revenue sources for this 


fund include donations, fines and fees, and grants. This fund is considered nonmajor for 


reporting purposes.


PGBT Reinvestment Zone Tax Increment Fund


The PGBT Reinvestment Zone Tax Increment Fund was created to encourage and 


accelerate planned development along the George Bush Eastern Extension of the 


Turnpike to the City. The fund accounts for all tax and expenditure activity associated 


with the fund’s primary purpose. This fund is considered nonmajor for reporting 


purposes.


The government reports the following major enterprise fund:


Water & Sewer Fund 


This fund is used to account for the provision of water and sewer services to the residents 


of the City. Activities of the fund include administration, operations and maintenance of 


the water production and distribution system, water collection and treatment systems. 


The fund also accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of long-


term debt. All costs are financed through charges to utility customers.


The government reports the following internal service fund:


Health Insurance Fund


This fund is used to account for health insurance benefits provided to City employees.


During the course of operations the government has activity between funds for various 


purposes. Any residual balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other 


funds and advances to/from other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial 


statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide 


financial statements. Balances between the funds included in governmental activities (i.e., 


the governmental and internal service funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is 


included as internal balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances 


between the funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are 


eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the business-type 


activities column.
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Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between 


funds. In fund financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers


in/out. While reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the 


preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Transfers between the funds 


included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included 


as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds 


included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as


transfers in the business-type activities column.


C. Measurement focus and basis of accounting


The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable 


measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of 


resources being measured such as current financial resources or economic resources. The basis 


of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial 


statements.


The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 


measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned 


and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related 


cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. 


Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 


imposed by the provider have been met.


The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources


measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as 


soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available 


when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay 


liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be 


available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. 


Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 


accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 


compensated absences, and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 


General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 


Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other 


financing sources.


Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current 


fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as 


revenues of the current fiscal period. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all 


eligibility requirements are met, including any time requirements, and the amount is 


received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 


60 days of year end). Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the 
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qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been 


met, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this


revenue source (within 60 days of year end). All other revenue items are considered to be 


measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.


The proprietary, pension and other postemployment benefit trust, and private-purpose trust 


funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 


accounting. Agency funds have no measurement focus but utilize the accrual basis of 


accounting for reporting its assets and liabilities.


D. Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity or Net Position


1. Deposits and Investments


The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits 


and short term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 


acquisition.  For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary fund types 


consider temporary investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased to 


be cash equivalents.


In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Reporting for Certain Investments 


and External Investment Pools, the City reports all investments at fair value, except for 


“money market investments” and “2a7-like pools.”  Money market investments, which are 


short-term highly liquid debt instruments that may include U.S. Treasury and agency 


obligations, are reported at amortized costs.  Investment positions in external investment 


pools that are operated in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the Investment 


Company Act of 1940, such as TexPool, are reported using the pools’ share price.


The City has adopted a written investment policy regarding the investment of its funds as 


defined in the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, of the Texas Governmental Code.  


In summary, the City is authorized to invest in the following:


Direct obligations of the U.S. Government


Fully collateralized certificates of deposit and money market accounts


Statewide investment pools


2. Receivables and Interfund Transactions


Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 


outstanding at the end of the year are referred to as either “interfund receivables/payables” 


(i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-


current portion of interfund loans).  All other outstanding balances between funds are 


reported as “due to/from other funds” in the fund financial statements.  If the transactions 
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are between the primary government and its component unit, these receivables and 


payables are classified as “due to/from component unit/primary government.”  Any residual


balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are 


reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”


Advances between funds are offset by a nonspendable fund balance account in the


applicable governmental fund to indicate they are not available for appropriation and are 


not expendable available financial resources.


All trade receivables are shown net of any allowance for uncollectible amounts.


3. Inventories and Prepaid Items


The costs of governmental fund type inventories are recorded as expenditures when the 


related liability is incurred, (i.e., the purchase method).  The inventories are valued at the 


lower of cost or market using the first-in/first-out method. Certain payments to vendors 


reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods (prepaid expenditures) are recognized 


as expenditures when utilized (the consumption method). 


4. Capital Assets


Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., 


roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or 


business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital 


assets are defined by the government, as assets with an initial individual cost of more than 


$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets are recorded at 


historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital 


assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.  Major outlays for 


capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.


Interest costs incurred in connection with construction of enterprise fund capital assets are 


capitalized when the effects of capitalization materially impact the financial statements.


The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 


materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.
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Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, 


are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful years. 


Asset Description


Estimated 


Useful Life


Vehicles 5 to 10 years


Machinery and equipment 5 to 10 years


Infrastructure 5 to 30 years


Buildings and improvements 25 years


5. Net Position Flow Assumption


Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted


(e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the 


amounts to report as restricted – net position and unrestricted – net position in the 


government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be 


made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the 


government’s policy to consider restricted – net position to have been depleted before 


unrestricted – net position is applied.


6. Fund Balance Flow Assumptions


Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted 


and unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). 


In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and 


unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption 


must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the 


government’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using 


any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of 


unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is 


depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.


The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount.  


In other governmental funds it is not appropriate to report a positive unassigned fund 


balance amount.  However, in governmental funds other than the general fund, if 


expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts that are restricted, 


committed, or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative 


unassigned fund balance in the fund.
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7. Fund Balance Policies


Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature 


of any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself 


can establish limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed 


fund balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).


The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the 


specific purposes determined by a formal action of the government’s highest level of 


decision-making authority. The governing council is the highest level of decision-making 


authority for the government that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the 


fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance 


remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to 


remove or revise the limitation.


Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the 


government for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. 


The governing body (council) has by resolution authorized the finance director to assign 


fund balance. The council may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund 


balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent 


year’s appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist 


temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the 


removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential


to either remove or revise a commitment.


The government has adopted a policy to maintain a minimum reserve of an amount equal to


or greater than 25% of operating expenditures. The utility fund working capital should be 


maintained at a minimum of 20-25% of the total operating expenditures or the equivalent of 


75 days. The debt service fund reserve is maintained at a level to support interest and 


principal payments in the event of a delay in property tax collections. 


8. Long-Term Obligations


In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term 


obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities statement of 


net position. The long-term debt consists primarily of bonds payable and accrued 


compensated absences.


Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial 


statements until due. The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources, net of the 


applicable premium or discount and payments of principal and interest reported as 


expenditures.  In the governmental fund types, issuance costs, even if withheld from the 


actual net proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.  However, claims 
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and judgments paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund 


financial statements only for the portion expected to be financed from expendable available 


financial resources.


Long-term debt and other obligations, financed by proprietary funds, are reported as 


liabilities in the appropriate funds.  For proprietary fund types, bond premiums, discounts 


and issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective 


interest method, if material.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond 


premium or discount.  Issuance costs are reported as deferred charges.


Assets acquired under the terms of capital leases are recorded as liabilities and capitalized 


in the government-wide financial statements at the present value of net minimum lease 


payments at inception of the lease.  In the year of acquisition, capital lease transactions are 


recorded as other financing sources and as capital outlay expenditures in the general fund.  


Lease payments representing both principal and interest are recorded as expenditures in the 


general fund upon payment with an appropriate reduction of principal recorded in the 


government-wide financial statements.


9. Estimates


The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting 


principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 


amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 


of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 


expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those 


estimates.


E. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses


1. Program Revenues


Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who 


purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given 


function or segment and 2) grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are 


restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 


segment. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes, and other internally 


dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.


2. Property Taxes


Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 


for all real and business personal property in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax 


Code. Taxes are due on receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 
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1 of the year following the year in which imposed. Under state law, property taxes levied on 


real property constitute a lien on the real property which cannot be forgiven without


specific approval of the State Legislature. The lien expires at the end of twenty years. Taxes


levied on personal property can be deemed uncollectible by the City.


3. Compensated Absences


City employees earn vacation and sick leave, which may either be taken or accumulated, up 


to certain amounts, until retirement or termination. Once per year, employees with 


accumulations greater than 40 hours may redeem 3 days of sick and vacation leave. Upon 


termination or retirement, an employee is reimbursed up to a maximum number of hours of


unused vacation pay based upon the years of service. Sick leave is not paid at termination or 


retirement. All vacation and qualifying sick leave is accrued when incurred in the 


government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is 


reported in governmental funds only if they are expected to be liquidated with expendable 


available financial resources, for example, as a result of employee resignations and 


retirements. Vested or accumulated vacation leave and compensated leave of government-


wide and proprietary funds are recognized as an expense and liability of those funds as the 


benefits accrue to employees.


It is the City's policy to liquidate compensated absences with future revenues rather than 


with currently available expendable resources. Accordingly, the City's governmental funds 


recognize accrued compensated absences when it is paid.


4. Proprietary Funds Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses


Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 


Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing 


and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. 


The principal operating revenues of the water and sewer fund are charges to customers for 


sales and services. The water and sewer fund also recognizes as operating revenue the 


portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. 


Operating expenses for enterprise fund includes the cost of sales and services, 


administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not 


meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.


II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the 


government-wide statement of net position.


The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance-total 


governmental funds and net position-governmental activities as reported in the government-
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wide statement of net position.  One element of that reconciliation explains that long-term 


liabilities, including bonds, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are 


not reported in the funds.


B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, 


expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of 


activities.


The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 


includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances – total governmental funds 


and changes in net position of governmental states that, “the issuance of long-term debt 


(e.g., bonds) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the 


repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of 


governmental funds.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, 


and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and 


amortized in the statement of activities.”  


III.  STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY


Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 


principles (GAAP) for the general, debt service, SEDC, special revenue, and utility funds.


The original budget is adopted by the City Council prior to the beginning of the year.  The 


legal level of control as defined by the City Charter is the department level. No funds can be 


transferred or added to a budgeted item without Council approval.  Appropriations lapse at 


the end of the year. Three supplemental budget appropriations were made during the year. 


A. Expenditures Over Appropriations


For the year ended, expenditures exceeded appropriations at the legal level of control and 


as follows:


General Fund:


City manager $3,057


Animal control $756


Streets $49,173


Facility maintenance $7,368


Parks and recreation $21,607


Debt Service Fund


Bond issuance costs $177,355
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Street Maintenance Fund:


Streets               $778


Capital outlay $9,470


The City has implemented procedures to ensure budgetary compliance. No expenditure can 


be made unless there is a budget available or an approved budget amendment has been 


submitted. Department head and management will review the budget variances on a 


regular basis and the budget will be amended if necessary. 


B. Deficit Fund Equity


At September 30, 2015, the PGBT Reinvestment Zone TIF, a nonmajor fund, has a deficit 


fund balance of $472,960. The deficit will be eliminated in the future with development of 


the zone and issuance of new debt.


IV.  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 


A.  Deposits and Investments


As of September 30, 2015, the primary government had the following investments:


Investment Type


Certificates of deposit $ 5,019,309 0.55


Weighted 


Average Maturity


Fair Value  (Years)


As of September 30, 2015, the Sachse EDC had the following investments:


Investment Type


Certificates of deposit $ 1,003,382 0.25


Weighted 


Average Maturity


Fair Value  (Years)


Interest rate risk  In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to 


declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average of maturity not to exceed five years; 


structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for 


ongoing operations; monitoring credit ratings of portfolio position to assure compliance 


with rating requirements imposed by the Public Funds Investment Act;  and invest 


operating funds primarily in short-term securities or similar government investment pools.


Credit risk  The City’s investment policy limits investments to obligations of the United 


States, State of Texas, or their agencies and instrumentalities with an investment quality 
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rating of not less than “A” or its equivalent, by a nationally recognized investment rating 


firm. Other obligations must be unconditionally guaranteed (either express or implied) by 


the full faith and credit of the United States Government or the issuing U.S. agency and 


investment pools with an investment quality not less than AAA or AAA-m, or equivalent, 


by at least one nationally recognized rating service. As of September 30, 2015, the City’s 


investment in TexPool was rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s.  


Custodial credit risk – deposits  In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a 


bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned to it.  State statutes require that all 


deposits in financial institutions be insured or fully collateralized by U.S. government 


obligations or its agencies and instrumentalities or direct obligations of Texas or its agencies 


and instrumentalities that have a market value of not less than the principal amount of the 


deposits. As of September 30, 2015, the market values of pledged securities and FDIC 


exceeded bank balances. 


Custodial credit risk – investments  For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the 


failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments 


or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The City’s investment 


policy requires that it will seek to safekeeping securities at financial institutions, avoiding 


physical possession.  Further, all trades, where applicable, are executed by delivery versus 


payment to ensure that securities are deposited in the City’s safekeeping account prior to 


the release of funds.  


TexPool


TexPool was established as a trust company with the Treasurer of the State of Texas as 


trustee, segregated from all other trustees, investments, and activities of the trust company.  


The State Comptroller of Public Accounts exercises oversight responsibility over TexPool.  


Oversight includes the ability to significantly influence operations, designation of 


management, and accountability for fiscal matters.  Additionally, the State Comptroller has 


established an advisory board composed of both participants in TexPool and other persons 


who do not have a business relationship with TexPool.  The advisory board members 


review the investment policy and management fee structure.  Finally, Standard & Poor’s 


rate TexPool AAAm.  As a requirement to maintain the rating, weekly portfolio information 


must be submitted to Standard & Poor’s, as well as to the office of the Comptroller of Public 


Accounts for review.
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B. Receivables


The following comprise receivable balances of the primary government at year end:


Property taxes $ 63,711 $ 24,064 $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ 87,775       


Sales tax 224,124 -                  -                  54,378       -                  -                  278,502    


Franchise taxes 266,541 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  266,541    


Fines 183,058 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  183,058    


EMS 109,820 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  109,820    


Accounts -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  1,892,215 1,892,215


Other 30,055 -                  6,830         -                  3,963         215,877 256,725    


Allowance (220,239)   -                  -                  -                  -                  (37,918)     (258,157)   


$ 657,070 $ 24,064 $ 6,830 $ 54,378 $ 3,963 $ 2,070,174 $ 2,816,479


General Debt Service Revenue Sewer TotalMaintenanceFee


Special Water & StreetImpact


C. Capital Assets


A summary of changes in governmental activities capital assets for the year end was as 


follows:


Capital assets, not being depreciated:


Land $ 8,754,454      $ 140,824         $ -                       $ 8,895,278


Construction in progress 1,284,365      1,228,102      (1,066,476)       1,445,991


10,038,819 1,368,926 (1,066,476) 10,341,269


Capital assets, being depreciated:


Buildings and improvements 20,092,503    8,725             -                       20,101,228


Vehicles and equipment 7,432,574      366,778         24,869             7,824,221


Infrastructure 113,022,790  2,093,857      1,014,542        116,131,189


140,547,867 2,469,360 1,039,411 144,056,638


Less accumulated depreciation


Buildings and improvements 4,648,549      827,368         -                       5,475,917


Vehicles and equipment 5,106,982      446,546         (14,164)            5,539,364


Infrastructure 59,773,212    2,609,397      -                       62,382,609


Total accumulated depreciation 69,528,743 3,883,311 (14,164)            73,397,890


Net capital assets being depreciated 71,019,124    (1,413,951)    1,053,575        70,658,748    


$ 81,057,943    $ (45,025)         $ (12,901)            $ 81,000,017    


Beginning Decreases/ Ending


Balances Increases


Total Capital Assets


Total capital assets not being depreciated


Total capital assets being depreciated


BalancesReclassifications
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Depreciation was charged to governmental functions as follows:


General government $ 448,803        


Public safety 518,425        


Public works 2,630,343     


Culture and recreation 285,740        


$ 3,883,311Total Governmental Activities Depreciation Expense


A summary of changes in business-type activities capital assets for the year end was as 


follows:


Capital assets, not being depreciated:


Land $ 346,821         $ -                    $ -                         $ 346,821         


Construction in progress 449,062         67,058           (57,933)              458,187         


Total capital assets not being depreciated 795,883 67,058 (57,933)              805,008


Capital assets, being depreciated:


Buildings and improvements 313,503         -                    -                         313,503         


Vehicles and equipment 1,019,450      17,959           -                         1,037,409      


Infrastructure 42,748,003    1,418,542      57,933               44,224,478    


Total capital assets being depreciated 44,080,956 1,436,501      57,933               45,575,390


Less accumulated depreciation


Buildings and improvements 251,377         5,351             -                         256,728         


Vehicles and equipment 900,123         32,401           -                         932,524         


Infrastructure 24,187,305    1,366,206      -                         25,553,511    


Total accumulated depreciation 25,338,805 1,403,958 -                         26,742,763


Net capital assets being depreciated 18,742,151    32,543           57,933               18,832,627    


$ 19,538,034    $ 99,601           $ -                         $ 19,637,635    


Reclassifications Balances


Decreases/ EndingBeginning


Total Capital Assets


Balances Increases


Depreciation was charged to business-type activities as follows:


Water $ 825,084


Sewer 578,874


$ 1,403,958Total Business-Type Activities Depreciation Expense
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D. Long-term Debt


The following is a summary of changes in the City’s total governmental long-term 


liabilities for the year ended. In general, the City uses the debt service fund to liquidate 


governmental long-term liabilities.


Governmental Activities:


Bonds, notes and other


payables:


General Obligation Bonds $ 36,575,000    $ 9,470,000     $ (9,130,000)    $ 36,915,000     $ 1,325,000       


Discount (15,463)          -                    1,109            (14,354)           -                      


Premium -                     458,338        (24,123)         434,215          -                      


Certificates of Obligation 470,000 -                    (470,000)       -                      -                      


Other liabilities:


Compensated absences 466,437         86,223          (74,394)         478,266          91,653            


$ 37,495,974    $ 10,014,561   $ (9,697,408)    $ 37,813,127     $ 1,416,653       


Long-term liabilities due in more than one year $ 36,396,474


Business-Type Activities:


Bonds, notes and other


payables:


Certificates of Obligation $ 935,000         $ -                    $ (100,000)       $ 835,000          $ 105,000          


Other liabilities:


Compensated absences 26,823           10,565          (9,223) 28,165            25,349            


$ 961,823         $ 10,565          $ (109,223)       $ 863,165          $ 130,349          


Long-term liabilities due in more than one year $ 732,816


Component Unit


Other liabilities:


Compensated absences $ 453                $ 762               $ -                    $ 1,215              $ 1,094              


$ 453                $ 762               $ -                    $ 1,215              $ 1,094              


Long-term liabilities due in more than one year $ 121                 


Amounts


Reductions


Ending


Balance


Due within


One Year


Total Component Unit


Total Business-Type Activities


Additions


Total Governmental Activities


Beginning


Balance


Long-term liabilities applicable to the City’s governmental activities are not due and 


payable in the current period and accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities in the 


governmental funds.  Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but 


rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. The City intends to retire all of its 


general long-term liabilities, plus accrued interest, from property taxes and other current 







City of Sachse, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued


September 30, 2015


64


revenues from the debt service fund as has been done in prior years. The business-type


long-term debt will be repaid, plus accrued interest, from operating revenues of the water 


and sewer fund. The general fund has typically been used to liquidate the liability for 


compensated absences for governmental activities.


Long-term debt at year end was comprised of the following debt issues:


Interest


Rates


Governmental Activities:


2007 General obligation improvement bonds 4.0-4.15% $ 6,130,000 $ 4,535,000


2009 General obligation refunding and improvement bonds 2.20-5.88% 34,560,000 22,910,000


2015 General obligation refunding and improvement bonds 2.0-4.0% 9,470,000 9,470,000


Total General Obligation Bonds 50,160,000 36,915,000


Business-type Activities:


2007 Certificates of obligation 3.72 - 4.5% $ 1,530,000 $ 835,000


$ 1,530,000 $ 835,000


Current


Description Balance


Total Business-Type Activities


Original


Balance
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The annual requirements to amortize governmental activities debt issues outstanding at 


year ending were as follows:


Year ending


September 30, 


2016 $ 1,325,000          $ 2,020,764          


2017 1,400,000          1,976,017          


2018 1,460,000          1,927,783          


2019 1,555,000          1,874,889          


2020 1,620,000          1,815,133          


2021 1,685,000          1,748,614          


2022 1,765,000          1,672,470          


2023 1,850,000          1,587,570          


2024 1,940,000          1,498,364          


2025 2,030,000          1,404,158          


2026 2,130,000          1,304,808          


2027 2,235,000          1,199,183          


2028 2,350,000          1,086,781          


2029 2,010,000          977,349             


2030 80,000               870,550             


2031 4,260,000          740,625             


2032 2,315,000          552,738             


2033 2,400,000          331,909             


2034 2,505,000          112,031             


Total $ 36,915,000        $ 24,701,732        


Governmental Activities


General Obligation Bonds


InterestPrincipal
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The annual requirements to amortize business-type activities debt issues outstanding at 


year ending were as follows:


Year ending


September 30, 


2016 $ 105,000             $ 33,194               


2017 110,000             28,915               


2018 115,000             24,358               


2019 115,000             19,585               


2020 125,000             14,483               


2021 130,000             8,935                 


2022 135,000             3,038                 


Total $ 835,000             $ 132,507             


Business-Type Activities


Certificates of Obligation


Principal Interest


E.  Advanced Refunding Bond


The City issued $9,470,000 in bonds with interest rates ranging from 2.0-4.0%. The proceeds 


were used to refund $470,000 of outstanding 2003 Combined Tax & Revenue certificates of 


obligations which had an interest rate of 3.9 – 4.2%, and to refund $8,045,000 of outstanding 


2009 general refunding and improvement bonds which had an interest rate of 5.88%. The 


net proceeds of $9,748,373 (including a $458,338 premium and after payment of $177,355 in 


underwriting fees and other issuance costs) were used to refund the original bond holders. 


As a result, the liability for those bonds has been removed from the statement of net 


position. The difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the 


old debt is $1,343,373. This difference is being charged to operations through the year 2034 


using the effective-interest method. The result is a reduction in total debt service payments 


over 19 years of $2,004,645 and to obtain an economic gain of $1,478,609.


F. Deferred Charges on Refunding


Deferred charges resulting from the issuance of series 2010 and 2015 general obligation 


refunding and improvement bonds have been recorded as deferred outflows of resources 


and are being amortized to interest expense over the shorter of either the remaining term 


of the refunded debt or the refunding certificates of obligation. Current year balances for 


governmental activities totaled $1,286,476. Current year amortization expense for 


governmental activities totaled $71,471.
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G. Interfund Transactions 


Transfers between the primary government funds during the 2015 year were as follows:


Capital Projects $ 750,000           General
Water & Sewer General            1,289,279


Total $         2,039,279


Transfer Out Transfer In Amount


Transfers from the water and sewer fund were made for operations support costs borne by 


the general fund. Transfers from the general fund to the capital projects fund were made 


for construction projects. 


The compositions of interfund balances as of year end were as follows:  


PGBT Reinvestment Zone


Water & Sewer $ - $ 472,960             


Water & Sewer


PGBT Reinvestment Zone 472,960             -


$ 472,960 $ 472,960


Other Funds Other FundsFunds


Advances to Advances from


The purpose of interfund receivables and payables is to loan cash between funds. All 


balances are expected to be settled with issuance of new debt.
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H. Restricted Net Position


The City records restricted net position to indicate that a portion is legally restricted for a 


specific future use.


The following is a list of restricted net position of the City:


Restricted for:


Debt service $ 336,024 $ -


Capital improvements 11,181,105 -


* Municipal court 228,043 -


* Street maintenance 82,550 -


Economic development - 4,194,199       


Total $ 11,827,722    $ 4,194,199       


* Restricted by enabling legislation


Governmental Sachse


Activities EDC


V.  OTHER INFORMATION


A. Risk Management


The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and 


destruction of assets, errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City 


participates along with over 2,800 other entities in the Texas Municipal League’s 


Intergovernmental Risk Pools.  The Pool purchases commercial insurance at group rates for 


participants in the Pool.  The City has no additional risk or responsibility to the Pool outside 


of the payment of insurance premiums.  The City has not significantly reduced insurance 


coverage or had settlements which exceeded coverage amounts for the past three years.


B. Contingent Liabilities


Amounts received or receivable from granting agencies are subject to audit and adjustment 


by grantor agencies, principally the federal government.  Any disallowed claims, including 


amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.  The amounts 


of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time 


although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
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GASB 62 defines probability of loss contingencies as the following:


Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur.


Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than 


remote but less than likely.


Remote. The chance of the future event or events occurring is slight.


Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the 


loss can be reasonably estimated.  Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been 


incurred but not reported.  Claim liabilities are calculated considering the effects of 


inflation, recent claim settlement trends, including frequency and amount of payouts, and 


other economic and social factors.


The City is currently involved in a lawsuit with estimated damage claims in excess of $10 


million dollars. The City estimates it has a 70% chance of prevailing in this case and that this 


loss contingency is reasonably possible, but not probable.


C. Construction Commitments


The government has active construction projects as of September 30, 2015. The projects 


include street construction and improvements and the construction of additional water lines 


and repairs. At year end the government’s commitments with contractors are as follows:


Project


Government Activities:


Sachse Quiet Zone $ 275,426 $ 48,570


Roanch Road - Harlan to Clearmeadow 588,333 34,439


P-25 Digital Radio Upgrade -                                342,981


Total $ 863,759 $ 425,990


Remaining


Spent-to-Date Commitment


D. Pension Plans


1.   Texas Municipal Retirement Systems


Plan Description


The City of Sachse participates as one of 860 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, 


hybrid defined benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement 


System (TMRS). TMRS is an agency created by the State of Texas and administered in 


accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act) 


as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal employees in the State of 


Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management of the System 
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with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although the Governor, with the advice and consent 


of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. 


TMRS’s defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 (a) of the 


Internal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial 


report (CAFR) that can be obtained at www.tmrs.com.


All eligible employees of the city are required to participate in TMRS.


2. Benefits Provided


TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by 


the governing body of the city, within the options available in the state statutes governing 


TMRS.


At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions, with 


interest, and the city-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an 


annuity. Members may choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payments 


options. Members may also choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump 


Sum Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot 


exceed 75% of the member’s deposits and interest.


The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options 


available in the state statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows:


Plan Year 2014 Plan Year 2015


Employee deposit rate 7.0% 7.0%


Matching ratio (city to 


employee)


2 to 1 2 to 1


Years required for vesting 5 5


Service retirement eligibility


(expressed as age / years of


service)


60/5, 0/20 60/5, 0/20


Updated service credit 100% Repeating Transfers 100% Repeating Transfers


Annuity increase (to retirees) 70% of CPI 70% of CPI 
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Employees covered by benefit terms


At the December 31, 2014 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were 


covered by the benefit terms:


Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 46


Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 104


Active employees 130


Total 280


3.  Contributions


The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross 


earnings, and the city matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as 


adopted by the governing body of the City. Under the state law governing TMRS, the 


contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age 


Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated 


amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with 


an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.


Employees for the City of Sachse were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross 


earnings during the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City of Sachse were 11.77% 


and 13.22% in calendar years 2014 and 2015, respectively. The City’s contributions to TMRS 


for the year ended September 30, 2015, were $891,511, and were equal to the required 


contributions.


4.  Net Pension Liability


The city’s Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2014, and the Total 


Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an 


actuarial valuation as of that date.


Actuarial assumptions:


The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation was determined 


using the following actuarial assumptions:


Inflation 3.0% per year


Overall payroll growth 3.0% per year


Investment Rate of Return 7.0%, net of pension plan investment expense, including 


                                                               inflation
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Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, 


retirees, and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy 


Mortality Table, with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. 


The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future 


mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000 Disabled 


Retiree Mortality Table is used, with slight adjustments.


Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2014, valuation were based on the results 


of actuarial experience studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period January 1, 


2006 through December 31, 2009, first used in the December 31, 2010 valuation. Healthy 


post-retirement mortality rates and annuity purchase rates were updated based on a 


Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011, and dated December 


31, 2013. These assumptions were first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation, along with 


a change to the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. Assumptions are reviewed


annually. No additional changes were made for the 2014 valuation.


The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 7.0%. The pension 


plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be 


amended by the TMRS Board of Trustees. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis 


with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production of income, in order 


to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS.


The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 


building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 


(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for 


each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 


return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 


percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of 


arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following 


table:


Asset Class Target Allocation Long-Term Expected Real 


Rate of Return (Arithmetic)


Domestic Equity 17.5% 4.80%


International Equity 17.5% 6.05%


Core Fixed Income 30.0% 1.50%


Non-Core Fixed Income 10.0% 3.50%


Real Return 5.0% 1.75%


Real Estate 10.0% 5.25%


Absolute Return 5.0% 4.25%


Private Equity 5.0% 8.50%


   Total 100.0%
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Discount Rate:


The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 7.0%. The projection of 


cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer 


contributions will be made at the rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the 


pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make all projected 


future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term 


expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 


benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability.


Changes in the Net Pension Liability:


Total Pension 


Liability (a)


Plan Fiduciary 


Net Position (b)


Net Pension 


Liability (a) – (b)


Balance at 12/31/13 $              20,149,655 $              17,249,295 $               2,900,360 


Changes for the year:


   Service Cost               1,042,550                           -                 1,042,550 


   Interest               1,430,625                           -                 1,430,625 


   Difference between expected and     


   actual experience                 (127,842)                           -                   (127,842)


   Contributions – employer                           -                    770,437                 (770,437)


   Contributions – employee                           -                    458,268                 (458,268)


   Net investment income                           -                    986,994                 (986,994)


   Benefit payments, including 


   refunds of emp. contributions                 (466,852)                 (466,852)                           -   


   Administrative expense                           -                     (10,302)                    10,302 


   Other changes                           -                         (847)                         847 


     Net changes               1,878,481               1,737,698                  140,783 


Balance at 12/31/14 $              22,028,136 $              18,986,993 $               3,041,143 


Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate:


The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount 


rate of 7.0%, as well as what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated 


using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.0%) or 1-percentage-point higher 


(8.0%) than the current rate:


1% Decrease Current Single Rate 1% Increase


6.00% Assumption 7.00% 8.00% 


$ 6,862,083                $ 3,041,143                $ (9,490)                      
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position:


Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a 


separately-issued TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at 


www.tmrs.com.


5.  Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 


     Resources Related to Pensions


At September 30, 2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 


inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:


Differences between expected and 


actual economic experience $ -                                    $ 96,109                           


Difference between projected and 


investment earnings 176,366                         -                                    


Contributions subsequent to the 


measurement date 687,252                         -                                    


   Total $ 863,618                         $ 96,109                           


Deferred 


Outflows of Resources


Deferred 


Inflows of Resources


The City reported $687,252 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting 


from contributions subsequent to the measurement date that will be recognized as a 


reduction of the net pension liability for the year ending September 30, 2016. Other amounts 


reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be 


recognized in pension expense as follows:


Year ended


September 30:


2015 $ 12,358        


2016 12,358        


2017 12,358        


2018 43,183        


Thereafter $ -                  


Total 80,257        


Supplemental Death Benefits Fund


The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term 


life insurance plan operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as 
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the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by ordinance, to provide 


group-term life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The City may 


terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an 


ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1. 


The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal 


to the employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings, for the 


12-month period preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; 


this coverage is an “other postemployment benefit,” or OPEB.


The City offers supplemental death to: Plan Year 2014 Plan Year 2015


Active employees (yes or no) Yes Yes


Retirees (yes or no) Yes Yes


The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an 


annual actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life 


insurance. The funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are 


available to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to pre-


fund retiree term life insurance during employees’ entire careers. 


The City’s contributions to the TMRS SDBF for the years ended 2015, 2014 and 2013 were 


$2,059, $1,936 and $1,334, respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year.


Schedule of Contribution Rates


(RETIREE-only portion of the rate)


Plan/


Calendar Year


Annual Required 


Contribution


(Rate)


Actual Contribution 


Made


(Rate)


Percentage of ARC 


Contributed


2013 0.01% 0.01% 100.0%


2014 0.02% 0.02% 100.0%


2015 0.02% 0.02% 100.0%
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E. Restatement 


The City has restated beginning fund balance/net position within governmental and 


business type activities due to the adoption of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and 


Financial Reporting for Pensions and to correct accumulated depreciation on capital assets.


The restatement of beginning net position/fund balance is as follows:


Prior year ending net position


fund balance as reported $ 5,902,418        $ 59,326,916      $ 21,329,282      $ 21,335,154      


Change in presentation of internal service fund - 5,872               - (5,872)              


Adoption of GASB 68 - (2,186,387)       (139,557)          (139,557)          


Correction of construction in project item (293,557)          - - -


Correction of accumulated depreciation - 142,954           - -


$ 5,608,861        $ 57,289,355      $ 21,189,725      $ 21,189,725      Restated beginning net position/fund balance


Governmental


Activities


Water &


Sewer


Business-Type


Activities


Capital Projects


Fund


F. Subsequent Events


There were no material subsequent events through February 16, 2016, the date the 


financial statements were issued.
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Revenues


Property tax $ 7,700,541     $ 7,700,541     $ 7,787,496     $ 86,955          


Sales tax 1,184,444     1,184,444     1,271,155     86,711          


Franchise and local taxes 1,096,073     1,174,073     1,208,204     34,131          


License, permits and fees 1,138,547     1,138,547     1,599,504     460,957        


Intergovernmental 173,852        173,852        189,467        15,615          


Fines and forfeitures 250,000        250,000        268,459        18,459          


Investment income 5,000            5,000            12,269          7,269            


Other revenue 34,875          54,875          51,290          (3,585)           


11,583,332   11,681,332   12,387,844   706,512        


Expenditures


Current:


General government


City manager 345,708        407,133        410,190        (3,057)           *


City secretary 169,012        189,827        173,718        16,109          


Human resources 292,304        292,304        274,796        17,508          


Finance 552,435        561,910        543,496        18,414          


Municipal court 185,400        185,400        173,422        11,978          


Public safety


Police 3,718,914     3,604,414     3,574,585     29,829          


Animal control 177,471        177,471        178,227        (756)              *


Fire and ambulance 2,569,257     2,569,257     2,537,913     31,344          


Public works


Streets 1,057,273     1,065,773     1,114,946     (49,173)         *


Facility maintenance 358,647        378,647        386,015        (7,368)           *


City engineer 290,568        290,568        280,133        10,435          


Culture and recreation


Parks and recreation 873,087        853,087        874,694        (21,607)         *


Seniors 115,061        117,561        115,741        1,820            


Library services 277,083        286,608        279,359        7,249            


Community development 677,969        701,469        673,506        27,963          


Nondepartmental 531,690        531,690        493,412        38,278          


Capital outlay 227,300        288,300        232,400        55,900          


12,419,179   12,501,419   12,316,553   184,866        


(835,847)       (820,087)       71,291          891,378        


Original 


Budget


Revenues Over (Under) 


2015


Final Budget


Total Expenditures


Actual (Negative)


Total Revenues


City of Sachse, Texas


Final Budget


Positive


GENERAL FUND (Page 1 of 2)


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


Variance with


SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES


IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
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Transfers in 1,239,193     1,239,193     1,289,279     50,086          


Transfers (out) (300,000)       (750,000)       (750,000)       -                    


939,193        489,193        539,279        50,086          


Net Change in Fund Balance $ 103,346        $ (330,894)       610,570        $ 941,464        


Beginning fund balance 6,091,579


$ 6,702,149


Notes to Required Supplementary Information


City of Sachse, Texas


GENERAL FUND (Page 2 of 2)


IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


Ending Fund Balance


SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES


Final Budget


Positive


Total Other Financing Sources 


(Uses)


Variance with


Final Budget


Original 


Budget


1. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).


* 2. Expenditures exceeded appropriations at the legal level of control.


2015


Actual (Negative)


Other Financing Sources (Uses)
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1


Total pension liability


Service cost $ 1,042,550   


Interest 1,430,625   


Changes in benefit terms -                  


Differences between expected and actual experience (127,842)     


Changes of assumptions -                  


Benefit payments, including refunds of participant contributions (466,852)     


Net change in total pension liability 1,878,481   


Total pension liability - beginning $ 20,149,655


Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 22,028,136


Plan fiduciary net position


Contributions - employer $ 770,437      


Contributions - members 458,268      


Net investment income 986,994      


Benefit payments, including refunds of participant contributions (466,852)     


Administrative expenses (10,302)       


Other (847)            


Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,737,698   


Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 17,249,295


Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 18,986,993


Fund's net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 3,041,143   


86.19%


Covered employee payroll $ 6,546,680   


Fund's net position as a percentage of covered employee payroll 46.45%


Notes to schedule:


1 This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years.  


However, until a full ten-year trend is compiled, only available information is shown.


2014


Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability


City of Heath, Texas
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


80







12/31/2014 1


   Actuarially determined employer contributions $ 770,437


   Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution $ 770,437      


   Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -                  


   Annual covered employee payroll $ 6,546,680


   Employer contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 11.77%


Valuation Date:


Notes Actuarially determined contribution rates are 


calculated as of December 31 and become 


effective in January 13 months later.


Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:


Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal


Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed


Remaining Amortization Period 29 years


Asset Valuation Method 10 Year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor


Inflation 3.0%


Salary Increases 3.50% to 12.00% including inflation


Investment Rate of Return 7.00%


Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to


the City's plan of benefits. Last updated for the


2010 valuation pursuant to an experience study


of the period 2005 - 2009


Mortality


RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar 


Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% 


and female rates multiplied by 103% and projected 


on a fully generational basis with scale BB


Other Information:


Notes There were no benefit changes during the year.


NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS TO PENSION PLAN


TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM


City of Sachse, Texas
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS TO PENSION PLAN


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


1 This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years.  However, 


until a full ten-year trend is compiled, only available information is shown.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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Assets


Cash and cash equivalents $ 934,627 $ -                    $ 934,627


Receivables, net 3,963 -                    3,963


938,590        -                    938,590        


Liabilities


Liabilities 


Accounts payable 45,420 -                    45,420


Advances from other funds -                    472,960 472,960


45,420          472,960        518,380        


Fund Balances


Restricted 893,170        -                    893,170


Unassigned -                    (472,960)       (472,960)


893,170 (472,960) 420,210


Total Liabilities and 


Fund Balances $ 938,590 $ -                    $ 938,590


Notes to Required Supplementary Information


Governmental


Total Assets


Special


Revenue


PGBT


Zone


Total Liabilities


Total Fund Balances


City of Sachse, Texas
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET


NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


September 30, 2015


Reinvestment


Total


Nonmajor
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Revenues


Property tax $ -                    $ 141,341 $ 141,341        


License, permits and fees 13,265 -                    13,265          


Grants and donations 34,271 -                    34,271          


Fines and forfeitures 190,018 -                    190,018        


Impact and development fees 2,490 -                    2,490            


Investment income 711 -                    711               


Total Revenues 240,755        141,341        382,096        


Expenditures


Current:


General government 26,368 -                    26,368          


Public safety 6,100 -                    6,100            


Total Expenditures 32,468          -                    32,468          


Net Change in Fund Balances 208,287 141,341 349,628


Beginning fund balances 684,883 (614,301) 70,582          


Ending Fund Balances $ 893,170        $ (472,960)       $ 420,210        


See Notes to Financial Statements.                      


Nonmajor


Total


Governmental


PGBT


Revenue


Special


Zone


Reinvestment


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


City of Sachse, Texas
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,


NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
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Revenues


Property tax $ 2,964,058     $ 2,999,326     $ 35,268          


Investment income 1,500            1,173            (327)              


2,965,558     3,000,499     34,941          


Expenditures


Debt service:


Principal 1,195,000     1,195,000     -                    


Interest 1,763,191     1,762,998     193               


Bond issuance costs -                    177,355 (177,355)       *


2,958,191     3,135,353     (177,162)       


7,367            (134,854)       212,103        


Proceeds from bond issuance -                    9,470,000 (9,470,000)    


Premium on bonds issued -                    458,338 (458,338)       


Payment to escrow agent -                    (9,748,373) 9,748,373     


-                    179,965        (179,965)       


Net Change in Fund Balance $ 7,367            45,111          $ 37,744          


Beginning fund balance 290,913


$ 336,024


Notes to Required Supplementary Information


City of Sachse, Texas
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES


IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL


DEBT SERVICE FUND


Ending Fund Balance


Total Revenues


Total Expenditures


Variance with


Final Budget


Original & 


Final Budget


2015 Positive


Other Financing Sources (Uses)


Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)


Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures


1. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).


* 2. Expenditures exceeded appropriations at the legal level of control.


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


Actual (Negative)
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Revenues


Impact and development fees $ 250,000        $ 1,655,483     $ 1,405,483     


Investment income 4,000            6,773            2,773            


254,000        1,662,256     1,408,256     


Transfers (out) (885,000)       -                    885,000        


(885,000)       -                    885,000        


Net Change in Fund Balance $ (631,000)       1,662,256     $ 2,293,256     


Beginning fund balance 3,578,383     


$ 5,240,639


Notes to Required Supplementary Information


* 1. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).


Variance with


Final Budget


Original & 


Final Budget


2015


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


Total Revenues


Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)


Ending Fund Balance


Other Financing Sources (Uses)


(Negative)Actual


City of Sachse, Texas
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES


IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL


IMPACT FEE FUND


Positive
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Revenues


Sales tax $ 291,611        $ 311,261        $ 19,650          


Investment income 200               117               (83)                


291,811        311,378        19,567          


Expenditures


Public works


Streets -                    778               (778)              *


Capital outlay 282,000        291,470        (9,470)           *


282,000        292,248        (10,248)         


Net Change in Fund Balance $ 9,811            19,130          $ 9,319            


Beginning fund balance 63,420          


$ 82,550


Notes to Required Supplementary Information


1. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).


* 2. Expenditures exceeded appropriations at the legal level of control.


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


Total Revenues


Total Expenditures


Ending Fund Balance


(Negative)


Variance with


Final Budget


Original & 


Final Budget


2015 Positive


Actual


City of Sachse, Texas
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES


IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL


STREET MAINTENANCE FUND
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Revenues


License, permits and fees $ 10,000          $ 13,265          $ 3,265            


Grants and donations -                    34,271 34,271          


Fines and forfeitures 75,500          190,018        114,518        


Impact and development fees -                    2,490            2,490            


Investment income 800               711               (89)                


86,300          240,755        154,455        


Expenditures


General government


City manager 52,000          -                    52,000          


Municipal court 57,000          26,368          30,632          


Public safety


Police 3,000            -                    3,000            


Animal control 5,000            -                    5,000            


Fire and ambulance 12,500          6,100            6,400            


129,500        32,468          97,032          


Other Financing Sources (Uses)


Transfers (Out) (100,000) -                    100,000        


Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (100,000)       -                    100,000        


Net Change in Fund Balance $ (143,200)       208,287        $ 351,487        


Beginning fund balance 684,883        


$ 893,170


Notes to Required Supplementary Information


City of Sachse, Texas
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES


IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL


SPECIAL REVENUE FUND


Original & 


Final Budget


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


* 1. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 


principles (GAAP).


Ending Fund Balance


2015 Positive


Actual (Negative)


Total Revenues


Total Expenditures


Variance with


Final Budget
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Revenues


Sales tax $ 583,222        $ 622,305        $ 39,083          


Grants and donations -                    -                    -                    


Investment income 7,500            8,650            1,150            


Other income -                    1,000            1,000            


590,722        631,955        41,233          


Expenses


Community development 586,320        946,051        (359,731)       


586,320        946,051        (359,731)       


Change in Net Position $ 4,402            (314,096)       $ (318,498)       


Beginning net position 4,508,295


$ 4,194,199


Notes to Required Supplementary Information


City of Sachse, Texas
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES


IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL


SACHSE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


1. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).


Ending Net Position


Total Revenues


Total Expenses


Variance with


Final Budget


Original & 


Final Budget


2015 Positive


Actual (Negative)
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Assets


Cash and cash equivalents $ 201,828


Receivables, net -                    


201,828        


Liabilities


Accounts payable 25


25                 


Net Position


Unrestricted 201,803        


$ 201,803        


Notes to Financial Statements.


Insurance


Health


City of Sachse, Texas
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION


INTERNAL SERVICE FUND


September 30, 2015


Total Liabilities


Total Assets


Total Net Position
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Operating Revenues


Charges for services $ 865,980


Total Operating Revenues 865,980        


Operating Expenses


Health insurance: 730,831


Total Operating Expenses 730,831        


Operating Income 135,149        


Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)


Investment income 166               


Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 166               


Change in Net Position 135,315


Beginning net position 66,488          


Ending Net Position $ 201,803        


See Notes to Financial Statements.


City of Sachse, Texas
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,


Insurance


AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION


INTERNAL SERVICE FUND


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


Health
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities


Receipts from customers $ 865,980        


Payments to suppliers (730,831)       


135,149        


Cash Flows from Investing Activities


Interest on investments 166               


166               


135,315        


Beginning cash and cash equivalents 66,488          


$ 201,803        


See Notes to Financial Statements.


Net Cash (Used for) Operating Activities


Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities


Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents


Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents


Insurance


City of Sachse, Texas


Health


For the Year Ended September 30, 2015


STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS


INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
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These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the 


information in the City's financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it 


performs.


STATISTICAL SECTION


This part of the City's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information


as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note


disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City's overall financial


health.


These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's financial


performance and well-being have changed over time.


These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant local


revenue source, property tax.


These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current


levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.


These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the


environment within which the City's financial activities take place.
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Governmental Activities


Net investment in


capital assets $ 44,754,561 $ 45,783,623 $ 46,034,267 $ 39,684,306


Restricted 139,988      1,079,709   5,803,620   6,450,181   


Unrestricted 4,066,074   4,751,835   916,963      3,466,887   


$ 48,960,623 $ 51,615,167 $ 52,754,850 $ 49,601,374


Business-type Activities


Net investment in


capital assets $ 15,844,099 $ 17,526,144 $ 17,732,575 $ 18,430,141


Unrestricted 4,448,263   4,258,302   4,516,759   4,071,282   


$ 20,292,362 $ 21,784,446 $ 22,249,334 $ 22,501,423


Primary Government


Net investment in


capital assets $ 60,598,660 $ 63,309,767 $ 63,766,842 $ 58,114,447


Restricted 139,988      1,079,709   5,803,620   6,450,181   


Unrestricted 8,514,337   9,010,137   5,433,722   7,538,169   


$ 69,252,985 $ 73,399,613 $ 75,004,184 $ 72,102,797


Total Business-type 


Activities Net Position


Total Primary Government 


Net Position


Total Governmental 


Activities Net Position


City of Sachse, Texas
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT


Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)


2006 2007 2008 2009
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$ 39,406,692 $ 36,887,507 $ 36,691,052 $ 37,377,384 $ 48,982,879 $ 49,395,981


4,351,532   5,622,243   12,723,690 14,002,442 9,721,020   11,827,722


3,306,201   3,560,788   2,628,448   3,436,221   (1,414,544)  (519,752)     


$ 47,064,425 $ 46,070,538 $ 52,043,190 $ 54,816,047 $ 57,289,355 $ 60,703,951


$ 17,765,521 $ 16,769,366 $ 16,223,230 $ 16,169,507 $ 18,603,126 $ 18,802,635


3,602,007   3,051,716   3,442,913   2,600,084   2,586,599   4,232,573   


$ 21,367,528 $ 19,821,082 $ 19,666,143 $ 18,769,591 $ 21,189,725 $ 23,035,208


$ 57,172,213 $ 53,656,873 $ 52,914,282 $ 53,546,891 $ 67,586,005 $ 68,198,616


4,351,532   5,622,243   12,723,690 14,002,442 9,721,020   11,827,722


6,908,208   6,612,504   6,071,361   6,036,305   1,172,055   3,712,821   


$ 68,431,953 $ 65,891,620 $ 71,709,333 $ 73,585,638 $ 78,479,080 $ 83,739,159


                                      


2010 2011 2012 201520142013
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Expenses


Governmental activities:


General government $ 2,046,546     $ 1,165,132     $ 2,061,008     $ 2,306,206     


Public safety 3,904,491     4,735,242     5,122,627     5,196,405     


Public works 3,652,686     3,334,704     3,467,466     5,322,948     


Culture and recreation 811,641        1,033,235     1,162,603     1,365,603     


Community development 658,666        1,231,869     8,819,061     617,616        


Interest and fiscal charges 235,890        217,332        207,484        1,463,452     


Total governmental activities 11,309,920   11,717,514   20,840,249   16,272,230   


Business-type activities:


Water and sewer 4,616,233     4,640,582     5,003,566     5,487,160     


Total business-type activities 4,616,233     4,640,582     5,003,566     5,487,160     


Total primary government $ 15,926,153   $ 16,358,096   $ 25,843,815   $ 21,759,390   


Program Revenues


Governmental activities:


Charges for services:


General government $ 679,877        $ 472,491        $ 441,333        $ 334,331        


Public safety 793,118        883,435        713,814        500,042        


Public works 185,928        129,384        111,109        83,002          


Culture and recreation 49,412          47,779          109,031        71,839          


Community development 498,279        288,518        176,360        136,128        


Operating grants and contributions 27,540          149,774        401,576        124,155        


Capital grants and contributions 4,141,707     2,478,539     1,373,884     78,763          


6,375,861     4,449,920     3,327,107     1,328,260     


Business-type activities:


Charges for services:


Water and sewer 4,429,192     5,218,473     4,384,868     4,866,712     


Operating grants and contributions 55,299          -                    -                    -                    


Capital grants and contributions 1,514,799     741,816        1,900,735     909,613        


Total business-type activities 5,999,290     5,960,289     6,285,603     5,776,325     


Total primary government $ 12,375,151   $ 10,410,209   $ 9,612,710     $ 7,104,585     


Net (Expense)/Revenue


Governmental activities $ (4,934,059)    $ (7,267,594)    $ (17,513,142)  $ (14,943,970)  


Business-type activities 1,383,057     1,319,707     1,282,037     289,165        


Total primary government $ (3,551,002)    $ (5,947,887)    $ (16,231,105)  $ (14,654,805)  


2007 2008 2009


Total governmental activities


City of Sachse, Texas
CHANGES IN NET POSITION


Last Ten Fiscal Years


(accrual basis of accounting)


2006
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$ 2,234,555       $ 2,650,864       $ 2,914,720       $ 2,837,444       $ 2,332,316     $ 2,330,847     


5,529,604       5,990,913       5,609,669       5,858,865       6,176,967     6,854,653     


5,182,386       3,489,615       3,413,399       3,654,946       3,914,293     4,415,483     


1,234,883       1,343,744       1,354,401       1,359,697       1,427,948     1,557,475     


630,764          627,009          522,175          591,605          616,439        677,184        


1,932,003       1,910,952       1,877,579       1,829,322       1,802,117     2,022,071     


16,744,195     16,013,097     15,691,943     16,131,879     16,270,080   17,857,713   
                                          


5,952,236       6,645,238       6,474,428       6,241,148       6,590,497     7,238,771     


5,952,236       6,645,238       6,474,428       6,241,148       6,590,497     7,238,771     


$ 22,696,431     $ 22,658,335     $ 22,166,371     $ 22,373,027     $ 22,860,577   $ 25,096,484   
                                          


$ 63,958            $ 88,284            $ 99,268            $ 24,005            $ 13,702          $ 10,750          


508,356          475,200          569,403          791,140          952,056        871,054        


91,740            2,997              -                      975,880          1,458,819     1,216,081     


70,160            70,676            -                      -                      -                    -                    


361,538          376,788          672,699          717,682          1,055,577     1,804,213     


128,218          146,815          7,414,865       763,815          7,587            521,003        


272,333          293,001          733,599          927,450          5,054,515     1,745,994     


1,496,303       1,453,761       9,489,834       4,199,972       8,542,256     6,169,095     
                                          


4,863,884       5,273,953       7,029,639       3,480,154       6,866,641     9,137,569     


-                      -                      -                      -                      -                    -                    


1,127,986       385,859          477,579          5,062,102       2,019,038     1,233,994     


5,991,870       5,659,812       7,507,218       8,542,256       8,885,679     10,371,563   


$ 7,488,173       $ 7,113,573       $ 16,997,052     $ 12,742,228     $ 17,427,935   $ 16,540,658   
                                          


$ (15,247,892)    $ (14,559,336)    $ (6,202,109)      $ (11,931,907)    $ (7,727,824)    $ (11,688,618)  


39,634            (985,426)         1,032,790       2,301,108       2,295,182     3,132,792     


$ (15,208,258)    $ (15,544,762)    $ (5,169,319)      $ (9,630,799)      $ (5,432,642)    $ (8,555,826)    
                                          


2010 2011 20152012 2013 2014
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General Revenues 


Governmental activities:


Taxes:


Property taxes $ 5,204,772     $ 5,790,305     $ 6,345,254     $ 7,304,775     


Sales and other taxes 1,735,286     3,310,322     11,375,482 3,537,454


Investment earnings 388,712        367,476        390,571        420,591        


Other income 179,142        86,890          89,725          113,067        


263,260        367,145        451,792        414,607        


Total governmental activities 7,771,172     9,922,138     18,652,824   11,790,494   


Business-type activities:


Investment earnings 144,682        204,514        143,922 64,398


Other Income -                    9,694            -                    -                    


(263,260)       (367,145)       (451,792)       (414,607)       


Total business-type activities (118,578)       (152,937)       (307,870)       (350,209)       


Total primary government $ 7,652,594     $ 9,769,201     $ 18,344,954   $ 11,440,285   


Change in Net Position


Governmental activities $ 2,837,113     $ 2,654,544     $ 1,139,682     $ (3,153,476)    


Business-type activities 1,264,479     1,166,770     974,167        (61,044)         


Total primary government $ 4,101,592     $ 3,821,314     $ 2,113,849     $ (3,214,520)    


Transfers, net


Transfers, net


City of Sachse, Texas
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (Continued)


Last Ten Fiscal Years


(accrual basis of accounting)


2006 2007 2008 2009
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$ 8,526,042       $ 8,614,447       $ 9,476,356       $ 9,560,239       $ 9,951,685     $ 10,938,125   


2,965,927 3,735,391       1,786,926       1,873,822       2,390,224     2,790,620     


279,896          50,297            35,398            30,518            30,724          33,900          


75,326            5,473              30,161            80,843            280,569        51,290          


863,752          1,159,841       1,177,341       1,252,689       (263,672)       1,289,279     


12,710,943     13,565,449     12,506,182     12,798,111     12,389,530   15,103,214   


22,281 3,010 2,985 3,934 837 1,970


-                      3,069              -                      51,290            -                    -                    


(863,752)         (1,159,841)      (1,177,341)      (1,252,689)      263,672        (1,289,279)    


(841,471)         (1,153,762)      (1,174,356)      (1,197,465)      264,509        (1,287,309)    


$ 11,869,472     $ 12,411,687     $ 11,331,826     $ 11,600,646     $ 12,654,039   $ 13,815,905   


$ (2,536,949)      $ (993,887)         $ 6,304,073       $ 866,204          $ 4,661,706     $ 3,414,596     


(801,837)         (2,139,188)      (141,566)         1,103,643       2,559,691     1,845,483     


$ (3,338,786)      $ (3,133,075)      $ 6,162,507       $ 1,969,847       $ 7,221,397     $ 5,260,079     


                                          


2010 2011 201520142012 2013
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General fund:


Reserved $ 29,384          $ 6,407            $ 17,752          $ 1,694            


Unreserved 2,625,205     3,356,380     3,222,355     3,344,798     


Nonspendable -                    -                    -                    -                    


Assigned -                    -                    -                    -                    


Unassigned -                    -                    -                    -                    


Total general fund $ 2,654,589     $ 3,362,787     $ 3,240,107     $ 3,346,492     


All other governmental funds:


Reserved for:


Debt service $ 153,727        $ 210,945        $ 262,835        $ -                    


Unreserved, reported in:


Special revenue funds 1,221,237     1,397,433     1,262,603     379,137        


Debt service - - - (690,180)       


Capital projects funds 1,524,830     861,417        5,603,353     32,400,420   


Restricted -                    -                    -                    -                    


Committed -                    -                    -                    -                    


Unassigned -                    -                    -                    -                    


$ 2,899,794     $ 2,469,795     $ 7,128,791     $ 32,089,377   


Total all other governmental 


funds


Note: The City implemented GASB Statement 54 in fiscal year 2011.


2009


City of Sachse, Texas
FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


Last Ten Years


(modified accrual basis of accounting)


2006 2007 2008
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$ 49,815          $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    


3,051,597     -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    


-                    14,716          324,106        28,231          72,675          101,621        


-                    -                    -                    -                    450,000        54,000          


-                    3,194,885     3,490,845 4,631,243 5,568,904 6,546,528


$ 3,101,412     $ 3,209,601     $ 3,814,951     $ 4,659,474     $ 6,091,579     $ 6,702,149     


$ 574,621        $ -                    $ - $ - $ - $ -                    


235,652        -                    - - - -


- - - - - -


14,410,810   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    


-                    14,330,073   12,723,690   14,002,442   10,226,460   11,827,722   


-                    578,537        -                    -                    -                    -                    


-                    (1,129,437)    (711,923)       (707,251)       (614,301)       (472,960)       


$ 15,221,083   $ 13,779,173   $ 12,011,767   $ 13,295,191   $ 9,612,159     $ 11,354,762   


                                          


2010 2011 2012 2014 20152013
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Revenues


Property taxes $ 5,304,854     $ 5,829,802   $ 6,334,180   $ 7,305,974     


Sales and other taxes 1,735,286     3,350,242   3,212,532   3,537,454     


Licenses, permits, & fees 1,246,398     1,273,438   931,515      782,354        


Grants and contributions 59,117          215,827      480,554      130,534        


Fines and forfeitures 574,093        491,411      470,339      342,592        


Impact and development fees 129,360        249,037      198,673      72,578          


Investment income 388,712        367,476      390,571      420,591        


Other revenue 175,846        116,422      109,058      130,928        


9,613,666     11,893,655 12,127,422 12,723,005   


Expenditures


General government 1,181,981     1,146,484   1,136,248   1,295,664     


Public safety 3,823,814     4,395,529   4,859,573   4,912,048     


Public works 1,344,793     1,300,255   1,207,999   1,263,757     


Culture and recreation 853,422        916,667      1,569,532   4,567,958     


Community development 636,328        1,219,360   640,446      611,220        


Nondepartmental 843,533        -                  905,125      989,802        


Debt service


Principal 495,840        387,456      400,468      599,591        


Interest 239,050        217,332      201,334      1,202,984     


Bond issuance costs -                    -                  104,308      301,417        


Capital outlay 1,396,203     2,405,561   3,029,163   4,118,191     


10,814,964   11,988,644 14,054,196 19,862,632   


(1,201,298)    (94,989)       (1,926,774)  (7,139,627)    


Other Financing Sources (Uses)


Transfers in 293,187        378,448      537,435      456,521        


Transfers (out) (82,255)         (115,188)     (170,290)     (4,729)           


Debt issued 89,280          150,000      -                  6,130,000     


Premium on bonds issued -                    -                  -                  51,518          


Discount on bonds issued -                    -                  -                  (70,219)         


Payment to refunded bond escrow agent -                    -                  -                  -                    


Sale of capital assets -                    164,950      6,043          -                    


300,212        578,210      373,188      6,563,091     


$ (901,086)       $ 483,221      $ (1,553,586)  $ (576,536)       


8% 6% 6% 13%


Ratio of total debt service expenditures 


to noncapital expenditures


Total Revenues


Total Expenditures


Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures


Total Other Financing Sources


Net Change in Fund Balances


City of Sachse, Texas
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


Last Ten Years


(modified accrual basis of accounting)


2006 2007 2008 2009
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$ 8,528,384     $ 8,600,635     $ 9,477,053     $ 9,568,319       $ 9,944,708     $ 10,928,163   


2,965,927     4,031,480     1,786,926     1,873,822       2,390,224     2,790,620     


775,583        690,092        967,914        1,338,304       1,830,459     1,612,769     


314,184        387,770        7,414,865     941,473          183,780        710,470        


302,285        315,807        368,027        430,191          556,379        458,477        


86,367          52,046          54,069          569,111          910,006        1,657,973     


279,896        50,297          35,398          30,518            30,669          33,900          


89,991          28,301          30,161          80,843            280,569        51,290          


13,342,617   14,156,428   20,134,413   14,832,581     16,126,794   18,243,662   
                     


1,185,963     1,274,628     1,289,341     1,260,611       1,313,993     1,601,990     


5,143,852     5,374,003     5,011,291     5,470,231       5,278,726     6,274,349     


1,360,400     1,309,120     1,300,324     1,470,995       1,344,008     1,781,872     


1,078,422     1,098,286     1,109,565     1,140,846       1,114,822     1,269,794     


625,773        623,017        518,934        588,698          569,864        673,506        


1,025,096     1,063,452     1,094,219     1,112,937       437,015        493,412        


730,000        865,000        945,000        1,035,000       1,125,000     1,195,000     


1,918,372     1,891,787     1,862,385     1,831,270       1,799,446     1,762,998     


573               573               -                    -                      -                    177,355        


18,492,611   3,187,154     9,342,751     1,538,289       4,141,606     2,129,457     


31,561,062   16,687,020   22,473,810   15,448,877     17,124,480   17,359,733   
                     


(18,218,445)  (2,530,592)    (2,339,397)    (616,296)         (997,686)       883,929        


589,661        2,233,667     1,642,521     2,739,122       1,708,777     1,289,279     


(175,054)       (1,369,915)    (778,769)       (1,561,781)      (2,668,521)    -                    


34,560,000   -                    -                    -                      -                    9,470,000     


411,052        -                    -                    -                      -                    458,338        


(415,403)       -                    -                    -                      -                    -                    


(2,624,122)    -                    -                    -                      -                    (9,748,373)    


1,783            -                    -                    -                      -                    -                    


32,347,917   863,752        863,752        1,177,341       (959,744)       1,469,244     


$ 14,129,472   $ (1,666,840)    $ (1,475,645)    $ 561,045          $ (1,957,430)    $ 2,353,173     
                     


20% 20% 21% 21% 23% 21%


20152010 2011 2012 2013 2014
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Fiscal 


Year


2006 $ 1,056,846,756         $ 25,655,260        $ 55,782,708          $ 1,026,719,308       0.55832         


2007 1,159,232,775         27,492,978        54,164,913          1,132,560,840       0.55832         


2008 1,230,433,837         30,098,392        56,599,871          1,203,932,358       0.55832         


2009 1,247,325,789         31,837,705        65,308,411          1,213,855,083       0.55341         


2010 1,269,254,588         28,781,053        104,232,665        1,193,802,976       0.61000         


2011 1,296,895,777         29,326,411        92,056,890          1,234,165,298       0.70582         


2012 1,305,838,280         29,242,328        96,519,435          1,238,561,173       0.70582         


2013 1,320,191,067         30,495,096        101,886,747        1,248,799,416       0.77082         


2014 1,373,728,433         31,359,625        104,461,852        1,300,626,206       0.77082         


2015 1,494,745,899         37,218,335        107,372,189        1,424,592,045       0.77082         


Note: Tax rates per $100 of assessed valuation.


Source:  City of Sachse Budget Document.


Dallas & Collin Central Appraisal Districts.


Taxable Total Direct


Tax RateAssessed Value


City of Sachse, Texas
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY


Last Ten Fiscal Years


Real Property


Personal 


Property


Less: Tax 


 Exempt


Property


Total 
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2006 2007 2008 2009


Direct Rates:


City of Sachse - Operating 0.48120        0.48116        0.49758        0.51389        


City of Sachse - Debt Service 0.07716        0.07716        0.05582        0.09611        


0.55836        0.55832        0.55341        0.61000        


Overlapping Rates:


Garland Independent School District 1.67010        1.54490        1.25330        1.25330        


Dallas County 0.55480        0.55393        0.56721        0.57643        


2.22490        2.09883        1.82051        1.82973        


Wylie Independent School District 1.81700        1.70250        1.39000        1.51000        


Collin County 0.33942        0.33270        0.33198        0.32899        


2.15642        2.03520        1.72198        1.83899        


Tax rates per $100 of assessed valuation.


Source: Dallas & Collin Central Appraisal Districts and City records.


Total Direct Rate


City of Sachse, Texas
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS


Last Ten Years


Total Collin County Entities


Total Dallas County Entities
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015


0.51389        0.53389        0.59889        0.59889        0.55903        0.57228        


0.19193        0.17193        0.17193        0.17193        0.21179        0.18500        


0.70582        0.70582        0.77082        0.77082        0.77082        0.75728        


1.25330        1.25330        1.25330        1.25330        1.25330        1.35330        


0.60221        0.62333        0.62377        0.62377        0.65388        0.66275        


1.85551        1.87663        1.87707        1.87707        1.90718        2.01605        


1.59000        1.64000        1.64000        1.64000        1.64000        1.64000        


0.32880        0.32630        0.32630        0.32630        0.31696        0.30696        


1.91880        1.96630        1.96630        1.96630        1.95696        1.94696        
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% of % of


Taxable Taxable


Assessed Assessed


Property Tax Payer Rank Value Rank Value


Wal-mart Stores - Collin Co $ 23,511,841 1 1.65% $ -                       -               


Western Rim Investors 21,886,593 2 1.54% -                       -               


LIPT Oak Grove LLC 17,753,820 3 1.25% -                       -               


Woodbridge Villas LLC 15,304,609 4 1.07% 13,394,928      1 -               


Oncor Electric 5,505,150 5 0.39% -                       -               


D R Horton - Texas LTD 5,176,112 6 0.36% -                       -               


Oxford Sachse Memory Care 3,487,710 7 0.24% -                       -               


Verizon 3,384,990 8 0.24% -                       -               


Kroger 3,335,590 9 0.23% -                       0.00%


Wal-Mart Stores - Dallas Co 3,221,920 10 0.23% -                       -               


Realty Assoc Iowa Corp -                         n/a 0.00% 9,018,088        2 -               


Texas Utilities Elec Co -                         na -               5,277,730        3 0.51%


Sachse Farms Ltd -                         n/a -               2,757,275        4 0.27%


Ingram Sachse Ltd -                         n/a -               2,743,715        5 0.27%


Woodbridge Properties, LLC -                         n/a -               2,599,914        6 0.25%


Woodbridge West VII -                         n/a -               2,447,868        7 0.24%


Ashton Dallas Residential -                         n/a -               2,395,503        8 0.23%


Weekley Homes, LP -                         n/a -               2,373,174        9 0.23%


TXU Electric Delivery Co -                         n/a -               2,237,570        10 0.22%


Total $ 102,568,335      4.01% $ 45,245,765      4.41%


Total Assessed Valuation $ 1,424,592,045   100% $ 1,026,719,308 100%


Source: Tax Office.


Note:  Property is assessed as of January 1 and certified to the City by July 25 for taxable values.


City of Sachse, Texas
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS


Current Year and Nine Years Ago


2015 2006


Taxable


Assessed Assessed


Value Value


Taxable
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Tax levy $ 5,281,560     $ 5,723,724     $ 6,266,916     $ 7,227,992     


Current tax collected $ 5,201,118     $ 5,649,957     $ 6,203,890     $ 7,217,309     


Percent of current tax collections 98.48% 98.71% 98.99% 99.85%


Delinquent tax collections $ 79,965          $ 71,649          $ 60,970          $ 2,993            


Total tax collections $ 5,281,083     $ 5,721,606     $ 6,264,860     $ 7,220,302     


percentage of levy 100% 100% 100% 100%


Source:  Dallas and Collin County reports. 


Total collections as a   


City of Sachse, Texas
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS


Last Ten Years


2006 2007 20092008
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$ 8,471,702     $ 8,603,645     $ 9,444,654     $ 9,599,026     $ 9,864,675     $ 10,773,241   


$ 8,446,396     $ 8,510,978     $ 9,389,230     $ 9,443,766     $ 9,762,321     $ 10,646,371   


99.70% 98.92% 99.41% 98.4% 99.0% 98.8%


$ 17,094          $ 72,492          $ 41,669          $ 119,881        $ 56,611          $ -                    


$ 8,463,490     $ 8,583,470     $ 9,430,899     $ 9,563,647 $ 9,818,932 $ 10,646,371


100% 100% 99.9% 99.6% 100% 98.8%


2010 2011 2012 2013 20152014
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Governmental activities:


General Obligation Bonds $ 183,700        $ 156,598        $ 6,256,483     $ 40,510,000   


Discount (21,008)         


Certificates of Obligation $ 4,863,760     $ 4,503,407     $ 4,133,054     $ 1,235,000     


Business-type activities: 


General Obligation Bonds $ 121,301        $ 103,402        $ 19,885          $ -                    


Certificates of Obligation 164,072        1,661,593     90,524          1,375,000     


Total primary government $ 5,332,833     6,425,000     10,499,946   43,098,992   


Percentage of personal income (1) 1.21% 1.43% 2.28% 9.00%


Per capita (1) $ 299               $ 270               $ 577               $ 2,225            


Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.


(1) Personal income and population data is disclosed on page 108.


2008 2009


City of Sachse, Texas
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE


Last Ten Years 


2006 2007
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$ 39,935,000  $ 39,235,000     $ 38,455,000     $ 37,595,000     $ 36,575,000     $ 36,915,000     


(19,899)        (18,790)          (17,681)          (16,572)          (15,463)          (14,354)          


$ 1,080,000    $ 915,000          $ 750,000          $ 575,000          $ 470,000          $ -                 


$ -                   $ -                     $ -                     $ -                     $ -                     $ -                     


1,295,000    1,210,000       1,120,000       1,030,000       935,000          835,000          


42,290,101  41,341,210     40,307,319     39,183,428     37,964,537     37,735,646     


8.15% 7.87% 6.24% 6.00% 5.09% 4.50%


$ 2,017           $ 1,951              $ 1,905              $ 1,836              $ 1,559              $ 1,553              


2010 2012 2013 2014 20152011


115







All property $ 1,026,719,308 $ 1,132,560,840 $ 1,203,932,358 $ 1,213,855,083    


NET BONDED DEBT (1)


Gross bonded debt 5,168,761       4,763,407       10,409,422     41,745,000         


Less debt service funds - - - -


Net Bonded Debt $ 5,168,761       $ 4,763,407       $ 10,409,422     $ 41,745,000         


0.50% 0.42% 0.86% 3.44%


POPULATION 17,300 17,650 18,050 18,750


$ 299                 $ 270                 $ 577                 $ 2,226                  


Note: Details regarding the City's oustanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.


2009


(1) This is the general bonded debt of both governmental and business-type activities, net of original issuance 


discounts and premiums.


NET BONDED DEBT PER 


CAPITA


RATIO OF NET BONDED DEBT 


TO ASSESSED VALUE


2007


NET TAXABLE ASSESSED 


VALUE


2008


City of Sachse, Texas
RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING


Last Ten Years


2006


116







$ 1,193,802,976    $ 1,234,165,298    $ 1,238,561,173    $ 1,248,799,416    $ 1,300,626,206    $ 1,424,592,045    


40,995,101         40,131,210         39,187,319         38,153,428         37,029,537         36,900,646         


- - - - - -


$ 40,995,101         $ 40,131,210         $ 39,187,319         $ 38,153,428         $ 37,029,537         $ 36,900,646         


3.43% 3.25% 3.16% 3.06% 2.85% 2.59%


20,329 20,570 20,570 20,780 23,756 23,756


$ 2,017                  $ 1,951                  $ 1,905                  $ 1,836                  $ 1,559                  $ 1,553                  


2010 20152011 2012 2013 2014
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Estimated


Percentage


Governmental Unit Applicable


Debt repaid with property taxes


Wylie I.S.D $ 307,599,292 12.22% $ 37,588,633       


Garland I.S.D 501,756,118 5.78% 29,001,504       


Collin County 402,795,000 0.60% 2,416,770         


Dallas County 84,725,000 0.42% 355,845            


Dallas County Hospital District 728,005,000 0.42% 3,057,621         


Dallas County Schools 60,215,000 0.42% 252,903            


Collin County Community College District 31,600,000 0.60% 189,600            


Dallas County Community College District 321,510,000 0.42% 1,350,342         


Subtotal, overlapping debt 74,213,218       


City direct debt 36,900,646       


Total direct and overlapping debt $ 111,113,864     


Sources: Taxing Entities and City, Dallas Central Appraisal District, and the Collin County Appraisal District.


Outstanding Debt


Estimated


Gross Bonded Share of


City of Sachse, Texas
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT


September 30, 2015


Debt Overlapping
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Year


Estimated 


Population


Personal 


Income 


Per Capita 


Personal 


Income


Garland 


ISD


Wylie 


ISD


Dallas 


County


Collin 


County


2006 17,300           441,669,000    25,530        56,593 9,800 4.4% 3.2%


2007 17,650           450,604,500    25,530        57,030 10,713 5.1% 4.3%


2008 18,050           460,816,500    25,530        56,600 11,402 5.4% 4.6%


2009 18,750           478,687,500    25,530        57,000 11,402 8.7% 7.8%


2010 20,329           518,999,370    25,530        57,861 11,349 8.7% 7.3%


2011 20,570           525,152,100    25,530        57,833 12,548 8.4% 7.1%


2012 20,570           646,206,550    31,415        58,151 12,939 6.7% 5.7%


2013 20,780           652,803,700    31,415        58,059 13,305 6.9% 6.4%


2014 23,756           746,294,740    31,415        57,704 13,902 6.9% 6.4%


2015 23,756           837,779,096    35,266        57,436 14,557 4..1% 3.5%


Sources: Estimated population provided by the City of Sachse.


Per Capita Income provided by North Central Texas Council of Governments.


Garland & Wylie Independent School Districts.


Unemployment information provided by the Texas Workforce Commission.


Unemployment 


RateSchool Enrollment


City of Sachse, Texas
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS


Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Percentage Percentage


of Total City of Total City


Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment


Garland ISD 486 1 4.28% 140 1 2.80%


Wal-Mart Supercenter 290 2 2.56% -                n/a -                    


Kroger 170 3 1.50% 70             4 1.40%


City of Sachse 150 4 1.32% 101           2 2.02%


Wylie ISD 125 5 1.10% 75             3 1.50%


Wal-Mart Neighborhood Market 72 6 0.63% -                n/a -                    


Whataburger 55 7 0.48% -                n/a -                    


Oxford Glen Memory Care 49 8 0.43% -                n/a -                    


Barnyard Gate Daycare 36 9 0.32% -                n/a -                    


Bearfoot Lodge Daycare 30 10 0.26% -                n/a -                    


First Bank -                n/a -                    20 5 0.40%


Metro Store -                n/a -                    20 5 0.40%


Marshall Cabinets -                n/a -                    15 7 0.30%


TPC Electric -                n/a -                    15 7 0.30%


Sachse Veterinary Clinic -                n/a -                    12             8 0.24%


La Plaza Del Pueblo -                n/a -                    10 10 0.20%


Total 1,463        12.89% 478           9.56%


Source:  Top ten employers and employee count provided by Sachse Economic Development Corporation.


City of Sachse, Texas
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS


Current Fiscal Year  and Nine Years Ago 


2015 2006


120







Function/Program 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015


General government and 


adminstration 17     17     18     12     12     12     11     11     11     11     


Public safety 60     65     71     67     66     69     79     79     80     85     


Public works 14     12     12     12     12     12     11     11     11     10     


Culture and recreation 12     13     14     14     14     15     16     16     16     15     


Water and sewer 5       5       7       20     20     20     20     20     20     21     


Community development 14     13     13     12     12     12     11     11     11     11     


Economic development 1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       2       


Total 122   126   136   138   137   141   149   149   150   155   


Sources: Various City departments.


City of Sachse, Texas
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM


Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Function/Program 2006 2007 2008 2009


Public safety


     Police


          Number of employees 43 43 43 43


          Number of violations (citations) 7,256 4,947 5,666 2,844


     Fire


          Number of employees 17 22 24 24


          Number of volunteers 4 3 4 0


          Number of fire runs 283 410 491 741


          Number of EMS runs 633 556 572 424


Public works


     Streets  (miles) 112 120 122 122


     Building permits issued 282 186 176 135


Cultural and recreational


     Parks and recreation


          Park maintain & operate per acre 86 93 93 110


          Participants in parks programs 2,741 2,630 3,570 3,952


          Participants in senior program 8,914 8,812 12,815 13,027


     Library


          Volumes in collection 36,722 38,481 35,879 31,757


Water and sewer


     Number of water connections 6,275 6,504 6,651 6,804


     Number of sewer connections 5,889 6,078 6,252 6,427
     Average daily water consumptiona


2.889 2.032 2.545 2.484
     Maximum storage capacitya


4.9 4.9 4.9 6.9


Sources: Various City departments.


City of Sachse, Texas
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM


Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015


50 48 48 44 50 50


2,068 2,160 2,568 1,260 2,246 3,846


36 44 44 34 34 35


0 0 0 0 0 0


333 340 197 456 272 394


683 732 811 766 802 909


122 125 125 130 135 135


138 89 135 135 246 275


114 114 139 149 149 152


4,446 4,660 5,010 5,109 5,186 5,480


15,142 15,392 15,700 18,455 19,500 20,445


36,484 38,161 38,761 40,169 43,935 41,203


6,949 7,121 7,285 7,239 7,370 7,950


6,590 6,743 6,874 6,999 7,113 7,468


2.560 3.146 2.464 2.509 2.776 2.412


6.9 6.9 6.9 6.9 6.9 6.9
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Function/Program 2006 2007 2008 2009


Public safety


     Police stations 1 1 1 1


     Police patrol units 17 17 17 17


     Fire stations 2 2 2 2


     Police motorcycle units 2 2 2 2


Public works


     Streets-paved (miles) 112 120 122 122


Cultural and recreational


     Parks (acres) 86 93 93 110


     Playgrounds (1) 3 3 4 5


     Library 1 1 1 1


     Senior center 1 1 1 1


Water and sewer


     Fire hydrants 671 688 721 753


     Ground storage facilities 2 2 2 2


     Elevated storage facilities 2 2 2 2


     Lift stations 4 4 4 4


Sources: Various City departments.


(1) Does not include HOA playgrounds.


City of Sachse, Texas
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015


1 1 1 1 1 1


17 22 25 25 25 27


2 2 2 2 2 2


2 2 2 2 2 2


122 125 125 130 135 135


114 114 139 149 154 155


5 5 5 5 5 6


1 1 1 1 1 1


1 1 1 1 1 1


753 770 786 865 933 970


2 2 2 2 4 4


2 2 2 2 2 2


4 4 4 4 4 4
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 1095 Evergreen Circle | Suite 200 | The Woodlands, TX 77380 | Tel: 281.907.8788 | Fax: 888.875.0587 | www.BrooksCardiel.com 

BrooksCardiel, PLLC
Certified Public Accountants 

February 16, 2016 

To the City Council and Management  

  City of Sachse, Texas 

In planning and performing our audit of  the  financial statements of  the City of Sachse, Texas 

(the  “City”),  as  of  and  for  the  year  ended  September  30,  2015,  in  accordance with  auditing 

standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the City’s internal 

control  over  financial  reporting  (internal  control)  as  a  basis  for  designing  our  auditing 

procedures  for  the purpose of expressing our opinion on  the  financial statements, but not  for 

the  purpose  of  expressing  an  opinion  on  the  effectiveness  of  the  City’s  internal  control. 

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

Our  consideration of  internal  control was  for  the  limited purpose described  in  the preceding 

paragraph and was not designed  to  identify all deficiencies  in  internal  control  that might be 

significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore there can be no assurance that all 

such deficiencies have been identified.  

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management  or  employees,  in  the  normal  course  of  performing  their  assigned  functions,  to 

prevent,  or  detect  and  correct  misstatements  on  a  timely  basis.  A  material  weakness  is  a 

deficiency  or  combination  of  deficiencies  in  internal  control,  such  that  there  is  a  reasonable 

possibility  that  a  material  misstatement  of  the  entity’s  financial  statements  will  not  be 

prevented,  or  detected  and  corrected  on  a  timely  basis. We  did  not  identify  any material 

weakness as defined above.  

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that 

is  less  severe  than  a material weakness,  yet  important  enough  to merit  attention  by  those 

charged with governance. We identified the following as significant deficiencies: 

1. CAPITAL ASSETS ACCOUNTING

Finding

In the current year, capital assets and liabilities were understated due to a construction

project that was accounted for as complete as of September 30, 2014 when in fact it was

not complete and had the final invoice payable at year end.



City of Sachse 
Communication of Significant Deficiencies and Material Weaknesses 
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Recommendation 

The  City  should  consider  reviewing  its  accounting  practices  for  capitalization  and 

accounting for these items. An internal review of these assets should occur prior to year 

end. 

2. PERMIT DEPARTMENT CASH HANDLING PROCEDURES

Finding

The permit department uses one cash drawer for four individuals. These individuals do

not use their unique log‐in information when accepting payments. Although the permit

department rarely accepts cash, the use of a single drawer and a shared log‐in allow the

opportunity  for  cash  misappropriations  to  occur  without  the  City  being  able  to

recognize who misappropriated the cash.

Recommendation

The City should require unique log‐ins when accepting payments.

This  communication  is  intended  solely  for  the  information  and  use  of  the City Council  and 

management, and others within the City, and is not intended to be and should not be used by 

anyone other than these specified parties.  

Very truly yours, 

BrooksCardiel, PLLC 

Certified Public Accountants 

The Woodlands, Texas 

Accepted by ___________________________    __________  

Mike Felix, Mayor 
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Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready
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Title
Discuss and receive direction from the City Council regarding retail energy supply services
for the City of Sachse and move forward with the Texas Coalition for Affordable Power, Inc.
(TCAP) or negotiating services with a retail energy broker.

Background
In mid-January, TCAP member cities were contacted regarding the second opportunity for
members to contract for electricity for the post-2017 time period.  The information package
submitted included a sample resolution, staff report explaining the process and goals, and a
link to a video.  In order to participate in this second round, member cities were required to
submit a resolution by February 25, 2016.  However, Sachse did not receive the initial packet
until January 27th, which seriously impacted staff's ability to investigate the options available;
TCAP has extended the deadline to March 8th for the City of Sachse.

When deregulation was implemented in 2002, prices for electricity were around 4 cents per
kilowatt hour (kWh).  In 2008, prices rose significantly, going as high as 13.5 cents per kWh.
Volatility in prices creates a challenge in budgeting for local governments, so having a long-
term fixed contract is desirable; however, it also limits the opportunity to take advantage of
lower pricing as it becomes available.  The City of Sachse approved a "blend and extend"
amendment to their long-term contract through TCAP in 2011 in order to guarantee rates
through 2017.  The current charge per kWh is 7.44 cents.

An individual city, citizen, or commercial customer can only purchase power directly from a
Retail Electric Provider (REP), which under Texas law exists to give the impressions of a
competitive market.  There are over 100 REP's in Texas, making it difficult for customers to
analyze each one fully.  The City of Sachse has relied on TCAP for analysis of the market
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File #: 16-3260, Version: 1

and guidance, but that is not the only option available.  The City is free to obtain individual
pricing on its own or by utilizing a retail energy broker.

Since late 2015, City of Sachse staff has been contacted by several retail energy broker’s
interested in providing their services to obtain the lowest cost retail energy contract on behalf
of the City of Sachse for our facilities.  A few of these retail energy brokers have shown initial
rates that could be below the rates that TCAP has guaranteed.

While these brokers are offering potential additional savings, these lower rates are not
guaranteed until the City selects a Retail Energy Provider directly OR signs a contract with a
retail energy broker to negotiate electric rates on our behalf.

TCAP has provided a resolution for the City Council to commit the City to contracting with
TCAP's designated supplier NextEra for deliveries of electricity for five years beginning
January 1, 2018.  It also names the individuals who are designated as eligible to sign a
contract because once a price is set, the agreements must be executed within 24 hours.  It
also sets the rate per kWh at a not-to-exceed price of 4.1 cents.  It is anticipated that the rate
would fall between 3.8 and 4.1 cents.

Jay Doegey, Executive Director of TCAP, communicated with the City Manager that the rate
for the North Zone (the zone that Sachse is in) will be finalized in a conference call with
NextEra Energy, TCAP’s retail energy provider, on March 8, 2016.  By close of business on
March 9, 2016, the City of Sachse will be required to accept the set rate, if we choose to
participate.  If the City Council approves this resolution, the City Council is NOT bound to
enter into a contract with TCAP. However, if the City Council does not approve the
resolution, the City of Sachse cannot receive the new rate that TCAP sets with NextEra
Energy on March 9, 2016.

In 2015, the City was billed for 3,985,153 kWh's.  The chart below compares the cost of
electricity at three possible rates to the current rate.  This is not the total expense incurred for
electricity--it does not include delivery charges, taxes, or ancillary fees.  For purposes of
comparison, assume those charges would be the same regardless of provider.

Price per kWh 7.440 4.100 3.900 3.795*

Total 296,495 163,391 155,421 151,237

Savings n/a 133,104 141,074 145,259

*lowest long-term rate presented

As shown, all of the options currently available would result in significant savings beginning in
2018.  The difference between 4.1 and 3.795 cents per kWh over a five-year period would be
over $60,000, showing that it is worthwhile to investigate alternatives.  TCAP will develop
another supply opportunity in the Fall of 2016 for any members not contracting now.  TCAP
does not yet know what rate will be offered in the Fall of 2016.

Budgetary Considerations
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The pricing of electricity under a new contract would first have a budgetary effect in FY2018,
decreasing the City of Sachse’s retail energy expenditures.

Staff Recommendations
Provide direction to staff on two options:

1. City Council to sign TCAP resolution and direct staff to enter into the contract with
TCAP with a “not to exceed threshold” OR

2. Direct staff to select an energy broker to obtain competitive quotes for purchasing
electricity beginning in January 2018, also retaining the option of joining a future supply
opportunity through TCAP in Fall of 2016.
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File #:  Version: 116-3255 Name: TCAP resolution

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:3/2/2016 City Council

On agenda: Final action:3/7/2016

Title: Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Sachse, Texas, authorizing the Texas
Coalition for Affordable Power, Inc. (TCAP) to negotiate an electric supply agreement for five years for
deliveries of electricity effective January 1, 2018.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Resolution

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Sachse, Texas, authorizing the Texas
Coalition for Affordable Power, Inc. (TCAP) to negotiate an electric supply agreement for five
years for deliveries of electricity effective January 1, 2018; authorizing TCAP to act as an
agent on behalf of the City to enter into a contract for electricity; authorizing Gina Nash or
Mike Felix to execute an electric supply agreement for deliveries of electricity effective
January 1, 2018 and committing to budget for energy purchases in 2018 through 2022 and to
honor the City's commitments to purchase power for its electrical needs in 2018 through 2022
through TCAP.

Background
In mid-January, TCAP member cities were contacted regarding the second opportunity for
members to contract for electricity for the post-2017 time period.  The information package
submitted included a sample resolution, staff report explaining the process and goals, and a
link to a video.  In order to participate in this second round, member cities were required to
submit a resolution by February 25, 2016.  However, Sachse did not receive the initial packet
until January 27th, which seriously impacted staff's ability to investigate the options available;
TCAP has extended the deadline to March 8th for the City of Sachse.

When deregulation was implemented in 2002, prices for electricity were around 4 cents per
kilowatt hour (kWh).  In 2008, prices rose significantly, going as high as 13.5 cents per kWh.
Volatility in prices creates a challenge in budgeting for local governments, so having a long-
term fixed contract is desirable; however, it also limits the opportunity to take advantage of
lower pricing as it becomes available.  The City of Sachse approved a "blend and extend"
amendment to their long-term contract through TCAP in 2011 in order to guarantee rates
through 2017.  The current charge per kWh is 7.44 cents.
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TCAP has provided a resolution for the City Council to commit the City to contracting with
TCAP's designated supplier NextEra for deliveries of electricity for five years beginning
January 1, 2018.  It also names the individuals who are designated as eligible to sign a
contract because once a price is set, the agreements must be executed within 24 hours.  It
also sets the rate per kWh at a not-to-exceed price of 3.9 cents.

Jay Doegey, Executive Director of TCAP, communicated with the City Manager that the rate
for the North Zone (the zone Sachse is in) will be finalized in a conference call with NextEra
Energy, TCAP's retail energy provider, on March 8, 2016.  By close of business on March 9,
2016, the City of Sachse will be required to accept the set rate, if we choose to participate.  If
the City Council approves this resolution, the City Council is NOT bound to enter into a
contract with TCAP.

Budgetary Considerations
The pricing of electricity under a new contract would first have a budgetary effect in FY2018.

Staff Recommendations
Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Sachse, Texas, authorizing the Texas
Coalition for Affordable Power, Inc. (TCAP) to negotiate an electric supply agreement for five
years for deliveries of electricity effective January 1, 2018; authorizing TCAP to act as an
agent on behalf of the City to enter into a contract for electricity; authorizing Gina Nash or
Mike Felix to execute an electric supply agreement for deliveries of electricity effective
January 1, 2018 and committing to budget for energy purchases in 2018 through 2022 and to
honor the City's commitments to purchase power for its electrical needs in 2018 through 2022
through TCAP.
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RESOLUTION                 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF SACHSE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE TEXAS 

COALITION FOR AFFORDABLE POWER, INC. (TCAP) TO 

NEGOTIATE AN ELECTRIC SUPPLY AGREEMENT FOR 

FIVE YEARS FOR DELIVERIES OF ELECTRICITY 

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2018; AUTHORIZING TCAP TO 

ACT AS AN AGENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY TO ENTER 

INTO A CONTRACT FOR ELECTRICITY; AUTHORIZING 

GINA NASH or MIKE FELIX TO EXECUTE AN ELECTRIC 

SUPPLY AGREEMENT FOR DELIVERIES OF 

ELECTRICITY EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2018 AND 

COMMITTING TO BUDGET FOR ENERGY PURCHASES 

IN 2018 THROUGH 2022 AND TO HONOR THE CITY’S 

COMMITMENTS TO PURCHASE POWER FOR ITS 

ELECTRICAL NEEDS IN 2018 THROUGH 2022 THROUGH 

TCAP. 

1. WHEREAS, the City of Sachse, Texas (City) is a member of Texas Coalition For 

Affordable Power, Inc. (TCAP), a non-profit, political subdivision corporation dedicated to 

securing electric power for its more than 170 members in the competitive retail market; and 

2. WHEREAS, TCAP has unique rights under Texas law to negotiate directly in the 

wholesale market and arrange separate contracts for power supply and retail services which 

provides TCAP leverage to achieve contract provisions that single city negotiations with a Retail 

Electric Provider (REP) would be unlikely to produce; and 

3. WHEREAS, TCAP’s geographic diversity across all four ERCOT zones produces 

an aggregated peak load that is lower than the total of individual peak loads of the individual TCAP 

members, allowing price benefits in the wholesale market that are not likely to be available to any 

given TCAP member alone; and 

4. WHEREAS, TCAP and its predecessor organizations, Cities Aggregation Power 

Project, Inc. (CAPP) and South Texas Aggregation Project, Inc. (STAP), negotiated favorable 

contract terms that resulted in rebates from the wholesale supplier and reasonable commodity 



 

2 

prices for delivered electricity since 2002 resulting in stable budgets for electricity for members; 

and 

5. WHEREAS, commodity prices for electricity experienced significant volatility 

between 2002 and 2009, with prices ranging from 4 cents to over 13 cents per kWh, causing CAPP 

and STAP members to welcome a five year contractual commitment that came close to cutting the 

2008 prices in half, with that contract being extended until December 31, 2017, with a negotiated 

price reduction of about 1 cent per kWh; and 

6. WHEREAS, TCAP has become a forceful voice for consumer protections and 

market reform to benefit the public and well as cities and other political subdivisions; and 

7. WHEREAS, TCAP is owned by its members and distributes monetary and other 

resources according to relative load size of members and is controlled by a 15 member Board of 

Directors, all of whom must be city employees of members who represent diversity in size and 

geography; and 

8. WHEREAS, wholesale power prices within the deregulated Texas market are 

largely determined by the NYMEX gas futures prices for natural gas which are currently low and 

relatively stable, but which change daily; and 

9. WHEREAS, daily price changes require retail customers to execute a contract 

immediately upon receipt of a favorable offer; and 

10. WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 252.022(a)(15) 

expenditures for electricity are exempt from competitive bidding requirements; and  

11. WHEREAS, on any given day, TCAP is able to capture a favorable wholesale 

price for any period of time, comparable to or better than any given REP or broker; and 



 

3 

12. WHEREAS, TCAP intends to continue to contract with its current wholesale 

supplier, NextEra, because the relationship with NextEra is such that NextEra is willing, after it 

knows the size of a given load, to execute a contract at or below prescribed price and terms; and 

13. WHEREAS, the City desires to execute a contract for electricity for the period 

beyond the expiration of its current contract on December 31, 2017, that locks-in favorable 

wholesale prices under one of three different supply options: 

Option 1 - fixed-price, full-requirements at a price not to exceed 3.9 cents per kWh for the 

North and West zones or 4.25 cents per kWh for the South and Houston zones; 

Option 2 - fixed price for on-peak hours and variable spot market prices for off-peak hours;  

Option 3 - block energy at a fixed price to cover the base load hours, a fixed price for solar 

energy to cover mid-day peak hours (approximately 10% of total load) and variable spot market 

prices for all remaining consumption; and  

14. WHEREAS, TCAP will allow members six weeks from receipt of this resolution 

to consider whether to participate in this second opportunity  to contract for post-2017 electrical 

supply, and thereafter allow NextEra until June 30, 2016  to contact for power for five years at a 

price not to exceed 4.1 cents per kWh in the North and West zones and a price not to exceed 4.25 

cents per kWh in the South and Houston zones for Option 1 , so long as the aggregated load for 

any of the three supply options reaches at least 50 megawatts; and 

15. WHEREAS, wholesale suppliers demand assurance that TCAP will pay for all 

contracted load; and 

16. WHEREAS, the City needs to assure TCAP that it will sign a Commercial Electric 

Supply Agreement (CESA) reflecting the contract extension and budget for energy purchases for 
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the post-2017 period and honor its commitment to purchase power for its electrical needs for 2018 

through 2022  through TCAP, 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SACHSE, TEXAS: 

Section 1: 

That the TCAP Board of Directors and its consultants and advisors are agents authorized 

to negotiate for the City’s electricity needs as a member of TCAP for the period 2018 

through 2022 at a price not to exceed 3.9 cents per kWh for the North and West zones and 

a price not to exceed 4.25 cents per kWh in the Houston and South zones for supply Option 

1; 

Section 2: 

The City prefers to participate in supply Option 1 with the following understanding:  a) 

while supply Option 1 is a full-requirements, fixed-price option, Options 2 (fixed price on-

peak, variable spot prices for off-peak usage) and 3 (fixed price for base load, fixed price 

for a portion of peak load, and variable spot market for remainder) have variable price 

components and savings over Option 1 cannot be guaranteed, and b) if there is insufficient 

desire among members to achieve a 50 MW threshold for either Option 2 or 3, the member 

selecting the inadequately subscribed option will be placed in the Option 1 category.  If no 

option is selected, TCAP will assume that a passed Resolution approves of Option 1. 

Section 3:  

Assuming this resolution is passed before February 25, 2016 and the combined load of 

TCAP members passing this resolution exceeds 50 megawatts for the preferred Option and 

NextEra is able to provide TCAP an opportunity prior to June 30, 2016 to contract for 

power to be delivered to members at a price not to exceed 4.1 cents per kWh for the North 

and West zones and not to exceed 4.25 cents per kWh in the Houston and South zones for 

supply Option 1 for the period January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2022, any one of the 

following individuals is hereby authorized to sign an electric supply agreement for the City 

within 24 hours of receipt of a contract that has been approved and recommended by the 

TCAP Board of Directors:  Gina Nash or Mike Felix.  

Section 4: 

That the City will commit to purchase power to meet all of its electricity needs eligible for 

competition pursuant to the TCAP approved supply agreement and approve funds 

necessary to pay electricity costs proportionate to the City’s load under the supply 

agreement (whether wholesale or retail) arranged by TCAP and signed by TCAP’s 

Executive Director or President or other  TCAP representatives authorized by the TCAP 

Board. 
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Section 5: 

That a copy of this resolution shall be sent to Jay Doegey, Executive Director, TCAP, 

15455 Dallas Parkway, Suite 600, Addison, Texas  75001 and Geoffrey M. Gay, legal 

counsel to TCAP at 816 Congress Avenue, Suite 1900, Austin, Texas  78701. 

PRESENTED AND PASSED on this the       day of                   , 2016, by a vote of  

    ayes and      nays at a regular meeting of the City Council of Sachse, 

Texas. 

      

Mayor 

ATTEST: 
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Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-3259 Name: Comprehensive Plan 3-07-16 - CC

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:3/3/2016 City Council

On agenda: Final action:3/7/2016

Title: Discuss and consider approval of a contract for Professional Services with Gateway Planning Group,
Inc. and authorize the City Manager to execute for the same.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Staff Presentation

Scope of Services

Professional Service Agreement

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Discuss and consider approval of a contract for Professional Services with Gateway Planning
Group, Inc. and authorize the City Manager to execute for the same.

Background
City Council met with the consultant at a special joint meeting with the EDC on February 29th,
2016. The project scope, as discussed by City Council and EDC on February 29th, is
attached.

Policy Considerations
None

Budgetary Considerations
The City will fund the Comprehensive Plan components ($200,000) and the EDC pays for
EDC-related components ($100,000).

Staff Recommendation
Award the Comprehensive Plan contract to Gateway Planning Group, Inc.

City of Sachse, Texas Printed on 3/4/2016Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™

http://sachse.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4290623&GUID=857F9B99-1A81-4156-9C03-7776E986CF84
http://sachse.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4290624&GUID=D3E93FAA-5C0C-4CE2-8136-C014DA0689D5
http://sachse.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4290681&GUID=5C716BC6-927C-41A7-91CC-FF3C3C6E9B69


Comprehensive Plan  
City Council

March 7, 2016



Timeline Overview

• City Council directed Staff to draft an RFP for a
new Comprehensive Plan in Fall 2015.

• Sachse received multiple proposals in late
January from reputable planning firms.

• After reviewing the applicant pool, Staff
interviewed several consultants.

• One firm stood out - and their proposed scope
provided additional value than was contemplated
in the original RFP.

• Council met with the consultant at a special joint
meeting with the EDC on February 29th.



Comprehensive Plan
Final Scope

• Thoroughfare Plan
• Strategic Plan
• Parks Facilities Plan
• Corridor Plan (78)
• Master Utility Plan
• Neighborhood Plan
• Form Based Code
• Programs
• Housing Plan
• Historic Preservation
• Economic Development 

Strategic Plan

• FLUP (Future Land Use Plan)
• Regional Plan
• Master Trails Plan
• Financial Forecasts
• CIP Plan
• Visioning Exercises
• Special Area Plan
• Market Plans
• Cultural and/or Social Plan
• Commercial Design 

Standards (Ordinances)
• Other planning components 

as needed by the City



Awarding The Contract

• City pays for Comp Plan components ($200 thousand)
• EDC pays for remaining EDC related components ($100

thousand)
• The Professional Services Contract and Project Scope, as

discussed on February 29th, are included in the packet.
• Staff recommends approval of the agreement for professional

services with Gateway Planning Group, Inc., and to authorize
the City Manager to execute for the same.



Task

Continuous Engagement

A. Digital Engagement Platform

i. Create web page/Facebook profile and brand in context of other media platforms 

ii. Track and update social media platforms (city to support updating along with consultant) .

B. Early Select Stakeholder Interviews (two days total) and facilitate early joint work session of 

Planning and Zoning Commission, EDC Board and City Council to align priority of likely most 

impactful outcomes with focus on recently adopted revised Council Strategic Plan.  Outcomes 

will be framed in two categories: core comprehensive plan elements (FLUP, Master 

Thoroughfare Plan, Trails/Parks Plan, Utility Strategy) and implementation elements (Special 

Area Plans and Fiscal Scenarios)

C. Prepare for and facilitate early interdepartmental half‐day workshop for issues framing after 

substantial completion of Step 1 Assessment process.

D. Support establishment of Community Working Group (Think Tank) and prepare for and 

undertake spread out through process three (3) half‐day meetings in addition to same day 

interdepartmental meetings [Extra Meetings Hourly]  

Step 1:  Assessment and Creation of Fiscal Scenario Platform [EDC]

A. Undertake targeted assessment of available data upon framing of the most pertinent priorities 

in terms of baseline needed for fiscal scenarios model including values and cost of service at 

parcel level.

B. Create a development pattern baseline model in GIS.

C. Undertake build‐out market analysis with detailed housing and retail/commercial activation 

assessment



Step 2: Framing a Vision to Define Outcomes

A. Prepare for and facilitate a community Town Hall meeting to present initial assessment, market 

study and emerging issues for feedback, and undertake Community Design Survey, including 

preparation of SWOT and TOWS analysis from early interview engagement with stakeholder and 

city leadership.

B. Based on early community input and Step 1 assessment results, validate in coordination with 

city departments and Community Working Group three (3) locations for development of Special 

Area Plans for key areas (likely 190 greenfield; Downtown and another SH 78 location).

C. Develop recommended key outcomes and metrics for plan performance including departmental 

management and coordination in context of updated 2016 City Council + EDC Strategic Plan.

D. Identify and develop initial priority infrastructure needs for plan through one‐day workshop 

with Staff (assumes staff will develop final core Elements inhouse including Thoroughares Plan, 

Parks/Trails Plan and Utility Strategy with support of consultant team; and consultant team will 

develop FLUP refined by Special Area Plans and other core element plans with support of staff).

Step 3: Special Area Plans [EDC] 

A. Prepare for and facilitate 5‐ three(3)‐day charrette. The charrette will include three (3) 

respective locations, linkage opportunities for trails, as well as policies for non‐specific location 

opportunities such as preservation, watershed integration, and trail connectivity. In addition, the 

creation of three (3) colored renderings (to be finalized post‐charrette).

B. Present results of charrette on last night to community hosted by joint meeting of the City 

Council, EDC Board and Planning & Zoning Commission.

C. Post‐charrette refinement of plans and develop inputs for Buildout Scenarios Model.



Step 4 Building Alignment and Optimizing Investment / Finalizing Plan

A. Prepare Plan Elements

i. FLUP map with proposed optimized development pattern locations, extrapolated from a general 

typology resulting from Special Area Plans and other core elements such as trails plan in addition 

to supporting staff lead on preparation of Thoroughares Plan, Trails Plan, Parks Facilities Plan and 

Utility Plan. .

ii. Development of fiscal scenarios from Special Area Plans for impact consideration through 

model.

iii. Develop policy recommendations for plan relationship to Updated City Council Strategic Plan 

and Economic Development initiatives locally and regionally with emphasis on opportunities to 

enhance the tax base via commercial activation and neighborhood and housing policy that 

supports a broad quality of life for a diverse labor pool. 

iv. Regulatory, zoning and governance recommendations, and refinement of Policies and Metrics 

from Step 2.

B. Prepare final draft plan with elements and strategies and undertake two (2) review meetings 

with staff; undertake Town Hall Meeting; and then finalize for communication on social media 

platform and for adoption [extra meetings hourly].

C. Facilitate presentation of final plan to City Council, EDC Board and Planning & Zoning 

Commission for consideration of Adoption (three [3] meetings; extra meetings Hourly).
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 STATE OF TEXAS  § 

    § 

COUNTY OF DALLAS§ 

 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 

 

 This Agreement for Professional Services (“Agreement”) is made by and between the City 

of Sachse, Texas (“City”) and  Gateway Planning Group, Inc., a  Texas Corporation 

(“Professional”) (each a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”), acting by and through their 

authorized representatives. 

 

RECITALS: 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the services of the Professional as an independent 

contractor, and not as an employee, to provide the services described in Exhibit “A” (the “Scope 

of Services”) to assist the City in developing a new comprehensive plan (the “Project”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Professional desires to render professional services for the City on the 

terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, in exchange for the mutual covenants set forth herein, and other 

valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties 

agree as follows: 

 

Article I 

Term 

 

 1.1 This Agreement shall commence on the last date of execution hereof (“Effective 

Date”) and continue until completion of the services, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. 

 

 1.2 Either Party may terminate this Agreement by giving thirty (30) days prior written 

notice to the other Party. In the event of such termination the Professional shall deliver to City all 

finished and unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, reports, 

photographs or other items prepared by the Professional in connection with this Agreement. 

Professional shall be entitled to compensation for any services completed in accordance with this 

Agreement prior to such termination. Professional may maintain copies of all work product 

produced in the performance of this Agreement for purposes of its marketing and advertising. 

 

Article II 

Scope of Service 

 

 2.1 The Professional shall perform the services in connection with the Project as set 

forth in the Scope of Services. 

 

 2.2 The Parties acknowledge and agree that any and all opinions provided by the 

Professional in connection with the Scope of Services represent the professional judgment of the 

Professional, in accordance with the professional standard of care applicable to the services 

performed hereunder. 
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Article III 

Schedule of Work 

 

 The Professional agrees to complete the required services in accordance with the Project 

Schedule outlined in Exhibit “A”. 

 

Article IV 

Compensation and Method of Payment 
 

 4.1 Professional will be compensated in accordance with the payment schedule and 

amounts set forth in the Scope of Services, not to exceed a total amount of Three Hundred 

Thousand and Zero Dollars ($300,00.00), as set forth in Exhibit “A”.  Unless otherwise provided 

herein, payment to the Professional shall be monthly based on the Professional’s monthly progress 

report and detailed monthly itemized statement for services that shows the names of the 

Professional’s employees, agents, contractors performing the services, the time worked, the actual 

services performed, the rates charged for such service, reimbursable expenses, the total amount of 

fee earned to date and the amount due and payable as of the current statement, in a form reasonably 

acceptable to the City.  Monthly statements shall include authorized expenses with supporting 

itemized invoices and documentation. The City shall pay such monthly statements within thirty 

(30) days after receipt and City verification of the services and expenses unless otherwise provided 

herein.   

 

4.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Scope of Services the Professional shall be 

responsible for all expenses related to the services provided pursuant to this Agreement including, 

but not limited to, travel, copying and facsimile charges, telephone, internet and email charges. 

 

Article V 

Devotion of Time; Personnel; and Equipment 
 

 5.1 The Professional shall devote such time as reasonably necessary for the satisfactory 

performance of the services under this Agreement. Should the City require additional services not 

included under this Agreement, the Professional shall make reasonable effort to provide such 

additional services within the time schedule without decreasing the effectiveness of the 

performance of services required under this Agreement, and shall be compensated for such 

additional services on a time and materials basis, in accordance with Professional’s standard hourly 

rate schedule, or as otherwise agreed between the Parties. 

 

 5.2 To the extent reasonably necessary for the Professional to perform the services 

under this Agreement, the Professional shall be authorized to engage the services of any agents, 

assistants, persons, or corporations that the Professional may deem proper to aid or assist in the 

performance of the services under this Agreement. The Professional shall provide written notice 

to and approval from the City prior to engaging services not referenced in the Scope of Services.  

The cost of such personnel and assistance shall be included as part of the total compensation to be 

paid Professional hereunder, and shall not otherwise be reimbursed by the City unless provided 

differently herein. 
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 5.3 The Professional shall furnish the facilities, equipment and personnel necessary to 

perform the services required under this Agreement unless otherwise provided herein. 

 

 5.4 The Professional shall submit monthly progress reports and attend progress 

meetings as may be reasonably required by the City from time to time based upon Project demands.  

Each progress report shall detail the work accomplished and special problems or delays 

experienced on the Project during the previous report period, and the planned work activities and 

special problems or delays anticipated for the next report period. 

 

Article VI 

Miscellaneous 

 

 6.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement 

between the Parties and supersedes any prior understandings written or oral agreements between 

the Parties with respect to this subject matter. 

 

 6.2 Assignment. The Professional may not assign this Agreement without the prior 

written consent of City. In the event of an assignment by the Professional to which the City has 

consented, the assignee shall agree in writing with the City to personally assume, perform, and be 

bound by all the covenants, and obligations contained in this Agreement. 

 

 6.3 Successors and Assigns.  Subject to the provisions regarding assignment, this 

Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the Parties to it and their respective heirs, 

executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns. 

 

 6.4 Governing Law. The laws of the State of Texas shall govern this Agreement 

without regard to any conflict of law rules; and venue for any action concerning this Agreement 

shall be in the State District Court of Dallas County, Texas.  The Parties agree to submit to the 

personal and subject matter jurisdiction of said court. 

 

 6.5 Amendments. This Agreement may be amended by the mutual written agreement 

of the Parties. 

 

 6.6 Severability. In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this 

Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such 

invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions, and the Agreement 

shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained 

in it. 

 

 6.7 Independent Contractor. It is understood and agreed by and between the Parties that 

the Professional, in satisfying the conditions of this Agreement, is acting independently, and that 

the City assumes no responsibility or liabilities to any third party in connection with these actions. 

All services to be performed by Professional pursuant to this Agreement shall be in the capacity 

of an independent contractor, and not as an agent or employee of the City. Professional shall 
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supervise the performance of its services and shall be entitled to control the manner and means by 

which its services are to be performed, subject to the terms of this Agreement. 

 

6.8 Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder may be sent by 

first class mail, overnight courier or by confirmed telefax or facsimile to the address specified 

below, or to such other Party or address as either Party may designate in writing, and shall be 

deemed received three (3) days after delivery set forth herein: 

 

If intended for City: 

 

Attn: City Manger 

City of Sachse, Texas 

3815B Sachse Road  

Sachse,  Texas 75048 

With a copy to: 

 

Peter G. Smith 

Nichols, Jackson, Dillard, Hager & Smith, 

LLP 

1800 Ross Tower 

500 N. Akard Street 

Dallas, Texas 75201 

 

If intended for Professional: 

 

Attn: Scott Polikov 

Gateway Planning Group 

3100 McKinnon St.; 7th Floor 

Dallas, Texas 75201 

 

 

 

 6.9 Insurance. 

 

(a) Professional shall during the term hereof maintain in full force and effect the 

following insurance: (i) a comprehensive general liability policy of insurance for 

bodily injury, death and property damage insuring against all claims, demands or 

actions relating to the Professional’s performance of services pursuant to this 

Agreement with a minimum combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000.00 

per occurrence for injury to persons (including death), and for property damage; (ii) 

policy of automobile liability insurance covering any vehicles owned and/or 

operated by Professional, its officers, agents, and employees, and used in the 

performance of this Agreement with policy limits of not less than $500,000.00 

combined single limit and aggregate for bodily injury and property damage; 

(iii) statutory Worker’s Compensation Insurance at the statutory limits and 

Employers Liability covering all of Professional’s employees involved in the 

provision of services under this Agreement with policy limit of not less than 

$500,000.00; and (iv) Professional Liability covering negligent acts, errors and 

omissions in the performance of professional services with policy limit of not less 

than $2,000,000.00 per claim and $2,000,000.00 in the aggregate.  

 

(b) All policies of insurance shall be endorsed and contain the following provisions: 

(1) name the City, its officers, and employees as additional insureds as to all 
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applicable coverage with the exception of Workers Compensation Insurance and 

Professional Liability; and (2) provide for at least thirty (30) days prior written 

notice to the City for cancellation of the insurance; (3) provide for a waiver of 

subrogation against the City for injuries, including death, property damage, or any 

other loss to the extent the same is covered by the proceeds of insurance, except for 

Professional Liability Insurance. The Professional shall provide written notice to 

the City of any material change of or to the insurance required herein.  

 

(c) All insurance companies providing the required insurance shall be authorized to 

transact business in Texas and rated at least “A” by AM Best or other equivalent 

rating service.  

 

(d) A certificate of insurance and copies of the policy endorsements evidencing the 

required insurance shall be submitted prior to commencement of services and upon 

request by the City. 

 

6.10 Debarment and Suspension. 

 

(a) In accordance with 2 CFR section 180.300, the principal of this contract as 

described in 2 CFR section 180.995 being duly sworn or under penalty of perjury 

under the laws of the United States, certifies that neither this company nor its 

principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any 

federal department or agency, the State of Texas or any of its departments or 

agencies. 

 

(b) If during the contract period the principal becomes debarred, suspended, proposed 

for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation, the 

principal shall immediately inform the City of Sachse. 

 

(c) For contracts that are financed by Federal or State grants, the principal agrees that 

this section will be enforced on each of its subcontractors, and will inform the City 

of Sachse of any violations of this section by subcontractors to the contract. 

 

(d) The certification in this section is a material representation of fact relied upon by 

the City in entering into this contract. 

 

6.11 Indemnification.  CITY SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY LOSS, 

DAMAGE, OR INJURY OF ANY KIND OR CHARACTER TO ANY PERSON OR 

PROPERTY ARISING FROM THE SERVICES OF THE PROFESSIONAL PURSUANT 

TO THIS AGREEMENT. PROFESSIONAL HEREBY WAIVES ALL CLAIMS AGAINST 

CITY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES (COLLECTIVELY REFERRED 

TO IN THIS SECTION AS “CITY”) FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY OR INJURY 

TO, OR DEATH OF, ANY PERSON ARISING AT ANY TIME AND FROM ANY CAUSE 

OTHER THAN THE NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OF CITY OR 

BREACH OF CITY’S OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER. PROFESSIONAL AGREES TO 
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INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS CITY FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL 

LIABILITIES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, SUITS, COSTS (INCLUDING COURT COSTS, 

ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS OF INVESTIGATION) AND ACTIONS OF ANY 

KIND BY REASON OF INJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON OR DAMAGE TO 

OR LOSS OF PROPERTY TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY THE PROFESSIONAL’S 

NEGLIGENT PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR BY 

REASON OF ANY NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION ON THE PART OF 

PROFESSIONAL, ITS OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, SERVANTS, EMPLOYEES, 

REPRESENTATIVES, CONSULTANTS, LICENSEES, SUCCESSORS OR PERMITTED 

ASSIGNS (EXCEPT WHEN SUCH LIABILITY, CLAIMS, SUITS, COSTS, INJURIES, 

DEATHS OR DAMAGES ARISE FROM OR ARE ATTRIBUTED TO NEGLIGENCE OF 

THE CITY, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IN WHICH CASE PROFESSIONAL SHALL 

INDEMNIFY CITY THE OTHER PARTY ONLY TO THE EXTENT OR PROPORTION 

OF NEGLIGENCE ATTRIBUTED TO PROFESSIONAL AS DETERMINED BY A 

COURT OR OTHER FORUM OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION). THE 

PROFESSIONAL’S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS SECTION SHALL NOT BE 

LIMITED TO THE LIMITS OF COVERAGE OF INSURANCE MAINTAINED OR 

REQUIRED TO BE MAINTAINED BY PROFESSIONAL UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. 

THIS PROVISION SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

 

6.12 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by the Parties hereto in separate 

counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all such 

counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument. Each counterpart may consist 

of any number of copies hereof each signed by less than all, but together signed by all of the Parties 

hereto. 

 

 6.13 Exhibits. The exhibits attached hereto are incorporated herein and made a part 

hereof for all purposes. 

 

[Signature Page to Follow] 
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EXECUTED this _______ day of _____________________, 2016. 

 

City of Sachse, Texas 

 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

Name: Gina Nash, City Manager 

 

Attest: 

 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

 Michelle Lewis Sirianni 

 City Secretary  

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

By:  ___________________________________ 

 Peter G. Smith, City Attorney 
 (12-09-15/74601) 

 

 

 

EXECUTED this _______ day of _____________________, 2016. 

 

Professional 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

Name: ____________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________ 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT “A” 

Scope of Services 

 

(to be attached) 

EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF  SACHSE/____________________ 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 



City of Sachse, Texas

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-3253 Name: Budget Amendment March 2016

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:3/1/2016 City Council

On agenda: Final action:3/7/2016

Title: Consider an ordinance authorizing certain budget amendments pertaining to the fiscal year 2015-
2016 budget; and providing an effective date.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Ordinance Amending 2015-2016 Budget 030716

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Consider an ordinance authorizing certain budget amendments pertaining to the fiscal year
2015-2016 budget; and providing an effective date.

Background
This budget amendment is to approve funding for an updated Comprehensive Plan for the
City.  The source of funds for the expenditure is Unreserved General Fund Balance in the
amount of $200,000 and Sachse Economic Development Corporation ("SEDC") budgeted
2015-2016 expenditures of $100,000.  There is no increase in overall budgeted expenditures
in the SEDC, but a transfer from expenditures to operating transfers.

Because the completion of the Comprehensive Plan update is expected to span multiple
budget years, the expenses will be tracked in the Capital Projects Fund.  The changes to all
three funds by line item is detailed below:

General Fund:
Expenditures:

01-018-55050 Transfer Out-Capital Projects Comm. Dev.
$200,000.00

Capital Projects:
Revenue:

04-000-48000 Transfer In-General Fund
Non-Dept. $200,000.00

04-000-48040 Transfer In-SEDC Non-Dept.
  100,000.00
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Expenditures:
04-030-53000 Consulting Fees Cap. Projects
$300,000.00

Sachse Economic Development Corporation:
Expenditures:

06-019-53002 Professional Services Econ. Dev.
($100,000.00)
06-019-55050 Transfer Out-Capital Projects Econ. Dev.

   100,000.00

The source of funds for the General Fund contribution to the project is Unreserved Fund
Balance.  As of September 30, 2015, Unreserved Fund Balance for the General Fund was
$6,546,528, 53% of FY2015 Operating Expenditures.  The City's Fund Balance Policy states
that the City will maintain a reserve of 25%-35% of Operating Expenditures; the reduction of
$200,000 to fund this project reduces the fund balance to expenditure ratio to 52%.

Policy Considerations
The budget amendment is being considered on the basis of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) as it applies to budgeting for sources and uses of financial resources.

Budgetary Considerations
Budget amendments which result in an increase in the overall appropriated expenses are
required by City Charter.

Staff Recommendations
Approve an ordinance authorizing certain budget amendments pertaining to the fiscal year
2015-2016 budget; and providing for an effective date.

City of Sachse, Texas Printed on 3/4/2016Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



1 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF SACHSE, TEXAS (“CITY”), 

AUTHORIZING CERTAIN BUDGET AMENDMENTS PERTAINING TO THE FISCAL 

YEAR 2015-2016 BUDGET; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 WHEREAS, the City is required by the City Charter to approve a budget amendment by 

ordinance and upon approval such amendment shall become an attachment to the original budget; 

and 

 WHEREAS, a budget amendment has been prepared for certain appropriations and 

expenditures in the 2015-2016 Budget and submitted to the City council for approval and a true 

and correct copy is attached as Exhibit A. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF SACHSE, TEXAS: 

 SECTION 1. Pursuant to the City Charter requirements of the City of Sachse, Texas, in 

the year 2015-2016, a Budget Amendment attached as Exhibit A is hereby authorized and 

approved. 

 SECTION 2. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage as 

the law in such cases provides. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Sachse, Texas this the 7th 

day of March, 2016. 

 

       APPROVED: 

 

       ___________________________________ 

       Mike J. Felix 

       Mayor 

 

DULY ENROLLED: 

 

_________________________________  

Michelle Lewis-Sirianni 

City Secretary 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

  

_________________________________  

Peter G. Smith 

City Attorney 

(PGS/05-13-13/61122) 
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EXHIBIT A 

 

 

General Fund: 

 

Expenditures: 

01-018-55050  Transfer Out-Capital Projects Comm. Dev.  $200,000.00 

 

Capital Projects: 

 

Revenue: 

04-000-48000  Transfer In-General Fund  Non-Dept.  $200,000.00 

04-000-48040  Transfer In-EDC   Non-Dept.  $100,000.00 

 

Expenditures: 

04-030-53000  Consulting Fees    Cap Projects  $300,000.00  

 

Sachse Economic Development Corporation: 

 

Expenditures: 

06-019-53002  Professional Services   Econ. Dev.  ($100,000.00) 

06-019-55050  Transfer Out-Capital Projects Econ. Dev.   $100,000.00 
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File #:  Version: 116-3229 Name: Chamber of Commerce Lease Agreement -
Amendment

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:2/10/2016 City Council

On agenda: Final action:3/7/2016

Title: Consider and authorize the City Manager to execute an amendment to the lease agreement with the
Sachse Chamber of Commerce to lease a portion of the former municipal building at 5560 S.H. 78.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Chamber of Commerce Lease - Current

Chamber of Commerce First Amendment to Lease Agreement

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Consider and authorize the City Manager to execute an amendment to the lease agreement
with the Sachse Chamber of Commerce to lease a portion of the former municipal building at
5560 S.H. 78.

Background
The Sachse Chamber of Commerce staff and city staff have discussed the renewal of the
lease of two office areas in the old city hall. The substance of this amendment is the term of
the agreement.

The amendment proposes a one (1) year lease with the option for one (1) additional one (1)
year renewal by the City of Sachse, providing written notice within 30 days prior to the end of
the term.

Policy Considerations
None

Budgetary Considerations
None

Staff Recommendations
Authorize the City Manager to execute an amendment to the lease agreement with the
Sachse Chamber of Commerce to lease a portion of the former municipal building at 5560
S.H. 78.
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STATE OF TEXAS

LEASE AGREEMENT

COUNTY OF DALLAS     §

This Lease Agreement(" Agreement") is entered into between the City of Sachse, Texas, a
Texas home rule municipality, ("Lessor"), and Sachse Chamber of Commerce(" Lessee").

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements of this Lease, and other good

and valuable consideration, Lessor demises and leases to Lessee, and Lessee leases from Lessor,

approximately 2200 squaze feet of the building located at 5560 State Highway 78, Sachse, Dallas
County, Texas, depicted in Exhibit " A" attached hezeto ( the " Premises"). The Premises aze

referred to in this Lease as the " Premises" or the " Leased Premises." The building is referred to
as the " Building."

Article I

Term of Lease

1. 01 Term:   The term of this Agreement shall begin on the last day of execution
hereof ( the " Effective Date") and continue for a period of one year ( the " Initial Term").

Providing this greement has not been terminated earlier as provided herein, Lessee sha11 have

the option to renew this Agreement for additional one ( 1) year renewals by Lessee providing
written notice thereof thirty{ 30) days prior to the end of the then current term.

1. 02 Termination:  This Agreement may be terminated by the Lessor, with or without
cause, upon thirty (30) days' written notice to Lessee, or upon Lessee' s default under the terms
of this Agreement.

1. 03 Holdover: Tf Lessee holds over and coz tinues in possession of the Premises after

the Lease Term ( or any extension of it) expires, Lessee will be considered to be occupying the
Premises rat will or on a month-to-month tenancv). subject to all of the terms of this Lease.

Article II

Rent

2.01 Basic Rent:  Lessee will pay Lessor $ 1. 00 per year, from the beginning of the
Lease Term and throughout the Lease Term.   The yearly rent due sha11 be paid at the
commencement of this Lease Term.

2.02 Securitv Denosit:   Lessee shall deposit with Lessor the sum of five hundred
dollars ($ SQ0. 00) as a security deposit to secure Lessee' s faithful perform.ance of the terms of
this Agreement.  Af er the Lessee has vacated the Premises, the Lessor may use the security
depasit for the cleaning of the Premises, any unusual wear and teaz to the Preznises, and any rent
or other amounts owed pursuant to this Agreement.

2.03 Furniture:    Lessee shall have the right to use the furniture and equipment that

is described in Exhibit B. The City has no obligation to repiace or repair the furniture and
equipment listed in E chibit B.
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Article III

Use of Premiaes

3. OI Permitted Use.  4ffice:  Lessee will use the Fremises at ly for the purpase Qf
conducting its day-to-day business operations.  No other services are permitted unless Lessor

gives Lessee pri4r written cansent for additional permitted uses.   Upan termination of this

Ag reement, Lessee sha11 zeturn the Premises to the Lessor in the sarne candition as the
Gommerzcemezzt Date.

3. Q2 Insurance Hazards.

a)      Lessee shall, durzng the term of this Agreement, maintain in full force and effect
the following insurance: ( 1) a policy of insurance for bodily injury, death and property darnage
insuring against all claims, dernands or actions relating to the Lessee, its officers, agents,
employees, invitees, and vendors use af the Premises purssuant to this Ag reement with a
minimum combined single limit of nnt less than $ 1, 000,000 ($ 2,04Q,000.000 aggregate) per
occurre ce for injury to pe:sons { inctuding death), and for property d, mage; ( 2} policy of
automobile liability insurance covering any vehicles owned and/ ar operated by Lessee, its
of icers,  agen ts, and emplayees, and used in the perfarmance of this Agreement; and ( 3}

sta.tutory Worker' s Compensation Insurance covering all of Lessee' s employees involved in the
use ofthe Leased Preznises under this Agreement.

b)     A.11 insurance and certificate{s)  of insurance shall contain the following
pravisions: ( 1) name of the Lessar, its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds as to
all appticable coverage wixh the exceptiou of Worker Compensation Insurance; ( 2} Provide for

at least thiriy ( 30) days prior written notice to the Lessor for cancellation, non-renewal, or
material change t f the insurance; and( 3} provide for a waiver af subrogatic n aga'u st the Lessc r

for injuries, including death, property damage, or any other loss to the extent the same is covered
by the praceeds of insurance.

c)      All insurazfce companies praviding the required insurance shall be authoriz d to
transact business in Texas and be rated at least " A" by AM Best or ather equivalent rating
service.

d)     A certificate of insurauce evidencing the required insurance shal be submitted to
the Lessor upon full execu ion of this Agreement.

3. 03 Compiiance with Laws:

a}      Lessee may not use, or permit using, the Premises in any manrzer that results in
waste ofpremises or constitutes a nuisance ar for any illegal pu,rpose. Lessee, at its own expense,
will comply, and will cause its of cers, eFZ playees, agents and invitees ta compiy, with a11
applicable laws, ordinances, and governmental rules and regulations concemin the use of the
Premises, inciuding Hazardous Materials Laws.
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b)      " Hazardous Materials" means any substance, material, or waste that is or becomes
regulated by any local governmental agency, the State of Texas, or the Federal Government,
including, but not limited to, any material or substance that is ( 1) designated as a " haaardous
substance" pursuant to  311 of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C.  1251 et. seq., or listed
pursuant to  307 of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S G  1317, ( 2) defined as a " hazardous
substance" pursuant to  101 of the Comprehensive Errvironmenfal Response, Compensation,
and Liability Act, 42 U.S C  9601 et. seq., ( 3) de ned as a " hazardous waste" pursuant to 
1004 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.G  6901 et. seq;, ( 4) petroleum,

5) asbestos, and( 6) polychlorinated biphenyls.

2.04 Construction ofWall:  Prior to occupancy, Lessee shall construct a wall between
the reception area and the former administrative offices as shown on Eachibit" A". The materials

used for the construction of the wa11 and the design shatl be approved by. the City prior to
construction. Lessee shall be responsible for obtaining the required permits for all construction
within the Leased Premises.

2.05 Condition of Premises: Lessee acknowledges and agrees and does hereby accept
the Premises AS IS with all faults.

Article IV

Maintenance and Surrender

Lessee will maintain the leased Premises, with the exception of mowing the Premises,
and keep them free from waste or nuisance throughout the Lease Term and any extensions of it.
When this Lease terminates, Lessee must deliver the Premises in as good a state of repair and

condition as they existed when Lessor delivezed possession to Lessee. If Lessee neglects to
reasonably maintain the Premises, Lessor may, but is not required to, cause repairs or corrections
to be made. Any reasonable costs incurred for repairs or corrections for which Lessee is
responsible under this section are payable by Lessee to Lessor as a reimbursement within thirty
30) days after Lease termination. Additionally, Lessor shall be responsible for replacing air

conditioning filters on a quarterly basis.

Article V

Utilities

Lessor covenants and warrants that a11 solid waste, sewer, water, gas, potable water,

electricity and all other necessary utilities aze in all respects available far, and aze now fully and
completely connected to, the Premises. However, all applications and connections for necessary
utility services on or to the Premises shall be made in the name of Lessee only; and Lessee shall
be solely liable for, and sha11 maintain in current status, any and all utility charges as they
become due, including those chazges for sewer, water, gas, potable water, electricity and charges
for any other utilities. City sha11 pravide Lessee with one gazbage dumpster for solid waste
services.

Article VI

Alterations, Additions, Improvements and Fiatures
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6. 01 Consent of Lessor:    Lessee sha11 not make any alterations,  additions,  or

improvements to the Premises without Lessor's prior written consent o£ the City Manager.

6.02 Si¢na e:  Lessee shall not install any signage on the Premises without written
approval by the City Manager.  Any signage installed on the Premises sha11 be in compliance
with all City ordinances.

6.03 Pronertv of Lessor:  All alterations, additions, or improvements made by Lessee
will become Lessor's property when this Lease terminates.

6.04 Trade Fiztures:  Lessee has the right at all times to erect or install furniture and

fixtures, as long as Lessee complies with all applicable governmental laws, ordinances, and
regulations. Lessee may remove such items when this Lease terminates, if Lessee is not in
default at that time and the fixtures can be removed without structural damage to the Premises.
Before this Lease ternainates, Lessee must repair any damage caused by removing any fixtures
and should have 15 days to comply. Any furniture or fixtures not removed by Lessee when this
Lease terminates aze considered abandoned by Lessee and automatically become Lessor's
property.

6.05 RBDalY3:  The Lessee shall be responsible for making all repairs to the Premises,
including HVAC.  Lessee shall not make any repairs to the Premises without first obtaining the
written consent of the City Manager.

Article VII

Damage or Destruction

7.01 Notice to Lessor:   If the Premises or any structures or improvements on the
Premises aze damaged or destroyed by fire, tomado, or other casualty, Lessee must immediately
give Lessar written notice of the damage or destruction, including a general description of the
damage and, as faz as known to Lessee, the cause of the damage.

7.02 Total Destruction: If the Premises are totally destroyed by fire, tomado, or other
casualty this Lease will terminate, and rent will be abated for the unexpired portion of this Lease,
effective as of the date of written notification as provided in § 7.01. Lessor in its sole discretion

may elect to restore the Pzemises and rebuild the Building in which event the Lease sha11
continue in under the same terms and conditions set forth herein from the date the Premises has

been fiilly resto*ed.

7.03 Partial Destruction:   If the Premises are daznaged by fire, tornado, or other
casualty other than by the negligence, gross negligence, or intentional tort of Lessee or any
person in or about the Premises with Lessee's express or implied consent, or if they aze so
damaged that rebuilding or repairs cannot reasonably be completed within one hundred eighty
180) working days or the damage exceeds Lessor's iansurance recovery, or Lessor elects not to

restore the Premises, this Lease will ternunate.

Article VIII
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Condemnation

8. 01 Total Condemnation:  If, during the Lease Term or any extension or renewal of
the Lease,  all of the Premises are taken for any public or quasi-public use un.der any
govemmental law, ordinance, or regulation, or by right of eminent domain, or are sold to the
condemning authority under threat of condemnation, this Lease will terminate, and the rent will
be abated during the unexpired portion of this Lease, effective as of the date the condemning
authority takes the Premises.

8.02 Partial Condemnation:  If less than all of the Fremises is taken for any public or
quasi-public use under any governmental law, ordinance, or regulation or by right of eminent
domain, or is sold to the condemning authority under threat of condemnation, either party may
tem inate this Lease by giving written notice to the other within thirty ( 30) days. In addition, if
all or a portion of the parking area, or the signage, of the Premises is taken for any public. or
quasi-public use under any govemmentai law, ordinance, or regulation or by right of eminent
domain, or is sold to the condemning authority under threat of condemnation, either party may
terminate this Lease by giving Lessor written notice within thirty (30) days. If the Premises are
partially condemned and neither party elects to tem inate this Lease, this Lease will not
terminate, but the rent will be adjusted equitably during the un-expired portion of this lease.

8. 03 Condemnation Award:  Lessor is entitled to receive and retain the entire award

in any condemnation proceedings, except for any portion atbributable to trade fixtures and
personal property owned by Lessee, wluch Lessee is entitled to receive and retain.  The
termination of this Lease will not affect the right to this award.

Article IX

Inspection by Lessor

Lessor and its officers, agents, employees, and representatives may enter any part of the
Premises during normal business hours for the purpose of inspection, cleaning, maintenance,
repairs, alterations, or additions as Lessor considers necessary ( but without any obligation to
perform any of these functions except as stated in this Lease), or to show the Premises to

prospective tenants, purchasers, or lenders. Lessee is not entitled to any abatement or reduction
of rent by reason of entry of Lessor or any of its officezs, agents, representatives, or employees
under this article, nor will such an entry be considered an actual or constructive eviction.
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Article X

Mechanic' s Lien

Lessee will not permit any mechanic's lien to be placed an the Premises or on
improvements made to the Premises.  If a mechanic' s lien is filed on the Premises or on

improvements on them, Lessee will promptly pay it. If default in payment of the lien continues
for thirty (30) days after Lessor's written notice ta Lessee, Lessor may, at is option, pay the lien
or any portion of it without inquiring into its validity. Any amounts Lessor pays to remove a
mechanic' s lien caused by Lessee to be filed against the Premises or against improvements on the
Premises, including expenses and interest, aze due from Lessee to Lessor and must be repaid to
Lessor immediately on rendition of notice, together with annual interest at the highest rate then
allowed by law until paid.

Article XI

Indemnification

11. 01 General Indemnification:   LESSEE HALL DEFEND, PROTECT AND

KEEP LESSOR FOREVER H,ARMLESS AND INDEMNTFIED AGAINST AND FROM
ANY PENALTY,   OR ANY DAMAGE,   OR CHARGE,   IMPOSED FOR ANY

VIOLATION OF .ANY LAW, ORDINANCE, RULE OR REGULATION ARISING OUT
OF TAE PERMITTED USE OF THE LEASED PREMISES BY THE LESSEE,
WHETHER OCCASIONED BY TI  NEGLECT OF LESSEE, ITS EMPLOYEES,

OFFICERS, PARTNERS, SHAREHOLDERS, AGENTS, CONTR.A,CTORS, INVITEES,
OR GUESTS.     LESSEE SHALL AT ALL TIIVIES DEFEND,  PR4TECT AND

INDEMNIFY, AND THE LESSEE SHALL HOLD LESSOR HARMLESS AGAINST

AND FROM ANY AND ALL LOSS, COST, DAMAGE, OR EXPENSE, INCLUDING

ATTORNEY' S FEES, ARISING OUT OF OR FROM .ANY ACCIDENT OR UTHER
OCCURRENCE CAUSING PERSONAL INJURY, DEATH OR PROPERTY DAMAGE
RESULTIl IG FROM PERNIITTED USE OF THE LEASED PRENIISES BY LESSEE,
ITS AGENTS,     EMPL YEES,     PARTNERS,     SHAREHOLDERS,     AGENTS,
CONTRACTORS,  INVITEES,  OR GUESTS,  EXCEPT WHEN CAUSED BY THE

WILLFUL NIISCONDUCT OR GROSS NEGLIGENCE OF LESSOR, ITS OFFICERS,
EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS,  AND ONLY THEN TO THE EXTENT OF THE
PROPORTION OF ANY FAULT DETERMINED AGAINST LESSOR FOR ITS
WILLFUL NIISCONDUCT OR GROSS NEGLIGENCE.

11. 02 Lessee' s Environmental Indemnification:

a)      Lessee is responsible only for the payment of that portion of any cleanup costs for
the Premises necessary for compliance with Hazardous Materials Laws that arise as a result of
Lessee's discharge of Hazardous Materials on the Premises during Lessee's occupancy of the
Premises. Lessor is responsible for all other cleanup costs and for ensuring that any other
responsible party participates in the cleanup to the extent of its respansibility for a release.

b)      Lessee must indemnify, defend, and hold hazmless Lessor from and agai.nst all
claims,  liabiliries,  losses,  damages,  and costs,  foreseen or unforeseen,  including without
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limitation counsel, engineering, and other professional or expert fees, that Lessor may incur by
reason of Lessee' s action or inaction with regard to Lessee' s obligations under tlus section. This
section survives the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease.

Article XII

Assignment and Sublease

Lessee may not assign this Lease, or any interest in it, nor sublet the Premises, or any part
of them without prior written consent of Lessor.

Article XIII

Default

13. 01 Defanit:   In the event that Lessee fails to perform any obligation under this
Agreement, after seven ( 7) days' written notice from the Lessor, then Lessee shall be in defauJ.t,

and the Lessor sha11 have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement and Lessee shall
vacate the Leased Area upon receipt of such notice.

13. 02 Cumulative Remedies: Lessor's or Lessee's pursuing any remedy provided in this Lease
will not preclude pursuing any other remedy provided in this Lease. Either party' s pursuing any
remedy provided in this lease or by Iaw will not constitute a forfeiture or waiver of any damages
accruing to either party by reason of violating any term or covenant of this Lease. Nor will
Lessor's pursuing any remedies provided in this Lease constitute a waiver or forfeiture of any
rent due under this Lease.

13. 03 Waiver of Default:  Either party's waiving any default or violation or breach of
any term or covenaat of this Lease does not waive any other violation ar breach of any term or
covenant of this Lease. Nor does either party's forbearing to enforce one or more of the remedies
provided in this Lease or by law on a default waiver the default. Lessor' s accepting rent
following default under this Lease does not waive the default.

13. 04 Surrender of Premises:  No act done by Lessor or its agents during the Lease
Term may be considered an acceptance of a sunender of premises is valid unless in writing and
subscribed by Lessor.

Article XIV

Miscellaneous

14.Q1 Notices and Addresses:   Any notice required or permitted to be delivered
hereunder may be sent by first class mail, overnight courier or by confurned telefa c, facsimile, or
email to the address specified below, or to such other party or address as either party may
designate in writing, and shall be deemed received upon actual delivery or, if sent by first class
mail, the earlier of the date of achaal delivery or three ( 3) days after delivery of notice to a
receptacle of the U.S. Postal Service as set forth herein:

If to Lessor: With copy to:
City of Sachse Peter G. Smith
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Attn: Jeri Rainey Nichols, Jackson, Dillard, Hager& Smith, L.L.P.

City Manager 1800 Lincoln Plaza

3815 Sachse Road, Building B 500 N. Akard

Sachse, Texas 75048 Da11as, Texas 75201

If to Lessee:

Sachse Chamber of Commerce

Attn: David Todd, Chairperson

2924 5' Street

Sachse, Texas 75048

14.02 Parties Bound:  This agreement binds, and inures to the benefit of, the parties to

this Lease and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors,
and assigns when this agreement permits.

14.03 Tezas Law to Annlv: This agreemettt is to be construed under Texas law, and all

obligations of the parties created by this agreement are performable in Dallas County, Texas.
The parties agree to submit to the personal and subject matter jurisdiction of said Court.

14.04 Le al Construction:  If anyone or more of the provisions in tlus agreement aze

for any reason held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, the invalidity,
illegality, or unenforceability will not affect any other provision of the agreement, which will be
construed as if it had not included the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision.

14.05 Prior Asreements Sunerseded:   T'his agreement constitutes the parties sole

agreement and supersedes any prior understandings or written or oral agreements between the
parties with respect to the subject matter.

14.06 Amendment:   No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms of this

agreement is binding unless in writing, dated subsequent to the date of this agreement, and duly
executed by the parties.

14.07 Rights and Remedies Cumulative:  The rights and remedies provided by this
Lease are cumulative, and either party's using any right or remedy will not preclude or waive its
right to use any other remedy. These rigkits and remedies are in addition to any other rights the
parties may have by law, statute, ordinance, or otherwise.

14.08 Attornev' s Fees and Costs:   If, as a result of either party's breaching this
agr ement, the other party employs an attorney to enforce its rights ur_des t s Lease, the
breaching or defaulting party will pay the other pariy the reasonable attomey's fees and costs
incurred to enforce this Lease.

14.09 Force Maieure:  Neither Lessor nor Lessee is zequired to perform any term or
covenant of this Lease so long as performance is delayed or prevented by force majeure, which
includes acts of God, strikes, lockouts, material or labor restrictions by any governmental
authority, civil riot, floods, and any other cause not reasonably within Lessor's or Lessee' s
control and that Lessor or Lessee, by exercising due diligence and paying money, cannot preveant
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or overcome in whole or part.

signature page to fodlow)
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EXECUTED on the   day of Yr1 2011.

LESSOR:

City of Sachse, Texas

By:      
4

d
Name:  r  L.     ',
I'itle: en C

EXECUTED on the   
S

day of      v 2411.

LESSEE:

Sachse Cha er of Commerce

By:
Name: i

Title:      } l. rziviq
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Chamber of Commerce Lease to include use of the following office
furniture:

l.      City Council chairs (Former Council Chambers)  ' =-' 

r
2.       3 desk chairs

3.       1 coffee table

4..       5 round folding tables (From senior center or libraty)

5.       1 large conference table( From Community Development)

6.       2 shelving units with roll down doors ( Finance)

7.       5 bookshelves (From various departments)

8.       2 white boards ( From Community Development)

9.       3 cubicle units (From Community Development}

10.     l, 4 drawer file proof cabinet{ From Community Development)

All of this fiarniture currently is in city storage at 5560 S. H. 78 old city hall for
auction
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STATE OF TEXAS  § 

    § 

COUNTY OF DALLAS § 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

This First Amendment to Lease Agreement (“First Amendment”) is entered into between 

the City of Sachse, Texas, a Texas home rule municipality (“Lessor”), and Sachse Chamber of 

Commerce, a Texas nonprofit corporation (“Lessee”) (each a “Party” and collectively the 

“Parties), acting by and through their respective authorized officers. 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties previously entered into that certain Lease Agreement dated 

August 6, 2011 (the “Original Agreement”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Original Agreement by amending the Term as 

set forth herein; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and on the terms and conditions 

hereinafter set forth, and other valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are 

hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. That Section 1.01 of the Original Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

“1.01  Term:  Effective February 1, 2016, the term of this Agreement shall 

be for a period of one (1) year commencing on February 1, 2016.  Providing this 

Agreement has not been earlier terminated as provided herein, Lessor shall have 

the option to renew this Agreement for one (1) additional period of one (1) year by 

Lessor providing Lessee written notice thereof thirty (30) days prior to the end of 

the term.” 

 

2. That this First Amendment to the Original Agreement shall take effect on the last 

date of execution hereof. 

 

3. That the Original Agreement, except as amended herein, shall remain in full force 

and effect. 

 

4. That this First Amendment to the Original Agreement may be executed in 

counterparts.  Each of the counterparts shall be deemed an original instrument, but all of the 

counterparts shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

5. That each Party represents that it has full capacity and authority to grant all rights 

and assume all obligations that are granted and assumed under this First Amendment to the 

Original Agreement. 

 

(signature page to follow) 
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 EXECUTED on the ______ day of ____________________, 2016. 

 

      LESSOR: 

 

      CITY OF SACHSE, TEXAS 

 

 

      By: ____________________________________ 

       Gina Nash, City Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 EXECUTED on the ______ day of ____________________, 2016. 

 

      LESSEE: 

 

      SACHSE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

 

 

      By: ____________________________________ 

       Mike Makara, Chairman 
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Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 116-3247 Name: Kensington Park PP - CC

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:2/22/2016 City Council

On agenda: Final action:3/7/2016

Title: Consider and act on a Preliminary Plat application for Kensington Park from JBI Partners, generally
located north of the intersection of Ben Road and Pleasant Valley Estates, within city limits.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Staff Presentation

Proposed Plat

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Preliminary Plat application for Kensington Park from JBI Partners.

Backgroud

Project Information
• Proposal to preliminary plat 65 residential lots & 3 HOA lots

• Applicant:  JBI Partners

• Owner:  Sachse 95, LLC

• Size:  Approximately 95 acres

• Site Attributes:  undeveloped land

• Proposed Use:  Single Family Residential

• Current Zoning:  PD with residential base zoning

• On February 8th, 2016, the Planning & Zoning Commission unanimously recommended
approval of the proposed plat.

Policy Considerations
None

Budgetary Considerations
None
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File #: 16-3247, Version: 1

Staff Recommendation
• Per Staff’s technical review, the proposed plat is in compliance with Sachse’s

subdivision regulations and zoning ordinance.
• Staff recommends approval of the proposed plat, subject to all conditions stipulated by

the City Engineer.
• Plat approval is not discretionary. If a plat meets all applicable standards and

regulations, State law requires the City to approve the plat.
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Kensington Park PP
City Council

March 7, 2016



Request

Consider and act on a preliminary plat
application for Kensington Park from JBI
Partners, generally located north of the
intersection of Ben Road and Pleasant Valley
Road, within city limits.



Project Information

• Proposal to preliminary plat 65 residential lots & 3 HOA
lots

• Applicant: JBI Partners
• Owner: Sachse 95, LLC
• Size: Approximately 95 acres
• Site Attributes: undeveloped land
• Proposed Use: Single Family Residential (1 acre)
• Current Zoning: PD with residential base zoning
• On February 8th, 2016, the Planning & Zoning

Commission unanimously recommended approval of the
proposed plat.



Aerial  Location  Map

The subject 
property is 
generally located 
north of the 
intersection of 
Ben Road and 
Pleasant Valley 
Road, within city 
limits.

Future Jackson
Meadows

Heritage Country 
Estates 

Vacant



Proposed Plat



Staff Recommendation

• Per Staff’s technical review, the proposed plat is in
compliance with Sachse’s subdivision regulations
and zoning ordinance.

• Staff recommends approval of the proposed plat,
subject to all conditions stipulated by the City
Engineer.

√

Plat approval is not discretionary. If a plat meets all
applicable standards and regulations, State law
requires the City to approve the plat.
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File #:  Version: 116-3241 Name: Discuss Sidewalk Replacement Program

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:2/12/2016 City Council

On agenda: Final action:3/7/2016

Title: Discuss sidewalk maintenance policies.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Discuss Sidewalk Policy

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Discuss sidewalk maintenance policies.

Background
This agenda item is to discuss potential policy options related to the repair and replacement
of sidewalks within the public right-of-way.

Currently, it is the policy of the City of Sachse to remove and replace, or lift and repair the
subgrade, of all sidewalks in the public right-of-way that are in need of repair or replacement.
This work is funded and completed 100% by the City of Sachse.

Historically, sidewalk repair and replacement has been completed by Public Works street
maintenance crews.  Projects have been completed based upon the condition of the sidewalk
and availabile resources.  When staff receives a request, a staff member goes to the site,
assesses the sidewalk condition, and determines the scope of replacement or repair need.
The sidewalks found to be in the worst condition are repaired/replaced first.  This results in
some sidewalk requests not being repaired or replaced for multiple years.

In January, Public Works staff began organizing the requests and assessments in order to
better track our sidewalk maintenance and eliminate duplicate requests.  Staff has compiled a
list of all active requests for sidewalk repair and replacement.  As of March 1st, the list
includes 95 active requests, ranging from cosmetic concerns to significant trip hazards.  Over
the past 5 months, the Street Department has removed and replaced 1,516 linear feet of
sidewalk in the City.  Fifteen projects completed were in locations with trip hazards in excess
of 3-inches.

As the City continues to age, it becomes increasingly important to develop a clear policy in
regards to the thresholds for sidewalk repair/replacement and the methods of both the work

City of Sachse, Texas Printed on 3/4/2016Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™

http://sachse.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=4288579&GUID=67816A78-BBF5-4AF6-8478-11F06C0E2E02


File #: 16-3241, Version: 1

and funding of the work.

Staff has completed additional research and prepared a presentation including recommended
policy items.  Staff is requesting feedback on the following policy components:
- Definitions
- Minimum conditions for replacement/rehabilitation
- Construction Methods
- Project Funding

Policy Considerations
The current policy of the City of Sachse is to remove and replace, or lift and repair the
subgrade of all public sidewalks in the City that are in need of repair or replacement.  The
current policy is not formally written in an ordinance, and is thus unclear regarding the
specific conditions of sidewalks that require repair/replacement, and how such
repair/replacement is conducted.

Budgetary Considerations
None at this time.  Any future policy changes may have budgetary impacts.

Staff Recommendations

Discuss and provide feedback to staff.
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Discuss Sidewalk Policy
City Council Meeting

March 7, 2016

Overview

• Sidewalk Repair/Replacement Methods
• Current Sidewalk Policy
• Status of Sachse Sidewalks
• Sidewalk Request Data & Fiscal Year Sidewalk Replacement
• Sidewalk Replacement Challenges
• Sidewalk Construction Cost Information
• Sidewalk Policy Recommendations
• Next Steps
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Sidewalk Repair/Replacement Methods

• Standard Replacement • Sidewalk Sucker

Sidewalk Condition Types

Trip Hazard Structural Failure Cosmetic
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Current Sidewalk Policy

• It is currently the policy of the City of Sachse to maintain all sidewalks 
in the public right‐of‐way.

• Sidewalk repairs/replacement have been historically handled by the 
Public Works Street Department.

• The cost of this work has been paid for through the annual Public 
Works Budget. (Street Maintenance)

• For the 2015‐2016, a separate budget line item for sidewalk and alley 
replacement was included ($40,000.00).  This line item is not a 
recurring fund.

Status of Sachse Sidewalks

• As of March 1, 2016, there were 95 active requests for sidewalk 
repair/replacement, including a wide range of sidewalk conditions.

• Staff typically receives 6‐8 requests per month. (some are repeat/duplicate)
• Staff visits the site of each request to assess the condition, and enter the 
request into our list.

• Repairs are made based upon priority, as determined by staff.
• Priority is determined by:

• Condition of sidewalk panel (structural integrity)
• Potential trip hazard (depth of separation)

• Repairing/Replacing sidewalk based upon the condition/hazard results in 
some requests being monitored for years until replacement is necessary.
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Sidewalk Request Data

Request Age

• 1 is from 2009
• 3 are from 2010
• 5 are from 2011
• 6 are from 2012
• 12 are from 2013
• 10 are from 2014
• 58 are from 2015

Request Conditions

• 15 Sidewalks with a drop of 3+ inches
• 40 Sidewalks with a drop of 2‐1/2 to 3 inches
• 26 Sidewalks with a drop of 1‐1/2 to 2‐1/2 inches
• 12 Sidewalks with a drop of less than 1‐1/2 inches
• 2 sidewalks with cosmetic damage

While the scope of a sidewalk repair/replacement varies widely, it typically takes 1 street crew 3‐5 
working days to complete a replacement project, and less than 1 day to complete a sidewalk 
leveling with the sidewalk sucker.

This fiscal year, staff has replaced 15 
sidewalks that had a drop of 3+ inches

Fiscal Year 2015‐2016 Sidewalk Repair/Replacement
Beginning on October 1st, staff began formally tracking sidewalk replacement requests and results.

From October 1, 2015 to March 1, 2016, staff has replaced 1516 linear feet of sidewalk, including 
projects on the following streets:

• Vista Glen
• Vista Ridge
• Quail Hollow
• Ingram
• Highridge
• Creekstone
• Creekview
• Morningside
• Southridge
• Blossom
• Potomac

• Creekhollow
• Park Hill
• Arizona
• Crestwood Court
• Southgate
• Lee Hutson
• Leigh Ct.
• Ridgeview
• Park Lake
• Valley Forge

Some streets included multiple locations of sidewalk 
repair/replacement
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Sidewalk Replacement Challenges

• Condition Challenges
• It is currently unclear on the pavement condition and depth of separation that 
constitutes a hazard.

• Some conditions fluctuate during flood/drought cycles.  A 2” hazard during a drought 
may be a ½” hazard during a flood.

• Volume challenges
• As many as 6‐8 new requests are received per month
• Historically, staff completes 2‐4 sidewalk replacements per month, resulting in a 
growing backlog

• Cultural Challenges
• Some sidewalks are in very poor condition, but the adjacent property owner does 
not request replacement. Staff may not know a problem exists.

• Some sidewalk requests are for cosmetic concerns (i.e. small cracks and shifting)

Sidewalk Policies in Other Cities

• Staff reviewed the policies of 16 area cities to determine what policies are 
currently in place in our region.

• Staff found a wide range of policies implemented by surrounding cities.
• These policies including key points on the following items:

• Eligibility for Replacement
• Minimum trip hazard
• Structural failure
• Cosmetic damage

• Project Selection
• Prioritized by City staff
• Prioritized by the City Council

• Funding & Responsibility
• 100% City funds
• 100% property owner funds
• Shared cost (50/50, 75/25, etc.)
• Expedited replacement (100% property owner funding)
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Construction Cost 
Information

Construction Cost Information

• Sidewalk Sucker (Street Department)
• Price to level 3 panels (not including labor): $50.00
• Price to level 3 panels (including labor): $185.00

• Street Department (not including labor)
• Projects completed by the Street Department
• Average price per square foot: $2.24
• Average cost: $537.60 for 60 linear feet of a 4‐foot wide sidewalk

• Street Department (including labor)
• Projects completed by the Street Department
• Average price per square foot: $6.61
• Average cost: $1587.48 for 60 linear feet of a 4‐foot wide sidewalk

• Private Contractor (Through current Interlocal Agreements)
• Projects completed by a contractor selected by the City of Sachse
• Average price per square foot: $6.00
• Average cost: $1,440.00 for 60 linear feet of a 4‐foot wide sidewalk
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Cost Sharing – City, Not Including Labor

(Assuming Street Department Replacement of a 4‐foot wide sidewalk, 60‐
feet long – not including labor)
• 100% City‐funded

• Average cost: $537.60

• 100% Property owner funded
• Average cost: $537.60

• 50/50 Match
• Average cost: $268.80 each

• 75/25 Match
• Average cost: $403.20 City, $134.40 Property Owner

• 25/75 Match
• Average cost: $134.40 City, $403.20 Property Owner

Cost Sharing – City, Including Labor

(Assuming Street Department Replacement of a 4‐foot wide sidewalk, 60‐
feet long – including labor)
• 100% City‐funded

• Average cost: $1,587.48

• 100% Property owner funded
• Average cost: $1,587.48

• 50/50 Match
• Average cost: $793.74 each

• 75/25 Match
• Average cost: $1,190.61 City, $396.87 Property Owner

• 25/75 Match
• Average cost: $396.87 City, $1,190.61 Property Owner
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Cost Sharing – Private Contractor

(Assuming Contractor Replacement of a 4‐foot wide sidewalk, 60‐feet long)
• 100% City‐funded

• Average cost: $1,440.00

• 100% Property owner funded
• Average cost: $1,440.00

• 50/50 Match
• Average cost: $720.00 each

• 75/25 Match
• Average cost: $1080.00 City, $360.00 Property Owner

• 25/75 Match
• Average cost: $360.00 City, $1080.00 Property Owner

Note: availability of contractor for 
small projects (60 linear feet of 
sidewalk) may be inconsistent.  
Projects may need to be grouped into 
a package in order to appeal to 
private construction companies.

Staff Recommendations
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Definitions

• Trip Hazard – a trip hazard shall be defined as a vertical separation of 
two sidewalk panels with an elevation difference of 1.5‐inch or 
greater between two panels.

• Structural Failure – structural failure of a sidewalk shall be identified 
as the cracking or crumbling of concrete through the entire depth of 
the sidewalk panel as determined by the Director of Public Works & 
Engineering.

• Cosmetic Damage – cosmetic damage shall be defined as the wear, 
aging, and/or movement of a concrete sidewalk panel which does not 
result in either structural failure or a trip hazard as defined above.

Eligibility

• Trip Hazard
• Monitor sidewalks with a vertical difference of less than 1.5”
• Schedule sidewalk suck for sidewalk panels with a trip hazard of 1.5” to 2.5”
• Schedule sidewalk replacement for sidewalk panels with a trip hazard of more than 2.5”

• Structural Failure
• Schedule replacement of sidewalk panels that have structural failure as determined by the 
Director of Public Works & Engineering, or his/her designee.

• Cosmetic Damage
• Do not schedule replacement of sidewalk panels with cosmetic damage.
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Prioritization

• Replacement ‐ Severity of Damage (worst first)
• Structural Failure
• Significant Trip Hazard (3+ inches)
• Moderate Trip Hazard (2.5‐3 inches)

• Rehabilitation ‐ Age of the Request (oldest first)
• Complete sidewalk sucking projects based upon date 
of the request

• Complete sidewalk sucking projects as they are 
identified

Project Selection

• Staff project selection
• Complete Replacement Projects of Significant Trip Hazards and Structural 
Failures first, based upon the severity of the damage.

• Complete Rehabilitation (Sidewalk Sucker) Projects of Minor to Moderate Trip 
Hazards based upon age of the request.

• Street Department Replacement
• Projects less than 100‐feet in length will be completed by staff as funds allow.

• Private Contractor Replacement
• Projects greater than 100‐feet in length will be completed by a private 
contractor as funds allow.
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Funding

• Cosmetic Concerns
• 100% Property Owner

• Minor Sidewalk Separations (less than 1.5 inches)
• Staff to monitor
• 100% Property Owner replacement if desired

• Minor Trip Hazards (1.5‐2.5 inches)
• 100% City Rehabilitation (Sidewalk Sucker), or
• 100% Property Owner if replacement is desired

• Moderate and Significant Trip Hazards (more than 2.5 inches)
• 100% City Replacement (Street Department or Private Contractor, depending upon length)

• Structural Failure
• 100% City Replacement (Street Department or Private Contractor, depending upon length)

Note: City will permit and 
inspect any sidewalks 
replaced by property 
owner

Proposed Sidewalk Schedule

• The recommended policy items will impact the schedule of completing 
sidewalk replacement projects.

• Below is the anticipated timeline to address the active requests with the 
recommended policy:

• 15 Sidewalks with a drop of 3+ inches (Replace in 6‐8 months)
• 32 Sidewalks with a drop of 2‐1/2 to 3 inches (Replace over the next 24 months, per available funds)
• 34 Sidewalks with a drop of 1‐1/2 to 2‐1/2 inches      (Sidewalk Suck Rehabilitation in 3 months)
• 12 Sidewalks with a drop of < 1‐1/2 inches (Staff monitor and/or property owner replacement)
• 2 sidewalks with cosmetic damage (Staff monitor and/or property owner replacement)
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Next Steps
• Staff is seeking feedback on the recommended sidewalk policy items, 
including:

• Minimum requirements for replacement
• Construction Method

• Sidewalk Replacement v.s. Sidewalk Sucker Rehabilitation
• City Street Department v.s. Private Contractor Construction

• Funding
• City funding
• Property owner matching

• Staff would like to return to Council with an ordinance defining the City’s 
sidewalk repair/replacement policy to be considered at a future meeting.
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File #:  Version: 116-3245 Name: Executive session- City Secretary review

Status:Type: Agenda Item Agenda Ready

File created: In control:2/22/2016 City Council

On agenda: Final action:3/7/2016

Title: The City Council shall convene into Executive Session pursuant to the Texas Government Code,
Section §551.074: Personnel regarding the six month review of the City Secretary.

Consider any action necessary as a result of Executive Session.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
The City Council shall convene into Executive Session pursuant to the Texas Government
Code, Section §551.074: Personnel regarding the six month review of the City Secretary.

Consider any action necessary as a result of Executive Session.

Background
None

Policy Considerations
None

Budgetary Considerations
None

Staff Recommendations
Conduct Executive Session as appropriate.
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